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PART I
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statementdl sfatements other than statements of historietst
including statements regarding our future financ@dition, business strategy and plans and obgEstf
management for future operations, are forward-loglstatements. Terminology such as “believe,” “rhaynight,”
“objective,” “estimate,” “continue,” “anticipate,'intend,” “should,” “plan,” “expect,” “predict,” “mtential,” or the
negative of these terms or other similar expressisintended to identify forward-looking statemrsewe have
based these forward-looking statements largelywrcorrent expectations and projections about éuawents and
financial trends that we believe may affect ouafinial condition, results of operations, businésgegy and
financial needs. These forward-looking statemergssabject to a number of known and unknown risics a
uncertainties that could cause our actual reswiithfter materially from those expressed or impliedur forward-
looking statements. Such risks and uncertaintiglsiite, among others, those listed in Part 1, It&m"Risk
Factors” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K anceellere in this report, such as but not limited to:

” o ” o ” o " ou ” ” ” o

« our immature industry and relatively new businessief;

< our dependence on Internet search companies satlititernet visitors

» our dependence on a small number of largatsliand our dependence on a small number of aletitals
for a majority of our revenui

« changes in regulatory and legislative environméfetcéing our business or our clie’ businesses
« our ability to successfully manage any recent turiacquisitions

« our ability to attract and retain qualified emplegeand key personni

« our ability to enhance and maintain our client saddor relationships

 our ability to manage our growth effective

« our ability to accurately forecast our operatingufes and appropriately plan our expen:

« our ability to develop new services and enhancesnamd features to meet new demands from our cli
« our ability to raise additional capital in the freuif needed

« general economic conditions in our domestic aném@l future international marke

« our ability to compete in our industry; a

 our ability to protect our intellectual propertghis.

Except as required by law, we undertake no obligeatid update publicly any forward-looking statensefior
any reason to conform these statements to actsidtser to changes in our expectations. Givenrethisgs and
uncertainties, readers are cautioned not to pladeeireliance on such forward-looking statementsves qualify
all of our forward-looking statements by these wmary statements.

Iltem 1. Business
Our Company

QuinStreet is a leader in vertical marketing andiimenline. We have built a strong set of capaésito
engage Internet visitors with targeted media antbttect our marketing clients with their potentiastomers
online. We focus on serving clients in large, infiation-intensive industry verticals where relevéatgeted media
and offerings help visitors make informed choides] the products that match their needs, and bime®me
qualified customer prospects for our clients. Qurent primary client verticals are the educatiod &inancial
services industries. We also have a presence indime services, business-to-business, or B2B, aalthitare
industries.
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We generate revenue by delivering measurable onlard&eting results to our clients. These resubistgpically
in the form of qualified leads or clicks, the outoes of customer prospects submitting requestsiformation on,
or to be contacted regarding, client productsheirtclicking on or through to specific client offe These qualified
leads or clicks are generated from our marketitiyiies on our websites or via third-party pubksk with whom
we have relationships. Clients primarily pay usléads that they can convert into customers, tylgiaaa call
center or through other offline customer acquisifiwocesses, or for clicks from our websites thaytcan convert
into applications or customers on their websites.ake predominantly paid on a negotiated or matkigen “per
lead” or “per click” basis. Media costs to genemulified leads or clicks are borne by us as & @bgroviding our
services.

Founded in 1999, we have been a pioneer in thelgfawent and application of measurable marketinthen
Internet. Clients pay us for the actual opt-in@usi by prospects or customers that result frommaarketing
activities on their behalf, versus traditional impsion-based advertising and marketing models iohndn
advertiser pays for more general exposure to aartidement. We have been particularly focused eeldping anc
delivering measurable marketing results in thedeangine “ecosystem”, the entry point of the Iné&tifor most of
the visitors we convert into qualified leads ocks$ for our clients. We own or partner with verticantent websites
that attract Internet visitors from organic seagolgine rankings due to the quality and relevanaphei content to
search engine users. We also acquire targetedrgigdr our websites through the purchase of payeliek, or PPC
advertisements on search engines. We complemerchseegine companies by building websites with enohéind
offerings that are relevant and responsive to thearchers, and by increasing the value of the $&a€:h
advertising they sell by matching visitors witherfhigs and converting them into customer prosgectsur clients.

Market Opportunity

Our clients are shifting more of their marketinglgats from traditional media channels such as tdimeaxl,
television, radio, and newspapers to the Intereetibse of increasing usage of the Internet by pgméential
customers. We believe that direct marketing ismiost applicable and relevant marketing segmens toecause it
targeted and measurable. According to the Dece@MH) research report, “Understanding The Changiegds Of
The US Online Consumer, 2010” by Forrester Reseamtericans spend 36% of their time with media o t
Internet, but online direct marketing is forecagtedepresent only 19% of the $163 billion in taahual U.S. dires
marketing spending in 2011, as reported by thedDMarketing Association. The Internet is an effexdirect
marketing medium due to its targeting and measlityabharacteristics. If direct marketing budgetifsto the
Internet in proportion to Americans’ share of tisgent with media on the Internet — from 19% to 3Rthe
$163 billion in total spending — that could repmesan increased market opportunity of $28 billibnaddition, as
traditional media categories such as televisionradib shift from analog to digital formats, theanchecome
channels for the targeted and measurable marketatgiques and capabilities we have developedoirternet,
thus expanding our addressable market opportupitsther future market potential will also come frorternationa
markets.

Change in marketing strategy and approach

We believe that marketing approaches are changitydgets shift from offline, analog advertisingdiaeto
digital advertising media such as Internet markgtirhese changing approaches are fundamentalegnde a shift
to fundamentally new competencies, including:

From qualitative, impression-driven marketing to afytic, data-driven marketing

We believe that the growth in Internet marketingrisibling a more data-driven approach to advegtisine
measurability of online marketing allows market@rsollect a significant amount of detailed datattos
performance of their marketing campaigns, includimgeffectiveness of ad format and placement aed u
responses. This data can then be analyzed andaisagdrove marketing campaign performance and cost-
effectiveness on substantially shorter cycle tithes with traditional offline media.
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From account manageme-based client relationships to resu-based client relationship

We believe that marketers are becoming increasifoglysed on strategies that deliver specific, medsea
results. For example, marketers are attemptingt@bunderstand how their marketing spending presiu
measurable objectives such as meeting their tangdteting cost per new customer. As marketers atope
results-based approaches, the basis of clientaesdtips with their marketing services providershgting from
being more account management-based to being msués-oriented.

From marketing messages pushed on audiences to rating) messages pulled by self-directed audiences

Traditional marketing messages such as televisidradio advertisements are broadcast to a brodidraze.
The Internet is enabling more self-directed anddtad marketing. For example, when Internet visitdick on PPC
search advertisements, they are expressing aestierand proactively engaging with informatiomaba product
or service related to that advertisement. The dgrafself-directed marketing, primarily through iorel channels,
allows marketers to present more targeted and paligrmore relevant marketing messages to poteatistomers
who have taken the first step in the buying processch can in turn increase the effectiveness afketers’
spending.

From marketing spending focused on large media bugsnarketing spending optimized for fragmented
media

We believe that media is becoming increasinglyrfragted and that marketing strategies are changiagdpt
to this trend. There are millions of Internet wédbs, tens of thousands of which have significamiioers of visitors.
While this fragmentation can create challengesifarketers, it also allows for improved audiencensegtation and
the delivery of highly targeted marketing messagasnew technologies and approaches are necdssaifectively
manage marketing given the increasing complexgylteng from more media fragmentation.

Increasing complexity of online marketing

Online marketing is a dynamic and increasingly claxadvertising medium. There are numerous online
channels for marketers to reach potential custonmeskiding search engines, Internet portals, gattontent
websites, affiliate networks, display and contekaganetworks, email, video advertising, and sogiatlia. We refe
to these and other marketing channels as medi&. &abese channels may involve multiple ad fornaatd
different pricing models, amplifying the complexiy online marketing. We believe that this compigxncreases
the demand for our vertical marketing and mediaises due to our capabilities and to our experienaaaging an
optimizing online marketing programs across mudtiphannels. Also marketers and agencies oftendackbility tc
aggregate offerings from multiple clients in thensaindustry vertical, an approach that allows usoteer a wide
selection of visitor segments and provide more mtaematches to Internet visitor needs. This apphocan allow
us to convert more Internet visitors into qualifledds or clicks from targeted media sources, givisan advantag
when buying or monetizing that media.

Our Business Model

We deliver cost-effective marketing results to clients, predictably and scalably, most typicafiythe form of
a qualified lead or click. These leads or clicks ti@en convert into a customer or sale for thentlé a rate that
results in an acceptable marketing cost to themg®éigaid by clients primarily when we deliver dfietl leads or
clicks as defined in our agreements. Because wethe&osts of media, our programs must deliveslaesto our
clients and a media yield, or our ability to geteran acceptable margin on our media costs, tlatdes a sound
financial outcome for us. Our general process is:

« We own or access targeted me:

« We run advertisements or other forms of mamnketessages and programs in that media to cresaterv
responses or clicks through to client offerir
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« We match these responses or clicks to client affsrior brands that meet visitor interests or nesatsyerting
visitors into qualified leads or click

« We optimize client matches and media yielchsihat we achieve desired results for clients asduamd
financial outcome for u

Media cost, or the cost to attract targeted Inteviggtors, is the largest cost input to producihg measurable
marketing results we deliver to clients. Balanaing clients’ cost and conversion objectives, orrtdite at which the
leads or clicks that we deliver to them conver ioistomers, with our media costs and yield objestirepresents
the primary challenge in our business model. Westimen able to effectively balance these compelémgands by
focusing on our media sources and capabilitiesyeion optimization, and our mix of offerings acligbnt
coverage. We also seek to mitigate media costskorking with third-party website publishers poatinantly on
a revenue-share basis; media purchased on a nenueshare basis has represented a minority ahedia costs
and of the Internet visitors we convert into quatifleads or clicks for clients.

Media and Internet visitor mix

We are a client-driven organization. We seek toe of the largest providers of measurable margetsults
on the Internet in the client industry verticals sezve by meeting the needs of clients for restdtgbility and
volume. Meeting those client needs requires thamamtain a diversified and flexible mix of Intetnasitor source
due to the dynamic nature of online media. Our meadix changes with changes in Internet visitor egaatterns.
We adapt to those changes on an ongoing basislsmgroactively adjust our mix of vertical medgces to
respond to client or vertical-specific circumstamead to achieve our financial objectives. Ourriizial objectives
are to achieve consistent, sustainable financidbpaance, but can differ by client or industry tieal, depending
on factors such as our need to invest in the dpwedmt of media sources, marketing programs, onftclie
relationships. Generally, our Internet visitor sms include:

« websites owned and operated by us, with coted offerings that are relevant to our cliensésget
customers

« visitors acquired from PPC advertisements purchasanajor search engines and sent to our web

¢ revenue sharing agreements with third-partyliphers with whom we have a relationship and whaasgent
is relevant to our clien’ target customer:

» email lists owned by third parties and warrantedddy their owners to comply with the C-SPAM Act;
< email lists owned by us, and generated on a-in basis from Internet visitors to our websitesj
« display ads run through online advertising netwankdirectly with major websites or porta

Conversion optimization

Once we acquire targeted Internet visitors from @ngur numerous online media sources, we see&rnoest
that media into qualified leads or clicks at a theg balances client results with our media costgeld objectives.
We start by defining the segments and interesbstefnet visitors in our client verticals, and lpwiding them witt
the information and product offerings on our wedssiand in our marketing programs that best megtribeds.
Achieving acceptable client results and media yilesh requires ongoing testing, measuring, analfestslback, an
adaptation of the key components of our Interneketing programs. These components include the atiaik or
advertising messaging, content mix, visitor nav@apath, mix and coverage of client offerings preed, and
point-of-sale conversion messaging — the conteaattithpresented to an Internet visitor immediagelgr to
converting that individual into a lead or click four clients. This data complexity is managed byvitk technology
data reporting, marketing processes, and persovfebelieve that our scale and more than ten-yaek record
give us an advantage, as managing this compleftiy amplies a steep experience-based learningecurv
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Offerings and client coverag

The Internet is a self-directed medium. Internsttors choose the websites they visit and theiinenl
navigation paths, and always have the option okirig away to a different website or web page. Hgwfferings
or clients that match the interests or needs ofsitelisitors is key to providing results and adsgunedia yield.
Our vertical focus allows us to continuously revase improve this matching process, to better wstded the
various segments of visitors and client offeringailable to be matched, and to ensure that we enatdrnet
visitors to find what they seek.

Our Competitive Advantages
Vertical focus and expertise

We focus our efforts on large, attractive clientrkes verticals, and on building our depth of meatial
coverage of clients and client offerings withinrthéNVe have been a pioneer in developing verticaketang and
media on the Internet, and in providing measureataleketing results to clients. We focus on client® are movin
their marketing spending to measurable online fesraad on information-intensive client verticalgtwlarge
underlying market opportunities and high productwstomer lifetime values. This focus allows ustibize targete
media, in-depth industry and client knowledge, emstomer segmentation and breadth of client ofgsrior
coverage, to deliver results for our clients anebtgr media yield.

Measurable marketing experience and expertise

We have substantial experience at designing anldylag marketing programs that allow Internet \asé to
find the information or product offerings they seakd that can deliver economically attractive, sugeable results
to our clients, cost-effectively for us. Such résukquire frequent testing and balancing of numerariables,
including Internet visitor sources, mix of contamd of client and product offerings, visitor natiga paths,
prospect qualification, and advertising creativeigie, among others. The complexity of executing¢hmarketing
campaigns is challenging. Due to our scale and rinane ten-year track record, we have successfuligged
thousands of Internet marketing programs, and we ained significant experience managing and apitrg this
complexity to meet our clients’ volume, quality acabt objectives.

Targeted media

Targeted media attracts Internet visitors who alatively narrowly focused demographically or ieith
interests. Targeted media can deliver better mabfumarketing results for our clients, at lowedmaeosts for us,
due to higher rates of conversion of Internet @isitinto leads or clicks for targeted offerings amiten, due to less
competition from display advertisers. We have digant experience at creating, identifying, monietiz and
managing targeted media on the Internet. Many etdingeted media sources for our marketing progemms
proprietary or more defensible because of our twemership of websites in our client verticalsy aaquisition of
targeted Internet visitors directly from searchieag to our websites, and our exclusive or longitezlationships
with media properties or sources owned by othexantples of websites that we own and operate include
WorldWideLearn.com, ArmyStudyGuide.com and Schaols in our education client vertical; CardRatings¢
MoneyRates.com, Carlnsurance.com, Insurance.connaade.com in our financial services client vetic
AllAboutLawns.com and OldHouseWeb.com in our homeviges client vertical; Internet.com in our
business-to-business client vertical; and Elderi@aeom in our healthcare client vertical.

Proprietary technology

We have developed a core technology platform armhamon set of applications for managing and opiimgiz
measurable marketing programs across multipletclieriicals at scale. The primary objectives aridat$ of our
technologies are to achieve higher media yieldy€eebetter results for our clients, and more éfitly and
effectively manage our scale and complexity. Weticoously strive to develop technologies that alleswto better
match Internet visitors in our client verticalstie information, clients or product offerings themek at scale. In so
doing, our technologies can allow us to simultarsgpimprove visitor satisfaction, increase our naegleld, and
achieve higher rates of conversions of leads okslior our clients — a virtuous cycle of increasatue for
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Internet visitors and our clients and competitideantage for us. Some of the key applications mtechnology
platform are:

« an ad server for tracking the placement amtbpeance of content, creative messaging, andiofjeron our
websites and on those of publishers with whom weky

« database-driven applications for dynamicalBtching content, offers or brands to Internet gisitexpresse
needs or interest

« a platform for measuring and managing thequernce of tens of thousands of PPC search engine
advertising campaign

« dashboards or reporting tools for displayipgmting and financial metrics for thousands ofang
marketing campaigns; an

« a compliance tool capable of cataloging atidrfing content from the thousands of websites bicivour
marketing programs appear to ensure adherenceetd blanding guidelines and to regulatory requaats.

Approximately one-third of our employees are engisefocused on building, maintaining and operating
technology platform.

Client relationships

We believe we are a reliable source of measurdfdgtere marketing results for our clients. We eadar to
work collaboratively and in a data-driven way wiffents to improve our results for them. We belieue high
client retention and per client growth rates are tiu

* our close, often direct, relationships with mosbof large clients
* our ability to deliver measurable and attractivieime on investment, or ROI, on clie’ marketing spending

« our ownership of, or exclusive access to lang®unts of, targeted media inventory and assatlaternet
visitors in the client verticals on which we focasid,

« our ability to consistently and reliably deliverde quantities of qualified leads or clicl

We believe that our high client retention ratesnbmed with our depth and breadth of online mexiatir
primary client verticals, indicate that we are lragtg an important marketing channel partner for dients to
reach their prospective customers.

Client-driven online marketing approach

We focus on providing measurable Internet markedind media services to our clients in a way thatgmts
and enhances their brands and their relationshighsprospective customers. The Internet marketimgmams we
execute are designed to adhere to strict cliemtding and regulatory guidelines, and are desigoaddatch our
clients’ brands and offers with expressed custdanterest. We have contractual arrangements witd-gharty
website publishers to ensure that they follow diegn¢s’ brand guidelines, and we utilize our prepaiy
technologies and trained personnel to help ensamgpkance. In addition, we believe that providietevant, helpfL
content and client offers that match an Internsitei’s self-selected interest in a product or g&rvsuch as
requesting information about an education prografinancial product, makes that visitor more likétyconvert
into a customer for our clients.

We do not engage in online marketing practices sscépyware or deceptive promotions that do notigeo
value to Internet visitors and that can undermimeatients’ brands. A small minority of our Intetndsitors reach
our websites or client offerings through advertisats in emails. We employ practices to ensurevtieatomply
with the CAN-SPAM Act governing unsolicited commiatemail.
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Acquisition strategy and succe

We have successfully acquired vertical online miamgeand media companies, including vertical websit
businesses, marketing services companies, anddiecfies. We believe we can integrate and geneadteevfrom
acquisitions due to our scale, breadth of capasliand common technology platform.

< Our ability to monetize Internet media, coupleith client demand for our services, providesvith a
particular advantage in acquiring targeted onlireglia properties in the client verticals on whichfaeus.

« Our capabilities in online media can allowtogenerate a greater volume of leads or clickd,tharefore
create more value, than other owners of marketngses companies that have aggregated client sidge
relationships

« We can often apply technologies across our busiw@ssne to create more value than previous ownktise
technology

Scale

We are one of the largest Internet vertical manketind media companies in the world. Our scalevallas to
better meet the needs of large clients for relighivolume and quality of service. It allows usitwest more in
technologies that improve media yield, client resahd our operating efficiency. We are also ablietest more in
other forms of research and development, includetgrmining and developing new types of verticatlimenew
approaches to engaging website visitors, and ngmeets of Internet visitors and client budgetspéiivhich can
lead to advantages in media costs, effectivenedslivering client results, and then to more groasial greater
scale.

Our Strategy

Our goal is to be one of the largest and most ssfaemarketing and media companies on the Inteamet
eventually in other digitized media forms. We beti¢hat we are in the early stages of a very largelong-term
business opportunity. Our strategy for pursuing tpportunity includes the following key components

» Focus on generating sustainable revenues by pnogidieasurable value to our clien

* Build QuinStreet and our industry sustainably bideng ethically in all we do and by providing giaa
content and website experiences to Internet visi

« Remain vertically focused, choosing to grow throdghth, expertise and coverage in our current ¢l
verticals; enter new client verticals selectivelyeptime, organically and through acquisitiol

 Build a world class organization, wibest-in-class capabilities for delivering measumbiarketing results
to clients and high yields or returns on media sc

» Develop and evolve the best technologies and ptatfor managing vertical marketing and media on
Internet; focus on technologies that enhance mgigilal, improve client results and achieve scaleiefficies

* Build, buy and partner with vertical content websithat provide the most relevant and highest guaisitor
experiences in the client and media verticals wees:

« Be a clien-driven organization; develop a broad set of mesharces and capabilities to reliably meet client
needs
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Our Culture

Our values are the foundation of our successfuhless culture. They represent the standards we gty
achieve and the organization we continuously sedletome. These have been our guiding principres siur
founding in 1999. Our values are:

1. Performance. We lead and take ownership of results and growlknow that results drive our
success. We are bold in their pursuit. We takearesipility and a “whatever it takegipproach to getting thing
done, and done right. We seek input to make thedsessions possible, but we also act decisivelg.ask for
help rather than missing commitments or making sesuWe are committed to our personal and profeakio
development and to that of our colleagues. Our gr@sows the Company.

2. Open CommunicationsWe respect our colleagues and deal with one anaienly, honestly and non-
hierarchically in an atmosphere of mutual trust enplursuit of common stretch goals. We assumeenobl
intentions. We have an obligation to dissent ang prablem-solve with anyone, anywhere in the orgatibon
at any time in the pursuit of the best solution& &ve mindful of roles and of the need to keep edoér
informed to avoid discourtesy, chaos and uninteratgdequences. We avoid surprises. But, ideas and
performance rule, not rank and reporting lines.agport decisions once made, and move forward.

3. High Standards. We hold each other and ourselves to the highastards of performance,
professionalism and personal behavior. We act thighhighest of ethical standards. We deliver angtrfall-
time commitment to our work. We are as flexiblgoassible in work timing and place to maximize r¢itamof
the best people. We tolerate and forgive mistaded,view them as opportunities to learn and grow.dd not
tolerate patterns of bad behavior or poor perforrean

4. Customer Empathy.We strive every day to better understand anctipatie the needs of all of our
customers, including clients, visitors, publishensg other business partners. We leverage theigliasnto
better results, higher customer satisfaction amdpetitive advantage.

5. Prioritization. We work on what is most important to achievingr@any objectives next. If not clear,
we discuss and evaluate competing demands. Weeaig\e about what we will not do. We stop workomg
things that no longer adequately advance the bssine

6. Urgency. We worry constantly about making enough progriest,enough, and that the systems,
products and programs that we touch are workingecdy so that we do not lose time. We know ourlg@ad
measure our progress toward them daily.

7. Progress. We are pioneers. We generate hypotheses anddealstons based on facts and analysis, as
well as intuition. We know that there will be fais in the pursuit of rapid progress. We learn ffailures on
short cycle times and iterate our way to success.

8. Agility. We prize creativity and flexibility. We innovatenstantly. We embrace new ideas and
approaches as opportunities to improve our perfoo@®r work environment. We adapt often and quitily
changing client, market and competitive dynamics. Msist pride of authorship; it limits progresse WAttively
benchmark and work to understand and employ intemexternal best practices and successes.

9. Recognition. We are a meritocracy. Advancement and recogniterearned through contribution and
performance, including helping others to achievé murturing the best Company culture. We celebgatgh
other’s victories and efforts. We abhor office fioi and never take an action just to advanceisifest or
self-promotion.

10. Fun. We believe that work, done well, can and shoeldun. We strive to create an upbeat,
supportive environment and try not to take oursete® seriously. We do not have time for negatiyism
pessimism or nay saying.

Clients

In fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, our top 28nts accounted for 62%, 65% and 68% of net revenue,
respectively. One of our largest current clientsVBy Inc., accounted for 19% of net revenue indigear 2009. In
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fiscal years 2011 and 2010, no client comprisedentioan 10% of annual net revenue. Since our sewasefirst
offered in 2001, we have developed a broad clieselwith many multi-year relationships. We entéy internet
marketing contracts with our clients, most of whigk cancelable with little or no prior notice.dddition, these
contracts do not contain penalty provisions foraediation before the end of the contract term.

Sales and Marketing

We have an internal sales team that consists ofostegs focused on signing new clients and accoamagers
who maintain and seek to increase our businessexitting clients. Our sales people and accounigers are
each focused on a patrticular client vertical so they develop an expertise in the marketing ne¢asir clients in
that particular vertical.

Our marketing programs include attendance at tshdes and conferences and limited advertising.

Technology and Infrastructure

We have developed a suite of technologies to mariageove and measure the results of the marketing
programs we offer our clients. We use a combinadifoproprietary and third-party software as welhasdware
from established technology vendors. We use speethkoftware for client management, building arahaging
websites, acquiring and managing media, managinghand-party publishers, and the matching of Intdrvisitors
to our marketing clients. We have invested sigaifity in these technologies and plan to continugotso to meet
the demands of our clients and Internet visitarsnecrease the scalability of our operations, amfteece
management information systems and analytics iroparations. Our development teams work closeli witr
marketing and operating teams to develop applicatand systems that can be used across our budiméssal
years 2011, 2010 and 2009, we spent $24.2 mil§a8,7 million and $14.9 million, respectively, oroduct
development.

Our primary data center is at a third-party co-tmsacenter in San Francisco, California. All oétéritical
components of the system are redundant and weehbaekup data center in Las Vegas, Nevada. We have
implemented these backup systems and redundanamisitmize the risk associated with earthquakes, fiower
loss, telecommunications failure, and other evbai®nd our control.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of trade secret, trademasfyright and patent laws in the United Statebather
jurisdictions together with confidentiality agreemt®and technical measures to protect the confalénptof our
proprietary rights. We currently have two paterlmations pending in the United States and noedguatents. We
rely much more heavily on trade secret protectimmtpatent protection. To protect our trade secnascontrol
access to our proprietary systems and technolodeater into confidentiality and invention assigminagreements
with our employees and consultants and confidetytiagreements with other third parties. QuinStiset registere
trademark in the United States and other jurisoiiti We also have registered and unregisterednrads for the
names of many of our websites and we own the doneagistrations for our many website domains.

Our Competitors

Our primary competition falls into two categoriestvertising and direct marketing services ageneied,onlin
marketing and media companies. We compete for basion the basis of a number of factors includétgrn on
marketing expenditures, price, access to targetstianability to deliver large volumes or precigeds of customer
prospects, and reliability.

Advertising and direct marketing services agencies

Online and offline advertising and direct marketsggvices agencies control the majority of thedastient
marketing spending for which we primarily compede, while they are sometimes our competitors, agsrare
also often our clients. We compete with agenciestttect marketing budget or spending from offlioens to the
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Internet or, once designated to be spent onlineetspent with us versus the agency or by the ggeitls others.
When spending online, agencies spend with QuinSaree with portals, other websites and ad networks.

Online marketing and media companies

We compete with other Internet marketing and medrapanies, in many forms, for online marketing atdg
Most of these competitors compete with us in onica. Examples include BankRate in the finansilvices
client vertical and Halyard Education Partnershie ¢ducation client vertical. Some of our compatithlso comes
from agencies or clients spending directly witlgirwebsites or portals, including Google, YahdtSN, and
AOL.

Government Regulation

Advertising and promotional information presentedisitors on our websites and our other markegiciiyities
are subject to federal and state consumer protefztios that regulate unfair and deceptive practicasre are a
variety of state and federal restrictions on thekaeiing activities conducted by telephone, the raalhy email, or
over the internet, including the Telemarketing S&elle, state telemarketing laws, federal and giaacy laws,
the CAN-SPAM Act, and the Federal Trade Commisgiohand its accompanying regulations and guidelifres
addition, some of our clients operate in regulateldistries, particularly in our financial serviceslucation and
medical verticals. In our education client vertjaalr clients are subject to the U.S. Higher Edocaf\ct, which,
among other things, prohibits incentive compensaitiarecruiting students. The Department of Eduraissued
final regulations on incentive compensation aneothatters which become effective July 1, 2011. The
Department’s regulations repeal all safe harbaganding incentive compensation which existed utideprior
regulations, including the safe harbor for Intefbased recruiting and admissions activities. Tlgellegions state
that payment for contact information or consuméicks” do not constitute incentive compensationgarposes of
the Higher Education Act provided that there isommission, bonus or other incentive payment bdgedtly or
indirectly upon success in securing enrollmentswitbstanding the foregoing, these regulations danlpact how
we are paid for leads by clients in our educatignt vertical and could also impact our educatibents and their
marketing practices. In addition, the same regutastimpose strict liability on educational instituns for
misrepresentations made by entities, like us, windract with the institutions to provide marketisgyvices. As a
result, our clients have demanded and we have @godge subject to increased limitations of lidkiln our
contracts as well as indemnification for actionsoly third-party publishers. Other regulations,tsas the
regulations on “gainful employment” that becomeeefive on July 1, 2012 will restrict Federal finataid to
students in programs where certain debt-to-incaties and loan default rates are not satisfiedldclimit our
clients’ businesses and, therefore, ours. In aumntial services vertical, the U.S. Real Estatde®eent Procedures
Act, or RESPA, regulates the payments that may &aento mortgage brokers. While we do not engagieein
activities of a traditional mortgage broker, we Btensed as a mortgage broker in 24 states fopolime marketing
activities. Our insurance business is also higabutated and we are a licensed insurance ageliffiftyestates. In
our medical client vertical, our medical device augplies clients are subject to state and feaaralkickback
statutes that prohibit payment for referrals. Whikebelieve our matching of prospective custometis aur clients
and the manner in which we are paid for these iéiesvcomplies with these and other applicable la&gns, these
rules and regulations in many cases were not dpedlwith online marketing in mind and their appititidy is not
always clear. The rules and regulations are comgekmay be subject to different interpretationsdyrts or other
governmental authorities. We might unintentionailyiate such laws, such laws may be modified amd lagvs may
be enacted in the future. Any such developmentdéeelopments stemming from enactment or modificedif
other laws) or the failure to anticipate accuratbly application or interpretation of these lawsldareate liability
to us and result in adverse publicity.

Employees

As of June 30, 2011, we had 675 employees, whiosisted of 207 employees in product development and
engineering, 64 in sales and marketing, 57 in gdraerd administration and 347 in operations. Ndneuo
employees is represented by a labor union.
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Available Information

We file reports with the Securities and Exchangen@dssion (“SEC”), including annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curmeorts on Form 8-K and any other filings requibgadhe SEC.
We make available free of charge on our websitéhagdnvestor relations page on www.quinstreet.comannual
report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10z@trent reports on Form 8-K, and all amendmemtbdse
reports as soon as reasonably practicable aftarmeaterial is electronically filed with or furnisthéo the SEC. We
also webcast our earnings calls and certain evemtsost with members of the investment communitpon
investor relations page. The content of our websitet intended to be incorporated by referente tims report or
in any other report or document we file and angnefice to this website is intended to be inactwxéual references
only.

The public may read and copy any materials we/fite the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The puhbgy obtain information on the operation of the Rubl
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0BB8 SEC maintains an Internet site
(http://www.sec.govihat contains reports, proxy and information staets, and other information regarding iss
that file electronically with the SEC.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The name of and certain information regarding edabur current executive officers as of June 3@,128re set

forth below.

Name Age Position

Douglas Valent 51 Chief Executive Officer and Chairmi
Bronwyn Syiek 47 President and Chief Operating Offic
Kenneth Haht 44 Chief Financial Officel

Tom Cheli 40 Executive Vice Presidel

Scott Mackley 38 Executive Vice Presidel

Nina Bhanay 38 Chief Technology Office

Daniel Caul 45 General Counst

Timothy Steven: 44  Senior Vice Presidel

Douglas Valenthas served as our Chief Executive Officer and mermabeur board of directors since July 1!
and as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officecesilarch 2004. Prior to QuinStreet, Mr. Valentiveet as a
partner at Rosewood Capital, a venture capital, fionfive years; at McKinsey & Company as a stggteonsultant
and engagement manager for three years; at P@&eamble in various management roles for threesjeand for
the U.S. Navy as a nuclear submarine officer fag fiears. He holds a Bachelors degree in Indu&rigineering
from the Georgia Institute of Technology, wheregheduated with highest honors and was named theg(aebech
Outstanding Senior in 1982, and an M.B.A. from $tanford Graduate School of Business, where heawdsjay
Miller Scholar.

Bronwyn Syiekas served as our President and Chief OperatiriggDffince February 2007 and member of our
board of directors since January 2011, as our @ygefrating Officer from April 2004 to February 20@% Senior
Vice President from September 2000 to April 20G4Y&e President from her start date in March 2200
September 2000 and as a consultant to us froml®99 to March 2000. Prior to joining us, Ms. Sysskved as
Director of Business Development and member ofEkecutive Committee at De La Rue Plc, a bankndtgipg
and security product company, for three years.@aeiously served as a strategy consultant andgamgent
manager at McKinsey & Company for four years and karious investment management and banking paositi
with Lloyds Bank and Charterhouse Bank. She hotdslaA. in Natural Sciences from Cambridge Universit the
United Kingdom.

Kenneth Hahrhas served as our Chief Financial Officer sincet&aper 2006. Prior to joining us, Mr. Hahn
served as Chief Financial Officer of Borland Softev€orporation, a public software company, fromtSeyber
2002 to July 2006. Previously, Mr. Hahn servedaniaus roles, including Chief Financial Officer, Bttensity,
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Inc., a public software company, for five yearsaadrategy consultant at the Boston Consultingu@rfor three
years; and as an audit manager at Price Waterhaymdlic accounting firm, for five years. He hol8.A. in
Business from California State University Fullertsamma cum laude, and an M.B.A. from the Stantaraduate
School of Business, where he was an Arjay Millen@&ar. Mr. Hahn is also a Certified Public Accouritéinactive)
licensed in the state of California.

Tom Chelihas served as our Executive Vice President sinbeuBgy 2007, as Senior Vice President from
December 2004 to February 2007, as Vice Presideddles from January 2001 to December 2004 andrastBr
of Sales from February 2000 to January 2001. Roigsining us, Mr. Cheli served as Director of bhsiSales and
Sales Operations at Collagen Aesthetics Corporatinraesthetic biomedical device company, and gfoRal Sale
Manager at Akorn Ophthalmics, Inc., a specialtyrpteceutical company. He holds a B.A. in Sports Miedi from
the University of the Pacific.

Scott Mackleyas served as our Executive Vice President sinbeuBgey 2007, as Senior Vice President from
December 2004 to February 2007, as Vice Presidemt June 2003 to December 2004, as Senior Diréctor
February 2002 to June 2003, as Director from O¢t@PB80 to February 2002 and as Senior Manager, diktw
Management from May 2000 to October 2000. Prigoitsing us, Mr. Mackley served at Salomon Brothemsl
Salomon Smith Barney, in various roles in their Bg@irading unit and Investment Banking and Eq@igpital
Markets divisions over four years. He holds a BrAEconomics from Washington and Lee University.

Nina Bhanaghas served as our Chief Technology Officer sindg 2009, as our Senior Vice President of
Engineering from November 2006 to July 2009, as\Rcesident of Product Development from Januaryt 200
November 2006, as Senior Director from January 20Q&nuary 2004 and as Director of Product Manage
from October 2001 to January 2003. Prior to joinisgMs. Bhanap served as Head of Fixed IncomesSale
Technology for Europe at Morgan Stanley for fivaggeand as a senior associate at Booz Allen Hamfitoone
year. She holds a B.S. in Computer Science withdrofrom Imperial College, University of London,caan
M.B.A. from the London Business School.

Daniel Caulhas served as our General Counsel since Janua8y Pfi0r to joining us, Mr. Caul served as
General Counsel for the Search and Media divisidA@/InterActiveCorp, an Internet search and adigérg
company, from September 2006 to January 2008, aadtp the acquisition by IAC/InterActiveCorp, hes
Assistant General Counsel of Ask Jeeves, Inc. freforuary 2003 to September 2006. Previously, Mul @as an
attorney with Howard, Rice, Nemerovsky, CanadykRald Rabkin, a corporate law firm, for four yearsl served
as a U.S. District Court clerk. He holds a B.APinlitical Science from Vanderbilt University, sumeam laude,
and a J.D. from the Harvard Law School, magna audé. Mr. Caul was also a Fulbright Scholar.

Timothy Stevensas served as our Senior Vice President since ©cfi08. Prior to joining us, Mr. Stevens
served as President and CEO of Doppelganger,dn@nline social entertainment studio, from Jan2ag7 to
October 2008. Prior to Doppelganger, Mr. Stevemngeskas General Counsel for Borland Software Ceatpanm, a
software company, from October 2003 to June 2088:i&usly, he served in various executive managémudes,
including most recently as Senior Vice Presidertofporate Development, at Inktomi Corporation|reernet
infrastructure company, during his six year ten@mviously, Mr. Stevens was an attorney with Wil§onsini
Goodrich & Rosati, a corporate law firm, for sixays. He holds a B.S. in both Finance and Manageframtthe
University of Oregon, summa cum laude, and a Y@nfthe University of California at Davis, Ordertbg Coif.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degrferisk. You should carefully consider the ridkscribed
below and the other information in this report oarf 10-K. If any of such risks actually occur, dwsiness,
operating results or financial condition could beévarsely affected. In those cases, the tradingepsfoour common
stock could decline and you may lose all or payair investment.
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Risks Related to Our Business and Industr

We operate in an immature industry and have a rélaty new business model, which makes it diffictdt
evaluate our business and prospects.

We derive nearly all of our revenue from the sdlerdine marketing and media services, which isnamature
industry that has undergone rapid and dramaticgdem its short history. The industry in which egerate is
characterized by rapidly-changing Internet media)\éng industry standards, and changing user diedtc
demands. Our business model is also evolving aditisict from many other companies in our indusényd it may
not be successful. As a result of these factoesfuture revenue and income potential of our bissing uncertain.
Although we have experienced significant revenuawijn in recent periods, we may not be able to sustarent
revenue levels or growth rates. Any evaluationwflousiness and our prospects must be considetphtrof these
factors and the risks and uncertainties often emewsad by companies in an immature industry witkeawslving
business model such as ours. Some of these riskgranertainties relate to our ability to:

« maintain and expand client relationshi
* sustain and increase the number of visitors toxmbsites
« sustain and grow relationships with tl-party website publishers and other sources of vigtoxs;

¢ manage our expanding operations and implemsghimprove our operational, financial and manageme
controls;

» overcome challenges presented by adverselgtabaomic conditions as they impact spending inatient
verticals;

* raise capital at attractive costs, or at

 acquire and integrate websites and other businge

 successfully expand our footprint in our existitigrtt verticals and enter new client vertici

» respond effectively to competition and potentiajaieve effects of competition on profit margil

* attract and retain qualified management, emplogedsndependent service provide

« successfully introduce new processes and techresl@gid upgrade our existing technologies and &,
« protect our proprietary technology and intellectuaperty rights; an

« respond to government regulations relatinth&lnternet, marketing in our client verticalsygmnal data
protection, email, software technologies and o#tsprects of our busine

If we are unable to address these risks, our bssjmesults of operations and prospects couldrsuffe

We depend upon Internet search companies to atti@asignificant portion of the visitors to our wehss, and
any change in the search companies’ search algomith or perception of us or our industry could resit our
websites being listed less prominently in eithergbar algorithmic search result listings, in whichase the
number of visitors to our websites and our revercauld decline.

We depend in significant part on various Interregtresh companies, such as Google, Microsoft and &akhod
other search websites to direct a significant nurobgisitors to our websites to provide our onlmarketing
services to our clients. Search websites typiqaibvide two types of search results, algorithmid paid listings.
Algorithmic, or organic, listings are determinediatisplayed solely by a set of formulas designeddarch
companies. Paid listings can be purchased andatteedisplayed if particular words are included usar’s Internet
search. Placement in paid listings is generallydedermined solely on the bid price, but also tak&saccount the
search enginesissessment of the quality of the website featurdéld paid listing and other factors. We rely othl
algorithmic and paid search results, as well agdibing on other websites, to direct a substastiate of the
visitors to our websites.
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Our ability to maintain the number of visitors toravebsites from search websites and other wehisitest
entirely within our control. For example, Interseiarch websites frequently revise their algoritimren attempt to
optimize their search result listings or to maintiieir internal standards and strategies. Chainge algorithms
could cause our websites to receive less favogdhtments, which could reduce the number of uskesvisit our
websites. We have experienced fluctuations in ¢aech result rankings for a number of our websBesne of our
sites and paid listing campaigns have been nedgiivpacted by Google algorithmic changes. In additour
business model may be deemed similar to thoserat@upetitors and others in our industry that Imétisearch
websites may consider to be unsuitable or unaitednternet search websites could deem our combbeme
unsuitable or below standards or less attractiweasthy than those of other or competing websitegither such
case, our websites may receive less favorable iplaickin algorithmic or paid listings, or both.

In addition, we may make decisions that are submdtregarding the purchase of paid listings orpgroprietary
bid management technologies may contain defeatth@rwise fail to achieve their intended resulihex of which
could also reduce the number of visitors to oursitels or cause us to incur additional costs. We afsy make
decisions that are suboptimal regarding the plaoewieadvertisements on other websites and priairigch could
increase our costs to attract such visitors oreaissto incur unnecessary costs. A reduction imtheber of visitors
to our websites could negatively affect our abiliyearn revenue. If visits to our websites de@eag may need to
resort to more costly sources to replace lostassjtand such increased expense could adverselst affir business
and profitability.

A substantial portion of our revenue is generatedn a limited number of clients and, if we lose aajuor client,
our revenue will decrease and our business and pexsts would be adversely impacted.

A substantial portion of our revenue is generatethfa limited number of clients. Our top three mige
accounted for 20% of our net revenue for the figealr ended June 30, 2011. Our clients can gepdeathinate
their contracts with us at any time, with limitedaqp notice or penalty. Our clients may reduce theiel of business
with us, leading to lower revenue. In addition,uetibns in business by one or more significanintieof our
programs may lead to price reductions to our othients for those products whose prices are detexehin whole o
in part by client bidding or competition, resultiimglower revenue. We expect that a limited nundfeglients will
continue to account for a significant percentagewfrevenue, and the loss of, or material redadtiptheir
marketing spending with us could decrease our evemd harm our business.

There is significant activity and uncertainty in thregulatory and legislative environment for therfprofit
education sector. These regulatory or legislativeaoges could negatively affect our clients’ busiises,
marketing practices and budgets and could impacitr@ed, pricing or form of our services, any or alf which
could have a material adverse impact on our finaacresults.

We generate nearly half of our revenue from ourcatian client vertical and nearly all of that reueris
generated from for-profit educational institutiofere is intense governmental interest in andtisgrof the for-
profit education industry and a high degree of foon marketing practices in the industry. The Depant of
Education has promulgated proposed and final régukathat could adversely impact us and our edorcatients.
The intense focus on the for-profit education indusould result in further regulatory or legisiatiaction. We
cannot predict whether this will happen or whatithpact could be on our financial results.

The Higher Education Act, administered by the UD8partment of Education, provides that to be eligib
participate in Federal student financial aid proggaan educational institution must enter into@pam
participation agreement with the Secretary of tlep@itment of Education. The agreement includesvbeu of
conditions with which an institution must complylie granted initial and continuing eligibility tagticipate.
Among those conditions is a prohibition on instins providing to any individual or entity engagedecruiting or
admission activities any commission, bonus, or oifieentive payment based directly or indirectlysorecess in
securing enrollments. The Department of Educatsuoed final regulations on incentive compensati@hather
matters which became effective July 1, 2011. Thpdbtent's regulations repeal all safe harborsroing
incentive compensation which existed under therpggulations, including the safe harbor for Inttrbased
recruiting and admissions activities. The elimioatof the safe harbors could create uncertaintygosind our
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education clients and impact the way in which weegaid by our clients and, accordingly, could redine amount
of revenue we generate from the education cliertioczs.

In addition, the same regulations impose striddiliiy on educational institutions for misrepresaiins made
by entities, like us, who contract with the indiibas to provide marketing services. As a result,@ients have
demanded and we have agreed to be subject to sectdiaitations of liability in our contracts as las
indemnification for actions by our third-party pigblers. We could be subject to costly litigation alamage to our
reputation, if we are unsuccessful in defendingelwes, damages for our violation of any applicabtilation and
the unauthorized or unlawful acts of third-partybsite publishers.

Other existing and proposed regulations could reglgitimpact our for-profit education clients. Fexample,
the regulations on “gainful employment” that woudstrict or eliminate federal financial aid to statk in programs
where certain debt-to-income ratios and loan defatés are not satisfied could result in the eletipn or reduction
in some of our clients’ programs. Over the past yearoliments have dropped significantly at sorheur clients,
caused in part by changes being made in anticipatithe implementation of this regulation. In adumi, some of
our large for-profit education clients have indedhthat in coming years they may violate the “901il8,” whereby
for-profit institutions must receive at least 1@qent of their revenue from sources other thanriddgudent
financial aid. If a for-profit institution fails toomply with the rule for two consecutive fiscahys, it may lose its
eligibility to receive student-aid funds for at $¢&wo years. These and other regulations or arfaif our clients to
comply with such regulations, could adversely affaa clients’ businesses and, as a result, affentaterially
reduce the amount of revenue we generate from ttl@sds.

Moreover, some of our education clients have hadnaay in the future have issues regarding theidecéc
accreditation, which could adversely affect théitigy to offer certain degree programs. If anyonir significant
education clients lose their accreditation, they megluce or eliminate their marketing spending,cfdould
adversely affect our financial results.

Any of the aforementioned regulatory or legislatiigks could cause some or all of our educatioentsi to
significantly shrink or even to cease doing bussnesich could have a material adverse effect arfinancial
results.

We are dependent on two market verticals for a néyoof our revenue. Negative changes in the ecoriom
condition, market dynamics or regulatory environmieim one or both of these verticals could cause sawvenue
to decline and our business and growth could suffer

To date, we have generated a majority of our reedéram clients in our education and financial seesiclient
verticals. We expect that a majority of our reveiruthe near term will continue to be generatednfidients in our
education and financial services client verticBlsanges in the market conditions or the regulagéomjironment in
these two highly-regulated client verticals mayategly impact our clients’ businesses, marketirgcpces and
budgets and, therefore, adversely affect our firmesults.

Our operating results have fluctuated in the pasicamay do so in the future, which makes our resutifs
operations difficult to predict and could cause ooperating results to fall short of analysts’ andvestors’
expectations.

While we have experienced revenue growth, our grimarterly and annual operating results have fateit due
to changes in our business, our industry and thergéeconomic climate. Similarly, our future oferg results ma
vary significantly from quarter to quarter due teaaiety of factors, many of which are beyond oamtcol. Our
fluctuating results could cause our performandeetelow the expectations of securities analysismarestors,
causing the price of our common stock to fall. Beseaour business is changing and evolving, ouoticsi
operating results may not be useful to you in ptaatj our future operating results. Factors thay marease the
volatility of our operating results include theltaling:

» changes in demand and pricing for our servi

« changes in our pricing policies, the pricing pa&if our competitors, or the pricing of Interngtertising o
media;
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« the addition of new clients or the loss of existatignts;

< changes in our clients’ advertising agenciethe marketing strategies our clients or theireatising
agencies employ

« changes in the regulatory environment for us oratients;

» changes in the economic prospects of our tslienthe economy generally, which could alter entior
prospective clients’ spending priorities, or couldrease the time or costs required to completssaith
clients;

« changes in the availability of Internet advertisorghe cost to reach Internet visitc
« changes in the placement of our websites on sesugimes
« the introduction of new product or service offesray our competitors; ar

* costs related to acquisitions of businesses ontdogies.

Our future growth depends on part on our ability tdentify and complete acquisitions. Any acquistig®that we
pursue or complete will involve a number of riskéwe are unable to address and resolve these risks
successfully, such acquisition activity could harmur business, results of operations and financialradition.

Our growth over the past several years is in sicgnit part due to the large number of acquisitwashave
completed of third-party website publishing bussessand other businesses that are complementawy twn. We
intend to evaluate and pursue additional acquisitiof complementary businesses and technologiespand our
capabilities, client base and media. We have alatuated, and expect to continue to evaluate, & widay of
potential strategic transactions. However, we matybe successful in identifying suitable acquisitcandidates or
be able to complete acquisitions of such candid&tesddition, we may not be able to obtain finagodbn favorable
terms, or at all, to fund acquisitions that we magh to pursue. The anticipated benefit of acqoisg that we
complete may not materialize and the process efating acquired businesses or technologies nemtecr
unforeseen operating difficulties and expendituBzsne of the areas where we may face acquisitiateckrisks
include:

« diversion of management time and potential busidessiptions
« difficulties integrating and supporting acquiredgucts or technologie

« disruptions or reductions in client revenussagiated with changes to the business modelsyoirad
businesses

« expenses, distractions and potential claims reguftom acquisitions, whether or not they are cataa;
« retaining and integrating employees from any bissiae we may acquir
* issuance of dilutive equity securities, incurrentdebt or reduction in cash balanc

* integrating various accounting, managemefiyimation, human resource and other systems toiperm
effective managemer

« incurring possible impairment charges, contingettilities, amortization expense or w-offs of goodwiill;
« unexpected capital expenditure requireme

« insufficient revenue to offset increased expensses@ated with acquisition

« underperformance problems associated with acouisitianc

* becoming involved in acquisiti-related litigation
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Foreign acquisitions involve risks in addition kimsée mentioned above, including those relatedtémration of
operations across different cultures and languaggsgncy risks and the particular economic, peaiti
administrative and management, and regulatory asksciated with specific countries. We may ncaltile to
address these risks successfully, or at all, withmurring significant costs, delay or other opigig problems. Our
inability to resolve such risks could harm our Ibesis and results of operations.

If we are unable to retain the members of our maregent team or attract and retain qualified manageme
team members in the future, our business and growtiuld suffer.

Our success and future growth depend, to a sigmifidegree, on the continued contributions of teenlvers of
our management team. Each member of our managéeaentis an at-will employee and may voluntarilyrarate
his or her employment with us at any time with mial notice. We also may need to hire additional agament
team members to adequately manage our growing dassiiVe may not be able to retain or identify airdet
additional qualified management team members. Cttigrefor experienced management-level personmekir
industry is intense. Qualified individuals are igthdemand, particularly in the Internet marketingustry, and we
may incur significant costs to attract and rethient. Members of our management team have also leeaymwill
soon become, substantially vested in their sto¢longrants. Management team members may be nialy tio
leave as a result of the recent establishmenipoibdic market for our common stock. If we lose $ieevices of any
member of our management team or if we are unaldt¢itact and retain additional qualified seniomagers, our
business and growth could suffer.

We need to hire and retain additional qualified mamnel to grow and manage our business. If we arable to
attract and retain qualified personnel, our businegand growth could be seriously harmed.

Our performance depends on the talents and effbdar employees. Our future success will dependum
ability to attract, retain and motivate highly $kil personnel in all areas of our organization amgarticular, in our
engineering/technology, sales and marketing, médince and legal/regulatory teams. We plan tdinae to grow
our business and will need to hire additional pensbto support this growth. We have found it difft from time tc
time to locate and hire suitable personnel. If wgegience similar difficulties in the future, ourogvth may be
hindered. Qualified individuals are in high demapaiiticularly in the Internet marketing industrmdave may incur
significant costs to attract and retain them. Mahgur employees have also become, or will soomimes
substantially vested in their stock option graBisiployees may be more likely to leave us as ate$tihe
establishment of a public market for our commorwlstdf we are unable to attract and retain the gramsl we need
to succeed, our business and growth could be harmed

We depend on third-party website publishers forignéficant portion of our visitors, and any declina the
supply of media available through these websitesrmrease in the price of this media could causer eavenue
to decline or our cost to reach visitors to increas

A significant portion of our revenue is attributalwd visitors originating from arrangements thathege with
third-party websites. In many instances, website pubiésban change the media inventory they make avaitahus
at any time and, therefore, impact our revenuadudition, website publishers may place signifigastrictions on
our offerings. These restrictions may prohibit atigements from specific clients or specific indigst, or restrict
the use of certain creative content or formata. Website publisher decides not to make media tovgmvailable to
us, or decides to demand a higher revenue shanleaes significant restrictions on the use of Sngkntory, we
may not be able to find advertising inventory frother websites that satisfy our requirements imaly and cost-
effective manner. In addition, the number of corimgebnline marketing service providers and advertighat
acquire inventory from websites continues to insee&onsolidation of Internet advertising netwakd website
publishers could eventually lead to a concentradibdesirable inventory on a small number of wedssdr networks
which could limit the supply of inventory availalife us or increase the price of inventory to us.dafenot assure
you that we will be able to acquire advertisingantory that meets our cliel performance, price and quality
requirements. If any of these things occur, ouenexe could decline or our operating costs may asge
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If we do not effectively manage our growth, our apéing performance will suffer and we may lose atis.

We have experienced rapid growth in our operatasoperating locations, and we expect to expegienc
further growth in our business, both through adtjaiss and internally. This growth has placed, anlicontinue to
place, significant demands on our management andp®rational and financial infrastructure. In gadar,
continued rapid growth and acquisitions may makedte difficult for us to accomplish the following:

* successfully scale our technology to accommodédegar business and integrate acquisitic

e maintain our standing with key vendors, inaghgdinternet search companies and third-party websi
publishers

* maintain our client service standards; i

« develop and improve our operational, finanaia management controls and maintain adequatetirepo
systems and procedurt

In addition, our personnel, systems, procedurescanttols may be inadequate to support our futpegations.
The improvements required to manage our growthreglire us to make significant expenditures, egpé&main anc
manage our employee base and allocate valuablegmangat resources. If we fail to effectively managegrowth,
our operating performance will suffer and we maselalients, key vendors and key personnel.

We may need additional capital in the future to nte@air financial obligations and to pursue our buséss
objectives. Additional capital may not be availaldemay not be available on favorable terms and duwrsiness
and financial condition could therefore be advergadffected.

While we anticipate that our existing cash and @ghivalents, together with availability under euisting
credit facility and cash from operations, will heficient to fund our operations for at least thexih12 months, we
may need to raise additional capital to fund openatin the future or to finance acquisitions. & seek to raise
additional capital in order to meet various objeesi, including developing future technologies amises,
increasing working capital, acquiring businesseabsrasponding to competitive pressures, capital nuybe
available on favorable terms or may not be avalablall. In addition, pursuant to the terms of cnedit facility, we
are required to use a portion of the net proceédertain equity financings to repay the outstagdialance of our
term loan. Lack of sufficient capital resourcesldaignificantly limit our ability to take advantagf business and
strategic opportunities. Any additional capitaked through the sale of equity or debt securitigls &n equity
component would dilute our stock ownership. If agsg additional funds are not available, we mayeleired to
delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate mategatispof our business strategy, including potetiflitional
acquisitions or development of new technologies.

We have incurred a significant amount of debt, whienay limit our ability to fund general corporate
requirements and obtain additional financing, limiaur flexibility in responding to business opportities and
competitive developments and increase our vulneligbto adverse economic and industry conditions.

As of June 30, 2011, we had an outstanding term\ath a principal balance of $30.2 million andexalving
credit line pursuant to which we can borrow upradditional $190.0 million. As of June 30, 201% kad drawn
$66.6 million from our revolving credit line. As efich date, we also had outstanding notes to sellesing from
numerous acquisitions in the total principal amafr$811.0 million. As a result of our debt:

« we may not have sufficient liquidity to resplaio business opportunities, competitive developgmand
adverse economic conditior

« we may not have sufficient liquidity to fund all thfese costs if our revenue declines or costs aseseanc
« we may not have sufficient funds to repay the ppialcbalance of our debt when di

Our debt obligations may also impair our abilityotatain additional financing, if needed. Our ingshtess is
secured by substantially all of our assets, leausmwith limited collateral for additional finanginMoreover, the
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terms of our indebtedness restrict our abilityaicet certain actions, including the incurrence afigahal
indebtedness, mergers and acquisitions, investnaaadtssset sales. In addition, even if we aretahlaise needed
equity financing, we are required to use a portibthe net proceeds of certain types of equityrfaiags to repay
the outstanding balance of our term loan. A faikarpay interest or indebtedness when due couldtriesa variety
of adverse consequences, including the accelerationr indebtedness. In such a situation, it i&kety that we
would be able to fulfill our obligations under atnedit facility or repay the accelerated indebtesdnar otherwise
cover our costs.

The severe economic downturn in the United Stati goses additional risks to our business, finaat
condition and results of operations.

The United States has experienced a severe ecomonvitturn and significant uncertainty about theneeic
outlook remains. The slow pace of recovery in tmitédl States, deterioration of global economietemttal
insolvency of one or more countries globally, higfemployment and reduced equity valuations alltergaks that
could harm our business. If macroeconomic conditieare to worsen, we are not able to predict thmaohsuch
worsening conditions will have on the online maikgindustry in general, and our results of opersispecifically
Clients in particular client verticals such as finel services, particularly mortgage, credit caadd deposits, small-
and medium-sized business customers and home sgmafie facing very difficult conditions and theianketing
spend has been negatively affected. These consglitionld also damage our business opportunitiesigtireg
markets, and reduce our revenue and profitabllitiiile the effect of these and related conditionsgsowvidespread
risk across our business, we believe that it matiquéarly affect our efforts in the mortgage, dtechrds and
deposits, small- and medium-sized business and lsemées client verticals, due to reduced avditstof credit
for households and business and reduced houseisplosdble income. Economic conditions may not imeror
may worsen.

Poor perception of our business or industry as aué of the actions of third parties could harm oueputation
and adversely affect our business, financial condit and results of operations.

Our business is dependent on attracting a largéeuof visitors to our websites and providing leadd clicks
to our clients, which depends in part on our rejortawithin the industry and with our clients. Theare companies
within our industry that regularly engage in adtes that our clients’ customers may view as unldwf
inappropriate. These activities, such as spywadeoeptive promotions, by third parties may be $sedients as
characteristic of participants in our industry atidrefore, may have an adverse effect on the aépuatof all
participants in our industry, including us. Any dage to our reputation, including from publicity findegal
proceedings against us or companies that work mvdhi industry, governmental proceedings, consuwfass actio
litigation, or the disclosure of information sedyibbreaches or private information misuse, coubldeasely affect ou
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our quarterly revenue and operating results may dluate significantly from quarter to quarter due ®easona
fluctuations in advertising spending.

Our results are subject to significant fluctuatéena result of seasonality. In particular, our tgrarending
December 31 (our second fiscal quarter) generaligahstrate seasonal weakness. In our second digagkrs,
there is generally lower availability of lead supfiom some forms of media during the holiday perm a cost
effective basis and some of our clients requesefdeads due to holiday staffing. Our fluctuatiegults could cau:
our performance to be below the expectations afr#ézs analysts and investors, causing the pri@pcommon
stock to fall. To the extent our rate of growthvedp we expect that the seasonality in our busimessbecome more
apparent and may in the future cause our operagmgts to fluctuate to a greater extent.

If we fail to compete effectively against other amdé marketing and media companies and other comiuest, we
could lose clients and our revenue may decline.

The market for online marketing is intensely contpgt. We expect this competition to continue torgase in
the future. We perceive only limited barriers targno the online marketing industry. We compet¢htior clients
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and for limited high quality advertising inventole compete for clients on the basis of a numbéaaibrs,
including return on marketing expenditures, praneg client service.

We compete with Internet and traditional media canigs for a share of clients’ overall marketing dpetd,
including:

« online marketing or media services providershsas Halyard Education Partners in the educatient
vertical and BankRate in the financial servicesrdlivertical;

« offline and online advertising agencit

* major Internet portals and search engine caoregavith advertising networks such as Google, 64hd SN,
and AOL;

« other online marketing service providers, ugithg online affiliate advertising networks andustty-specific
portals or lead generation compan

« website publishers with their own sales forces siedittheir online marketing services directly tects;
* in-house marketing groups at current or potentiahtdi

« offline direct marketing agencies; a

« television, radio and print companit

Competition for web traffic among websites and skea&ngines, as well as competition with traditiomaidia
companies, could result in significant price pressdeclining margins, reductions in revenue asd of market
share. In addition, as we continue to expand thpesof our services, we may compete with a greatarber of
websites, clients and traditional media companiesss an increasing range of different servicesuding in
vertical markets where competitors may have adgastén expertise, brand recognition and other ateage
Internet companies with brand recognition, suctkasgle, Yahoo!, MSN, and AOL, have significant nwarsof
direct sales personnel and substantial proprietdwertising inventory and web traffic that provalsignificant
competitive advantage and have significant impagpricing for Internet advertising and web traffihese
companies may also develop more vertically targpteducts that match consumers with products andces,
such as Google’'s mortgage rate and credit card adegn products, and thus compete with us morettirerhe
trend toward consolidation in the Internet advertjsarena may also affect pricing and availabitifyadvertising
inventory and web traffic. Many of our current gratential competitors also enjoy other competitideantages
over us, such as longer operating histories, gréatad recognition, larger client bases, greateess to advertisir
inventory on high-traffic websites, and signifidgrgreater financial, technical and marketing reses. As a result,
we may not be able to compete successfully. Cotiprefrom other marketing service providers’ ondanifline
offerings could affect both volume and price, amaistrevenue. If we fail to deliver results that superior to those
that other online marketing service providers aghjeve could lose clients and our revenue may necli

If the market for online marketing services fail® tcontinue to develop, our future growth may be iied and
our revenue may decrease.

The online marketing services market is relativedyv and rapidly evolving, and it uses different mgaments
than traditional media to gauge its effectiven&ssne of our current or potential clients haveditit no experience
using the Internet for advertising and marketingppses and have allocated only limited portionthefr advertisin
and marketing budgets to the Internet. The adoptfdnternet advertising, particularly by thoseites that have
historically relied upon traditional media for advsing, requires the acceptance of a new way oflaoting
business, exchanging information and evaluating agvertising and marketing technologies and sesvice
particular, we are dependent on our clients’ adoptif new metrics to measure the success of onmeréeting
campaigns. We may also experience resistance fiamitibnal advertising agencies who may be advising
clients. We cannot assure you that the marketribn® marketing services will continue to growthé market for
online marketing services fails to continue to deper develops more slowly than we anticipate, ahility to grow
our business may be limited and our revenue masedse.
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Third-party website publishers can engage in unauthorizedunlawful acts that could subject us to signiéiat
liability or cause us to lose clients.

We generate a significant portion of our web vistiiom media advertising that we purchase fromdtparty
website publishers. Some of these publishers d@rmared to display our clients’ brands, subjectéatractual
restrictions. In the past, some of our third-pavgbsite publishers have engaged in activitiesdlghin of our
clients have viewed as harmful to their brandshsasdisplaying outdated descriptions of a clieotfsrings or
outdated logos. Any activity by publishers thaents view as potentially damaging to their brarais fltarm our
relationship with the client and cause the clierterminate its relationship with us, resultingaifoss of revenue. In
addition, the law is unsettled on the extent dility that an advertiser in our position has foe tactivities of third-
party website publishers. Recent Department of Btioie regulations impose strict liability on ouruedtion clients
for misrepresentations made by their marketingiserproviders and many of our contracts in the atlan client
vertical impose liability on us for the acts of ahird-party publishers. We could be subject to costigdiion and, i
we are unsuccessful in defending ourselves, danfagése unauthorized or unlawful acts of third{yawebsite
publishers.

Because many of our client contracts can be canedlby the client with little prior notice or pengltthe
cancellation of one or more contracts could resiitan immediate decline in our revenue.

We derive our revenue from contracts with our Imé¢marketing clients, most of which are cancelabtk
little or no prior notice. In addition, these catts do not contain penalty provisions for cantieilabefore the end
of the contract term. The non-renewal, renegotmtiancellation, or deferral of large contractsa srumber of
contracts that in the aggregate account for afsignit amount of our revenue, is difficult to arp@ate and could
result in an immediate decline in our revenue.

Unauthorized access to or accidental disclosurecohsumer personally-identifiable information thatevcollect
may cause us to incur significant expenses and magatively affect our credibility and business.

There is growing concern over the security of peasinformation transmitted over the Internet, agnsr
identity theft and user privacy. Despite our impégrtation of security measures, our computer systeaysbe
susceptible to electronic or physical computer kiiea, viruses and other disruptions and securngabhes. Any
perceived or actual unauthorized disclosure ofqeaky-identifiable information regarding website visitovghethe
through breach of our network by an unauthorizatypamployee theft, misuse or error or otherwes®jld harm
our reputation, impair our ability to attract webstisitors and attract and retain our clientssuject us to claims
litigation arising from damages suffered by constanand thereby harm our business and operatingisemn
addition, we could incur significant costs in cogipy with the multitude of state, federal and fgrelaws regardin
the unauthorized disclosure of personal information

If we do not adequately protect our intellectualqerty rights, our competitive position and busisesay
suffer.

Our ability to compete effectively depends upon puaprietary systems and technology. We rely odera
secret, trademark and copyright law, confidentiaigreements, technical measures and patentstecpour
proprietary rights. We currently have two paterlajations pending in the United States and noddsuatents.
Effective trade secret, copyright, trademark anemigprotection may not be available in all cowegnvhere we
currently operate or in which we may operate inftliare. Some of our systems and technologies @reavered by
any copyright, patent or patent application. Wenodmguarantee that: (i) our intellectual propeights will provide
competitive advantages to us; (ii) our ability &sert our intellectual property rights against ptiéé competitors or
to settle current or future disputes will not bited by our agreements with third parties; (iiiy éntellectual
property rights will be enforced in jurisdictiondvere competition may be intense or where legakptmn may be
weak; (iv) any of the patents, trademarks, copysgtiade secrets or other intellectual propedhts that we
presently employ in our business will not lapsé®iinvalidated, circumvented, challenged, or abaadp
(v) competitors will not design around our protelcsgstems and technology; or (vi) that we will luste the ability
to assert our intellectual property rights agaoikers.
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We are a party to a number of third-party intellettproperty license agreements and in the futaes;, need to
obtain additional licenses or renew existing li@eagreements. We are unable to predict with ceytaihether thes
license agreements can be obtained or renewedrmomercially reasonable terms, or at all.

We have from time to time become aware of thirdieamwho we believe may have infringed on our iettlal
property rights. The use of our intellectual prapeights by others could reduce any competitivesatiage we hav
developed and cause us to lose clients, third-peetysite publishers or otherwise harm our busirfeskcing
unauthorized use of our proprietary rights canilfecdlt and costly. In addition, litigation, whilé may be
necessary to enforce or protect our intellectuaperty rights or to defend litigation brought agsins, could result
in substantial costs and diversion of resourcesnagadagement attention and could adversely affacbosiness,
even if we are successful on the merits.

Confidentiality agreements with employees, consaottaand others may not adequately prevent disclesof
trade secrets and other proprietary information.

We have devoted substantial resources to the dawelot of our proprietary systems and technologwrtter
to protect our proprietary systems and technolagyenter into confidentiality agreements with onmpdoyees,
consultants, independent contractors and othesadviThese agreements may not effectively pravesuithorized
disclosure of confidential information or unauttzed parties from copying aspects of our servicesbtaining and
using information that we regard as proprietaryrédwer, these agreements may not provide an adegraedy in
the event of such unauthorized disclosures of denfial information and we cannot assure you thatights unde
such agreements will be enforceable. In addititimers may independently discover trade secretpeoptietary
information, and in such cases we could not assgrtrade secret rights against such parties. Last time-
consuming litigation could be necessary to enfare determine the scope of our proprietary rigdntsl, failure to
obtain or maintain trade secret protection coutlioe any competitive advantage we have and causelase
clients, publishers or otherwise harm our business.

Third parties may sue us for intellectual properityfringement which, if successful, could require us pay
significant damages or curtail our offerings.

We cannot be certain that our internally-developedcquired systems and technologies do not andhatil
infringe the intellectual property rights of othehs addition, we license content, software anapthtellectual
property rights from third parties and may be satje claims of infringement if such parties do possess the
necessary intellectual property rights to the potslthey license to us. We have in the past andimgne future be
subject to legal proceedings and claims that we ligivinged the patent or other intellectual prapeights of a
third-party. These claims sometimes involve pabketling companies or other adverse patent ownecshalie no
relevant product revenue and against whom our aatenps, if any, may therefore provide little ordeterrence. In
addition, third parties have asserted and mayarfuture assert intellectual property infringemelatms against our
clients, which we have agreed in certain circunstario indemnify and defend against such claimy.iAtellectual
property related infringement claims, whether armeritorious, could result in costly litigationdiould divert
management resources and attention. Moreover, gdlaibe found liable for infringement, we may bguieed to
enter into licensing agreements, if available oreptable terms or at all, pay substantial damagdsnit or curtail
our systems and technologies. Moreover, we may tesztlesign some of our systems and technologiasgdid
future infringement liability. Any of the foregoingpuld prevent us from competing effectively anckr@ase our
costs.

Additionally, the laws relating to use of tradensgda the Internet are currently unsettled, paidulas they
apply to search engine functionality. For examptaer Internet marketing and search companies bage sued in
the past for trademark infringement and other lattlial property-related claims for the displayads or search
results in response to user queries that inclutietnarked terms. The outcomes of these lawsuits differed fron
jurisdiction to jurisdiction. For this reason, $téonceivable that certain of our activities coetgose us to tradem:
infringement, unfair competition, misappropriationother intellectual property related claims whattuld be costl
to defend and result in substantial damages onetbe limit or curtail our activities, and adverngelffect our
business or prospects.
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Our proprietary technologies may include designmerformance defects and may not achieve their irded
results, either of which could impair our future reenue growth.

Our proprietary technologies are relatively newd grey may contain design or performance defeetisatre nc
yet apparent. The use of our proprietary technelgiay not achieve the intended results as eftdgtas othe
technologies that exist now or may be introduceddycompetitors, in which case our business cbeltlarmed.

If we fail to keep pace with rapidly-changing techlogies and industry standards, we could lose cigear
advertising inventory and our results of operationzay suffer.

The business lines in which we currently competechiaracterized by rapidly-changing Internet medid
marketing standards, changing technologies, fretqueam product and service introductions, and changser and
client demands. The introduction of new technolegird services embodying new technologies andmtieegence
of new industry standards and practices could neadeexisting technologies and services obsolete a
unmarketable or require unanticipated investmantsdhnology. Our future success will depend it parour
ability to adapt to these rapidbhanging Internet media formats and other technedsoyVe will need to enhance «
existing technologies and services and develogrgnmtluce new technologies and services to addnesslients’
changing demands. If we fail to adapt successfollsuch developments or timely introduce new tetdgies and
services, we could lose clients, our expenses douatéase and we could lose advertising inventory.

Changes in government regulation and industry stamds applicable to the Internet and our businesaufb
decrease demand for our technologies and serviges@ease our costs.

Laws and regulations that apply to Internet commations, commerce and advertising are becoming more
prevalent. These regulations could increase this edsonducting business on the Internet and cdetiease
demand for our technologies and services.

In the United States, federal and state laws haea lenacted regarding copyrights, sending of uritadi
commercial email, user privacy, search enginesyiet tracking technologies, direct marketing, da&teurity,
children’s privacy, pricing, sweepstakes, promotions, iat¢llal property ownership and infringement, traeterets
export of encryption technology, taxation and atakele content and quality of goods. Other laws r@gailations
may be adopted in the future. Laws and regulatimesiding those related to privacy and use of peab
information, are changing rapidly outside the UdhiBtates as well which may make compliance witth $aws and
regulations difficult and which may negatively aff®ur ability to expand internationally. This Islgition could:

(i) hinder growth in the use of the Internet gefigrdii) decrease the acceptance of the Interset a
communications, commercial and advertising medifiiihyeduce our revenue; (iv) increase our opeigexpense:
or (v) expose us to significant liabilities.

The laws governing the Internet remain largely tifesty even in areas where there has been sonstdige
action. While we actively monitor this changingaégnd regulatory landscape to stay abreast ofgdsaim the laws
and regulations applicable to our business, waareertain how our business might be affectechleyapplication
of existing laws governing issues such as propestyership, copyrights, encryption and other intdlial property
issues, libel, obscenity and export or import nratte the Internet advertising industry. The vaajarity of such
laws were adopted prior to the advent of the IrgerAs a result, they do not contemplate or additessinique
issues of the Internet and related technologiean@és in laws intended to address such issues caadte
uncertainty in the Internet market. It may takergaa determine how existing laws apply to therimé¢ and Interne
marketing. Such uncertainty makes it difficult tegict costs and could reduce demand for our sesvic increase
the cost of doing business as a result of litigatosts or increased service delivery costs.

In particular, a number of U.S. federal laws impawat business. The Digital Millennium Copyright Aot
DMCA, is intended, in part, to limit the liabilityf eligible online service providers for listing lamking to third-
party websites that include materials that infrikgeyrights or other rights. Portions of the Cominations
Decency Act, or CDA, are intended to provide statuprotections to online service providers whdribsite third-
party content. We rely on the protections provibdgdoth the DMCA and CDA in conducting our businédse
Higher Education Act, administered by the U.S. Depant of Education, provides that to be eligildeoarticipate

24




Table of Contents

in Federal student financial aid programs, an etilorgal institution must enter into a program papiation
agreement with the Secretary of the Departmendofcktion. The agreement includes a number of comditwvith
which an institution must comply to be grantedi@tiand continuing eligibility to participate. Amgrthose
conditions is a prohibition on institutions prowidito any individual or entity engaged in recrigtor admission
activities any commission, bonus, or other incenfimyment based directly or indirectly on successetcuring
enrollments. The Department of Education issueal fiegulations on incentive compensation and attegters
which became effective July 1, 2011. The Departiaargulations repeal all safe harbors regardicgritive
compensation which existed under the prior reguteti including the safe harbor for Internet-bassluiting and
admissions activities. The elimination of the dadgbors create uncertainty for us and our educatients and
impact the way in which we are paid by our cliesntsl, accordingly, could reduce the amount of reeeme
generate from the education client vertical.

In addition, the Department has issued final reguia that will also restrict Title 1V funding fgrograms not
meeting prescribed income-to-debt ratios (i.e.gpms not leading to “gainful employment” as definmder the
proposed regulation). These regulations will taffeot on July 1, 2012. These provisions, could tiegly affect ou
business with education clients. Any changes isgHaws or judicial interpretations narrowing th@iotections will
subject us to greater risk of liability and mayrease our costs of compliance with these regulstiorimit our
ability to operate certain lines of business.

The financial services, education and medical itriessare highly regulated and our marketing atitigion
behalf of our clients in those industries are atgpulated. As described above, and for exampleptiigosed
regulations from the Department of Education oritiive compensation, “gainful employment” and otimatters
could limit our clients’ businesses and limit tlewenue we receive from our education clients. Aadtitional
example, our mortgage and insurance websites arketiveg services we offer are subject to variowsefal, state
and local laws, including state licensing laws gfied and state laws prohibiting unfair acts andticas, and federal
and state advertising laws. Any failure to complthwhese laws and regulations could subject usyocation of
required licenses, civil, criminal or administratiliability, damage to our reputation or changesrtbmitations on
the conduct of our business. Any of the foregoiogld cause our business, operations and financradition to
suffer.

Increased taxation of companies engaged in Interceimmerce may adversely affect the commercial useun
marketing services and our financial results.

The tax treatment of Internet commerce remainsttiadeand we cannot predict the effect of curatempts
to impose sales, income or other taxes on comnuenegucted over the Internet. Tax authorities afriternational,
federal, state and local levels are currently ngirig the taxation of Internet commerce, particylas many
governmental agencies seek to address fiscal ameaid budgetary shortfalls by introducing new $eowe
expanding the applicability of existing tax lawseWave experienced certain states taking expapssidons with
regard to their taxation of our services. The ini@s of new laws requiring the collection of satasother
transactional taxes on the sale of our servicetheéidnternet could create increased administrétivelens or costs,
discourage clients from purchasing services frondasrease our ability to compete or otherwise tambially harm
our business and results of operations.

Limitations on our ability to collect and use datierived from user activities could significantlyrdinish the
value of our services and cause us to lose cliaarid revenue.

When a user visits our websites, we use techndpgieluding “cookies”, to collect information suak the
user’s Internet Protocol, or IP, address, offeridglivered by us that have been previously viewethb user and
responses by the user to those offerings. In doddetermine the effectiveness of a marketing cagmpand to
determine how to modify the campaign, we need t@s€ and analyze this information. The use of @kas been
the subject of regulatory scrutiny and litigatiordausers are able to block or delete cookies fiwair browser.
Periodically, certain of our clients and publishsegk to prohibit or limit our collection or usetbfs data.
Interruptions, failures or defects in our dataedtion systems, as well as privacy concerns regguttie collection
of user data, could also limit our ability to armdydata from our clients’ marketing campaigns. Tisis is
heightened when we deliver marketing servicesimtd in the financial and medical services cliatticals. If our
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access to data is limited in the future, we mawtble to provide effective technologies and sexvio clients and
we may lose clients and revenue.

As a creator and a distributor of Internet contentje face potential liability and expenses for legddims based
on the nature and content of the materials that weeate or distribute. If we are required to pay dages or
expenses in connection with these legal claims, operating results and business may be harmed.

We create original content for our websites andketarg messages and distribute third-party corsentur
websites and in our marketing messages. As a craatbdistributor of original content and third4ygprovided
content, we face potential liability based on aetgrof theories, including defamation, negligendeceptive
advertising (including the Department of Educatsorégulations regarding misrepresentation in edutat
marketing), copyright or trademark infringemenbtiner legal theories based on the nature, creatiaifstribution
of this information. It is also possible that ouglgite visitors could make claims against us fesds incurred in
reliance upon information provided on our websitesaddition, as the number of users of forums soadal media
features on our websites increases, we could besexjto liability in connection with material padt® our
websites by users and other third parties. Thesms| whether brought in the United States or abroauld divert
management time and attention away from our busiaed result in significant costs to investigatd defend,
regardless of the merit of these claims. In addjtibwe become subject to these types of claintsaar not
successful in our defense, we may be forced tesphgtantial damages.

Wireless devices and mobile phones are increasirmgling used to access the Internet, and our online
marketing services may not be as effective wheneased through these devices, which could cause hiarwur
business.

The number of people who access the Internet tlirdegices other than personal computers has iredeas
substantially in the last few years. Our online keting services were designed for persons accetisnigternet on
a desktop or laptop computer. The smaller scrdewsr resolution graphics and less convenient tygiapabilities
of these devices may make it more difficult foritgiss to respond to our offerings. In addition, twest of mobile
advertising is relatively high and may not be ceif¢ctive for our services. If our services conérta be less
effective or economically attractive for clienteking to engage in marketing through these dedoesthis segme
of web traffic grows at the expense of traditioo@inputer Internet access, we will experience difficattracting
website visitors and attracting and retaining ¢beand our operating results and business willdrenbd.

We may not succeed in expanding our businessesidatthe United States, which may limit our futureagwth.

One potential area of growth for us is in the in&ional markets and we have recently entereddettain
markets. However, we have limited experience inkeiamg, selling and supporting our services outsifithe
United States and we may not be successful indotrimg or marketing our services abroad. Thergisks inherent
in conducting business in international marketshsas:

« the adaptation of technologies and services tadgorelient’ preferences and custon
« application of foreign laws and regulations toins|luding marketing and privacy regulatiol
« changes in foreign political and economic condic

« tariffs and other trade barriers, fluctuatiomgurrency exchange rates and potentially adverse
conseguence:

 language barriers or cultural differenc

 reduced or limited protection for intellectual peoty rights in foreign jurisdictions
- difficulties and costs in staffing, managing or mexing foreign operations; a

« education of potential clients who may not be famniith online marketing
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If we are unable to successfully expand and markeservices abroad, our business and future grovethbe
harmed and we may incur costs that may not ledwlttoe revenue.

We rely on Internet bandwidth and data center prders and other third parties for key aspects of fh®cess o
providing services to our clients, and any failucg interruption in the services and products proed by these
third parties could harm our business.

We rely on third-party vendors, including data esrand Internet bandwidth providers. Any disrupiiothe
network access or co-location services providethbge third-party providers or any failure of theésed-party
providers to handle current or higher volumes @&f esuld significantly harm our business. Any finahor other
difficulties our providers face may have negatiffe@s on our business, the nature and extent afhwiie cannot
predict. We exercise little control over thesedhparty vendors, which increases our vulnerabititproblems with
the services they provide. We license technologlretated databases from third parties to facditatalysis and
storage of data and delivery of offerings. We haexgerienced interruptions and delays in serviceaadability for
data centers, bandwidth and other technologidsamast. Any errors, failures, interruptions oraglslexperienced in
connection with these third-party technologies seivices could adversely affect our business antti@xpose us
to liabilities to third parties.

Our systems also heavily depend on the availalofigiectricity, which also comes from third-papsoviders.
If we or third-party data centers which we utilizere to experience a major power outage, we woane o rely on
back-up generators. These back-up generators maypeaate properly through a major power outagethei fuel
supply could also be inadequate during a major p@utage or disruptive event. Furthermore, we docoarently
have backup generators at our Foster City, Caldidneadquarters. Information systems such as oaysh@
disrupted by even brief power outages, or by thet@lations in power resulting from switches to &oth
back-up generators. This could give rise to obiayet to certain of our clients which could havesanerse effect on
our results for the period of time in which anyrdjstion of utility services to us occurs.

Interruption or failure of our information technolay and communications systems could impair our &kgito
effectively deliver our services, which could causeto lose clients and harm our operating results.

Our delivery of marketing and media services depamdthe continuing operation of our technology
infrastructure and systems. Any damage to or faibfrour systems could result in interruptionsum ability to
deliver offerings quickly and accurately and/orgess visitors’ responses emanating from our vaneels
presences. Interruptions in our service could redur revenue and profits, and our reputation cbaldamaged if
people believe our systems are unreliable. Ouesystand operations are vulnerable to damage orupten from
earthquakes, terrorist attacks, floods, fires, pdogs, break-ins, hardware or software failureledommunications
failures, computer viruses or other attempts torhaur systems, and similar events.

We lease or maintain server space in various loestincluding in San Francisco, California. Outifenia
facilities are located in areas with a high riskradjor earthquakes. Our facilities are also sulifebreak-ins,
sabotage and intentional acts of vandalism, ammbtential disruptions if the operators of thesalitses have
financial difficulties. Some of our systems are fudly redundant, and our disaster recovery plagrmannot account
for all eventualities. The occurrence of a natdishster, a decision to close a facility we aragisvithout adequate
notice for financial reasons or other unanticipgieablems at our facilities could result in lengthterruptions in
our service.

Any unscheduled interruption in our service wouwddult in an immediate loss of revenue. If we expare
frequent or persistent system failures, the aitrawess of our technologies and services to cliantswebsite
publishers could be permanently harmed. The steplsave taken to increase the reliability and redany of our
systems are expensive, reduce our operating mangthmay not be successful in reducing the frequenduration
of unscheduled interruptions.
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Any constraints on the capacity of our technologyfriastructure could delay the effectiveness of caperations
or result in system failures, which would result the loss of clients and harm our business and rikswf
operations.

Our future success depends in part on the effigerformance of our software and technology infrasure.
As the numbers of websites and Internet usersaseseour technology infrastructure may not be abhaeet the
increased demand. A sudden and unexpected indrets=volume of user responses could strain tpadty of ou
technology infrastructure. Any capacity constraimésexperience could lead to slower response tonsgstem
failures and adversely affect the availability afhgites and the level of user responses receivddhwould result
in the loss of clients or revenue or harm to owsiess and results of operations.

We could lose clients if we fail to detect clickrttugh or other fraud on advertisements in a manntbat is
acceptable to our clients.

We are exposed to the risk of fraudulent clickaations on our websites or our third-party publisheebsites
We may in the future have to refund revenue thatbents have paid to us and that was later aiteith to, or
suspected to be caused by, fraud. Click-througldfieccurs when an individual clicks on an ad digpdbon a
website or an automated system is used to creaktecticks with the intent of generating the revesbare payment
to the publisher rather than to view the underlyéngtent. Action fraud occurs when on-line forms esmpleted
with false or fictitious information in an efford increase the compensable actions in respect ichvehweb
publisher is to be compensated. From time to tirméhawve experienced fraudulent clicks or actionsveado not
charge our clients for such fraudulent clicks dicas when they are detected. It is conceivabletthia activity
could negatively affect our profitability, and thige of fraudulent act could hurt our reputatilfriraudulent clicks
or actions are not detected, the affected cliertg experience a reduced return on their investinemtir marketing
programs, which could lead the clients to becomssalisfied with our campaigns, and in turn, lealib$s of clients
and the related revenue. Additionally, we have ftone to time had to terminate relationships witsbapublishers
who we believed to have engaged in fraud and wehmag to do so in the future. Termination of sugationships
entails a loss of revenue associated with theitegie actions or clicks generated by such web phbis.

If we fail to maintain proper and effective interdaontrols, our ability to produce accurate finanal statement:
on a timely basis could be impaired, which wouldvadsely affect our ability to operate our business.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahcia
reporting to provide reasonable assurance regattacgeliability of our financial reporting and tpeeparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamare with U.S. generally accepted accounting jpies. We may
in the future discover areas of our internal firahand accounting controls and procedures thad maprovement.
Our internal control over financial reporting wilbt prevent or detect all error and all fraud. Atrol system, no
matter how well designed and operated, can prasidie reasonable, not absolute, assurance thabtiteot
system’s objectives will be met. Because of theieht limitations in all control systems, no evélua of controls
can provide absolute assurance that misstatemeattoderror or fraud will not occur or that all ¢an issues and
instances of fraud will be detected. If we are Uaab maintain proper and effective internal colstrove may not be
able to produce accurate financial statementstanely basis, which could adversely affect our iptio operate
our business and could result in regulatory action.

Risks Related to the Ownership of Our Common Stock

Our stock price may be volatile, and you may notdi#e to resell shares of our common stock at opab the
price you paid.

The trading price of our common stock has beenligblatile since our initial public offering anday
continue to be subject to wide fluctuations in e to various factors, some of which are beyamdontrol.
These factors include those discussed in this “Rasitors” section of this report on Form 10-K attiteos such as:

» changes in earnings estimates or recommendatiossduyities analyst
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e announcements about our revenues, earningg®with rates that are not in line with analyst etpgons, the
risk of which is heightened because it is our potiot to give quarterly guidance on revenue, egsyior
growth rates

» changes in governmental regulatio

¢ announcements by us or our competitors of sewices, significant contracts, commercial refalaps,
acquisitions or capital commitmen

« changes in the search engine rankings of our aitesr ability to access PPC advertisi
« developments with respect to intellectual propedtts;

« our ability to develop and market new and enhamreducts on a timely basi

e our commencement of, or involvement in, litigati

* negative publicity about us, our industry, our igeor our client industries; ant

« a slowdown in our industry or the general econa

In recent years, the stock market in general, hadrtarket for technology and Internet-based conagaini
particular, has experienced extreme price and velfiactuations that have often been unrelated sprdportionate
to the operating performance of those companiezadmarket and industry factors may seriously attee market
price of our common stock, regardless of our aatparating performance. In addition, in the pastpfving period:
of volatility in the overall market and the marlogice of a particular company’s securities, se@msgitlass action
litigation has often been instituted against thesmpanies. Such litigation, if instituted against could result in
substantial costs and a diversion of our managematténtion and resources.

If securities or industry analysts do not publiskesearch or reports about our business, or if thegue an
adverse opinion regarding our stock, our stock mriand trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock is influethdy the research and reports that industry aries
analysts publish about us or our business. If drilgeanalysts who cover us issue an adverse apmeigarding our
stock, our stock price would likely decline. If oaemore of these analysts ceases coverage oboupany or fail t
publish reports on us regularly, we could losebiiiy in the financial markets, which in turn cautause our stock
price or trading volume to decline.

Our directors, executive officers and principal skholders and their respective affiliates have steabdial
control over us and could delay or prevent a charigeorporate control.

As of June 30, 2011, our directors and executifieart, together with their affiliates, beneficiabwned
approximately 38% of our outstanding common stdacka result, these stockholders, acting togetteare h
substantial control over the outcome of mattersrstibd to our stockholders for approval, includihg election of
directors and any merger, consolidation or sak@ladr substantially all of our assets. In additidrese stockholdetr
acting together, have significant influence over thanagement and affairs of our company. Accorgjrgls
concentration of ownership may have the effect of:

« delaying, deferring or preventing a change in coaf@control
« impeding a merger, consolidation, takeover or otheiness combination involving us;

« discouraging a potential acquirer from making al&roffer or otherwise attempting to obtain contous.

Future sales of shares by existing stockholders kcbcause our stock price to decline.

If our existing stockholders sell, or indicate atent to sell, substantial amounts of our commonksin the
public market the trading price of our common stooklld decline significantly. We had 47,387,425rekaf
common stock outstanding as of June 30, 2011.ditiad, (i) the 9,753,295 shares subject to outitagnstock
options and restricted stock units under our eqoitgntive plans as of June 30, 2011 and (ii) trees reserved for
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future issuance under our equity incentive pladkhgicome eligible for sale in the public markethe future,
subject to certain legal and contractual limitasiolfi these additional shares are sold, or if igsceived that they
will be sold, in the public market, the price ofr@m@mmon stock could decline substantially.

Provisions in our charter documents under Delawdesv and in contractual obligations, could discourag
takeover that stockholders may consider favorabtelanay lead to entrenchment of management.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamadind bylaws contain provisions that could haeeetfiect
of delaying or preventing changes in control ormges in our management without the consent of oardof
directors. These provisions include:

* a classified board of directors with threetygtaggered terms, which may delay the abilityto€lkholders to
change the membership of a majority of our boardirectors;

¢ no cumulative voting in the election of dirct, which limits the ability of minority stockhadds to elect
director candidate:

« the exclusive right of our board of directtwselect a director to fill a vacancy created by &xpansion of the
board of directors or the resignation, death oraeahof a director, which prevents stockholdersrfrioeing
able to fill vacancies on our board of directc

« the ability of our board of directors to detéme to issue shares of preferred stock and tam@te the price
and other terms of those shares, including preée®and voting rights, without stockholder approwdilich
could be used to significantly dilute the ownerstii hostile acquire!

< a prohibition on stockholder action by writtesnsent, which forces stockholder action to benakt an
annual or special meeting of our stockhold

« the requirement that a special meeting ofldtolders may be called only by the chairman ofttbard of
directors, the chief executive officer or the boafdlirectors, which may delay the ability of otwckholders
to force consideration of a proposal or to takéoactincluding the removal of directors; a

» advance notice procedures that stockholders masplgowith in order to nominate candidates to ouaiploot
directors or to propose matters to be acted uparstickholders’ meeting, which may discourageateida
potential acquiror from conducting a solicitatioipooxies to elect the acquiror’s own slate of diogs or
otherwise attempting to obtain control of

We are subject to certain anti-takeover provisiander Delaware law. Under Delaware law, a corponatnay
not, in general, engage in a business combinatitmamy holder of 15% or more of its capital stagkess the
holder has held the stock for three years or, anotingr things, the board of directors has apprdakiedransaction.

We do not currently intend to pay dividends on aaommon stock and, consequently, your ability to amare a
return on your investment will depend on appreciatiin the price of our common stock.

We do not intend to declare and pay dividends arcapital stock for the foreseeable future. We euitly
intend to invest our future earnings, if any, tadwur growth. Additionally, the terms of our criefdicility restrict
our ability to pay dividends. Therefore, you ar¢ lileely to receive any dividends on your commouocgtfor the
foreseeable future.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal executive offices are located inasked facility in Foster City, California, consigfiof
approximately 63,998 square feet of office spaateum lease that expires in October 2018 with fgit®o to extenc
the lease term by another two years. This facdldgommodates our principal engineering, sales, atiac
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operations and finance and administrative actwiti¥e also lease buildings in Arkansas, Floridas$aahusetts,
Nevada, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, O&fah, Oregon, India and the United Kingdc

We may add new facilities and expand our existawlities as we add employees and expand our ngr&ed
we believe that suitable additional or substitytace will be available as needed to accommodatsacty
expansion of our operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

On September 8, 2010, a patent infringement lawsast filed against us by LendingTree, LLC
(“LendingTree”) in the United States District Cofot the Western District of North Carolina, seakajudgment
that we have infringed a certain patent held bydimgiTree, an injunctive order against the alleggdriging
activities and an award for damages. On Septenmhe2@.0, LendingTree filed a first amended compladding at
additional defendant. If an injunction is grantiaould force us to stop or alter certain of ousimess activities,
such as our lead generation in certain of our thernticals. While we intend to vigorously defendr @osition,
neither the outcome of the litigation nor the antaand range of potential damages or exposure aedawvith the
litigation can be assessed with certainty.

From time to time, we may become involved in otlegal proceedings and claims arising in the orgiraurse
of our business.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserve

PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters anduer Purchases of Equit
Securities

Our common stock has been traded on the NASDAQ & l8blect Market under the symbol “QNST” since our
initial public offering on February 11, 2010. Priorthis time, there was no public market for ooimenon stock.
The following table shows the high and low salegsiper share of our common stock as reportedeoNASDAQ
Global Select Market for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20! High Low

Third quarter ended March 31, 2010 (beginning Fatyd1, 2010 $17.7¢  $12.77
Fourth quarter ended June 30, 2 $18.28  $11.37
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20! High Low

First quarter ended September 30, 2 $15.51 $ 9.7¢
Second quarter ended December 31, - $21.3¢  $13.9]
Third quarter ended March 31, 20 $24.91 $18.9¢
Fourth quarter ended June 30, 2 $22.9¢  $10.6¢

On August 25, 2011, the closing price as reportethe NASDAQ Global Select Market of our commorckto
was $10.30 per share and we had approximately tb6Rmlders of record of our common stock.

We have never declared or paid, and do not anteigeclaring or paying, any cash dividends on oanraon
stock. Any future determination as to the declaratind payment of dividends, if any, will be at thiscretion of ou
board of directors and will depend on then existingditions, including our financial condition, @péng results,
contractual restrictions, capital requirementsiess prospects and other factors our board oftdire may deem
relevant.

For equity compensation plan information refertéorl 12 in Part Ill of this Annual Report on Form-K0
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Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed “swigcinaterial” or to be “filed” with the Securitiesd
Exchange Commission for purposes of Section 18@fSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendetigor
Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liatitunder that Section, and shall not be deemesd iacbrporated
by reference into any filing of QuinStreet, Incden the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, cEXubange Act.

The following graph shows a comparison from Febyrddr, 2010 (the date our common stock commenced
trading on the NASDAQ Global Select Market) througime 30, 2011 of cumulative total return for comenon
stock, the NASDAQ Composite Index and the RDG mteComposite Index. Such returns are based oorioizk
results and are not intended to suggest futur@paence. Data for the NASDAQ Composite Index amdRDG
Internet Composite Index assume reinvestment adeinds.

COMPARISON OF 16 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Quinsirect, Inc,, the NASDAQ Composite Index
and the RDG Internet Composite Index
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* $100 invested 02/11/10in stock orl/31/10in index, including reinvestment of dividen:

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

There were no unregistered sales of our equityrgesuduring the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Use of Proceeds

On February 10, 2010, our registration statemerfta@m S-1 (File No. 333-163228) was declared eiffedor
our initial public offering, pursuant to which wegistered the offering and sale of 10,000,000 shaffeommon
stock at a public offering price of $15.00 per ghand an aggregate offering price of $150 millibine managing
underwriters were Credit Suisse Securities (USAELMerrill Lynch, Pierce Fenner & Smith Incorpordtand
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. The offering was conggle@n February 17, 2010.

As a result of the offering, we received net pratseef $136.7 million, after underwriting discouatsd
commissions of $10.5 million and other offering tsosf $2.8 million. None of such payments wereraatior
indirect payment to any of our directors or offer their associates, to persons owning ten peacenore of our
common stock or any of our other affiliates.
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The net offering proceeds have been invested inemamarket accounts and short-term marketable sisuri

There has been no material change in the planredfysoceeds from our initial public offering assdribed ir
our final prospectus filed with the SEC pursuan®tde 424(b).

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Da

The following selected consolidated financial dgttauld be read together with “Management’s Disausand
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” and with the consolidated financial statetaeand
accompanying notes appearing elsewhere in thigt.epiee selected consolidated financial data is #igiction is not
intended to replace our consolidated financiakst@nts and the accompanying notes. The resulteafdquired
businesses have been included in our consolidateddial statements since their respective datesaisition. Ot
historical results are not necessarily indicatif’feur future results and any interim results arerexessarily
indicative of the results for a full fiscal year.

We derived the consolidated statements of opesitiate for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20110 26d
2009 and the consolidated balance sheets dataJasn®f30, 2011 and 2010 from our audited conselitifibancial
statements appearing elsewhere in this reportcdhsolidated statements of operations data fofishal year
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 and the consolidatadde sheets data as of June 30, 2009, 2008 &fid2®
derived from our audited consolidated financiatestzents, which are not included in this report.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Date

Net revenue $403,02: $334,83! $260,52° $192,03( $167,37(
Cost of revenue(1 291,99: 240,73( 181,59: 130,86 108,94!
Gross profit 111,03( 94,10¢ 78,93¢ 61,16 58,42t
Operating expenses: (

Product developmel 24,16: 19,72¢ 14,881 14,05 14,09«

Sales and marketir 17,38: 16,69¢ 16,15¢ 12,40¢ 8,481

General and administratiy 20,39¢ 18,46 13,17: 13,37: 11,44(
Total operating expens 61,94 54,88¢ 44,21 39,83: 34,021
Operating incom: 49,08¢ 39,21" 34,72: 21,33( 24,40
Interest incom 16¢ 97 24% 1,482 1,90¢
Interest expens (4,217) (3,97%) (3,549 (1,219 (732
Other income (expense), r 56 1,52 (239) 14E (139
Interest and other income (expense), (3,989 (2,35%) (3,539 413 1,03¢

Income before income tax 45,10: 36,86( 31,18: 21,74 25,43¢
Provision for taxe: (17,88) (16,276 (13,909 (8,87¢) (9,82¢)
Net income $ 27,21« $ 2058 $ 17,27« $ 12,867 $ 15,61(
Less: 8% non-cumulative dividends on convertible

preferred stocl $ — $ (2,019 $ (3,270 $ (3,27¢) $ (3,27¢)
Less: Undistributed earnings allocated to conviert

preferred stocl $ — $ (578 $ (859 $ (5,929 $ (7,690
Net income attributable to common stockholc—

Basic $ 2721 $12,78. $ 539¢ $ 3,666 $ 4,64«
Undistributed earnings -allocated to common stor $ — $ 41¢ $ 39¢ $ 36C $ 527
Net income attributable to common stockholc—

Diluted $ 2721+ $ 13,200 $ 579 $ 4,02t $ 5,16¢
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands, except per share date

Net income per share attributable to comr
stockholders:(2
Basic $ 05¢ $ O056C $ 041 $ 028 $ 03¢

Diluted $ 058 $ 04 $ 03¢ $ 026 $ 0.3

Weighted average shares used in computing net
income per share attributable to common
stockholders
Basic 46,22 25,61¢ 13,29 13,10¢ 12,78¢
Diluted 49,13( 28,42¢ 14,97: 15,32t 15,26

(1) Cost of revenue and operating expenses includ&-based compensation expense as follc

Cost of revenu $450¢ $3,11: $191¢ $ 1,11 $ 41¢
Product developmel 2,70 2,17¢ 66¢ 44% 75
Sales and marketir 3,74 3,462 1,761 581 22¢
General and administrati 2,992 4,621 1,827 1,08¢ 1,35¢

(2) See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statemientaded in this report for an explanation of thethod used
to calculate basic and diluted net income per sbecemmon stock

June 30,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheets Dat:

Cash and cash equivalel $132,29( $155,77( $ 25,18: $ 24,95 $ 26,76¢
Working capital 162,36. 155,16 16,42¢ 17,02: 42,76¢
Total asset 524,92: 434,63( 212,87¢ 179,74t 118,53t
Total liabilities 169,53! 144,60¢ 96,28¢ 86,03: 37,83!
Total debt 106,04¢ 93,60¢ 57,24( 51,65¢ 10,25(
Total stockholder equity 355,38¢ 290,02: 73,18¢ 50,31: 37,31

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Dat:

Net cash provided by operating activit $78,17. $38,50¢ $32,57( $24,75. $25,197
Depreciation and amortizatic 27,27 18,79 15,97¢ 11,727 9,637
Capital expenditure 5,36: 2,71C 1,343 2,171 2,03(

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands)

Other Financial Data:
Adjusted EBITDA(1) $90,31: $71,37¢ $56,87: $36,27¢ $36,11:

(1) We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income less priovigor taxes, depreciation expense, amortization
expense, stock-based compensation expense, ird@etsther income (expense), net. Please see the
“Adjusted EBITD£” section below for more informatio
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The following table presents a reconciliation ofjdgled EBITDA to net income calculated in accordawith
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAlRe most comparable GAAP measure, for eacheop#riods

indicated:
Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands)

Net income $27,21¢ $20,58: $17,27: $12,867 $15,61(
Interest and other (income) expense, 3,98¢ 2,357 3,53¢ (413 (1,039
Provision for taxe: 17,881 16,27¢ 13,90¢ 8,87¢ 9,82¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 27,27 18,79: 15,97¢ 11,727 9,637
Stocl-based compensation expel 13,95( 13,37: 6,17: 3,22 2,071
Adjusted EBITDA $90,31: $71,37¢ $56,87: $36,27¢ $36,11:

Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

You should read the following discussion of ouafficial condition and results of operations in cangtion with
the consolidated financial statements and the nibieeto included elsewhere in this report. Théofeing
discussion contains forward-looking statements th#iect our plans, estimates and beliefs. Our aktasults could
differ materially from those discussed in the fomvbooking statements. Factors that could causeantribute to
these differences include those discussed belovelaed/here in this report, particularly in the deaos titled
“Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemerdatl “Risk Factors”.

Management Overview

QuinStreet is a leader in vertical marketing andiimenline. We have built a strong set of capaésito
engage Internet visitors with targeted media antbtect our marketing clients with their potentiabstomers
online. We focus on serving clients in large, infiation-intensive industry verticals where relevaatgeted media
and offerings help visitors make informed choides] the products that match their needs, and bime®me
qualified customer prospects for our clients.

We deliver cost-effective marketing results to olignts most typically in the form of a qualifieelld or
inquiry, or in the form of a click. These leadscticks can then convert into a customer or salelients at a rate
that results in an acceptable marketing cost tmtiWe are typically paid by clients when we deligealified leads
or clicks as defined by our agreements with theacaBise we bear the costs of media, our programisdaliger
value to our clients and provide for a media yieldpur ability to generate an acceptable margiownmedia costs,
that provides a sound financial outcome for us. @ameral process is:

« We own or access targeted met

« We run advertisements or other forms of mamnketessages and programs in that media to cresaterv
responses or clicks through to client offerir

* We match these responses or clicks to clifiatings that meet visitor interests or needs, eoting visitors
into qualified leads or clicks; ar

* We optimize client matches and media yielchsihat we achieve desired results for clients asdusd
financial outcome for us

Our primary financial objective has been and remaneating revenue growth from sustainable sousates,
target levels of profitability. Our primary finamtiobjective is not to maximize profits, but rathemchieve target
levels of profitability while investing in variougrowth initiatives, as we believe we are in thdyestages of a large,
long-term market.

Our Direct Marketing Services, or DMS, businessoaoted for substantially all of our net revenuésnal
years 2011, 2010 and 2009. Our DMS business dets/est revenue from fees earned through the eigliof
qualified leads and clicks and, to a lesser extlisplay advertisement, or impressions. Througbréical focus,
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targeted media presence and our technology platfe@svare able to deliver targeted, measurable rniagkeesults
to our clients.

Our two largest client verticals are financial see¢ and education. Our financial services clianmtigal
represented 45%, 43% and 31% of net revenue ialfigars 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Oucatthn
client vertical represented 44%, 45% and 58% of@etnue in fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, mtisjedy. Othe
DMS client verticals, consisting primarily of horservices, business-to-business, or B2B, and medejalesented
11%, 11%, and 10% of net revenue in fiscal yeafd 28010 and 2009, respectively.

In addition, we derived less than 1% of our neeraie in fiscal year 2011 and 1% in fiscal years0281d 200!
from our Direct Selling Services, or DSS, business.

We generated substantially all of our revenue feaes to clients in the United States.

Trends Affecting our Business
Client Verticals

To date, we have generated the majority of ourmegdrom clients in our financial services and edion
client verticals. We expect that a majority of o@venue in fiscal year 2012 will be generated fadients in these
two client verticals.

Our education client vertical is affected by a nemdf factors, including most importantly uncertgifrom the
adoption of the new regulations of fprefit financial institutions. The uncertainty atige regulations may affect o
clients’businesses and marketing practices and may resfliictuations in the volume and mix of our busimesth
these clients.

Our financial services client vertical has beenatiegly affected by pricing pressure. Prices inchek
business of our financial services client vertaa determined by bidding. Changes in volume of@naore
bidders can dynamically impact pricing for all clie. Recently, revenue in our financial servicésntlvertical has
been negatively affected by the pricing impact frastume reductions by certain clients.

Acquisitions
Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2011

In November 2010, we acquired 100% of the outstamdhares of Car Insurance.com, Inc., or
Carlnsurance.com, a Florida-based online insurbosaess, and certain of its affiliated compariesxchange for
$49.7 million in cash, for its capacity to generadine visitors in the financial services markatJuly 2010, we
acquired the website business Insurance.com fremrdmce.com Group, Inc., an Ohio-based online amsag
business, in exchange for $33.0 million in cashtedssuance of a $2.6 million non-interest-bagrimsecured
promissory note, for its capacity to generate anliisitors in the financial services market. Durfisgal year 2011,
in addition to the acquisitions of Carlnsurance.@md Insurance.com, we acquired 13 other onlindighibg
businesses.

Also, in August 2011, we acquired 100% of the antding equity interests of NarrowCast Group, LLC, a
Kentucky-based Internet media company, in exchémg$23,961 in cash, to broaden our media accetf®in
business-to-business market.

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2010

In November 2009, we acquired the website busilesnet.com, a division of WebMediaBrands, Inc¢., o
Internet.com, a New Yorkased Internet media company, in exchange for $18li@n in cash and the issuance ¢
$1.7 million non-interest-bearing, unsecured praig note, to broaden our media access and clasg im the
B2B market. In October 2009, we acquired the welisitsiness Insure.com from Life Quotes, Inc., suta.com,
an lllinois-based online insurance quote serviaklaokerage business, in exchange for $15.0 milharash and
the issuance of a $1.0 million non-interest-bearnimgecured promissory note, for its capacity tregate online
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visitors in the financial services market. Durimgcél year 2010, in addition to the acquisitiongrérnet.com and
Insure.com, we acquired 31 other online publisitinginesses.

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2009

In August 2008, we acquired 100% of the outstandlmayes of U.S. Citizens for Fair Credit Card Terims.,
or CardRatings, an Arkansas-based online marketingpany, in exchange for $10.4 million in cash tel
issuance of $5.0 million in non-interest-beariregged promissory notes, for its capacity to gewesaline visitors
in the financial services market. During fiscal y2809, in addition to the acquisition of CardRg#inwe acquired
33 other online publishing businesses.

Our acquisition strategy may result in significattuations in our available working capital frgrariod to
period and over the years. We may use cash, stgqelomissory notes to acquire various businesséschnologies
and we cannot accurately predict the timing of éhasquisitions or the impact on our cash flows laaldnce sheet.
Large acquisitions or multiple acquisitions witlsinparticular period may significantly affect oundincial results for
that period. We may utilize debt financing to malguisitions, which could give rise to higher ietgrexpense and
more restrictive operating covenants. We may aliaeiour stock as consideration, which could tesu
substantial dilution.

Development and Acquisition of Targeted Media

One of the primary challenges of our businessgifig or creating media that is targeted enougdtttact
prospects economically for our clients and at ctisiswork for our business model. In order to oard to grow ou
business, we must be able to continue to find velkb® quality targeted media on a cost-effectiveidadOur
inability to find or develop high quality targetetkdia could impair our growth or adversely affaat financial
performance.

Seasonality

Our results are subject to significant fluctuataana result of seasonality. In particular, our tprarending
December 31 (our second fiscal quarter) typicallgndnstrate seasonal weakness. In our second djigaeters, thel
is lower availability of lead supply from some fasraf media during the holiday period on a costafe basis and
some of our clients request fewer leads due talhglstaffing. In our quarters ending March 31 (inind fiscal
quarter), this trend generally reverses with bé#tad availability and often new budgets at theifggg of the year
for our clients with fiscal years ending Decembgr 3

Basis of Presentation
General

We operate in two segments: DMS and DSS. For fudiseussion and financial information about our
reporting segments, see Note 14 to our consolidatadcial statements.

Net Revenue

DMS. Our DMS business generates revenue from feegeannough the delivery of qualified leads, clicks
and, to a lesser extent, display advertisemenipressions. We deliver targeted and measurabldtseabrough a
vertical focus that we classify into the followinlient verticals: financial services, education dotther” (which
includes home services, B2B and medical).

DSS. Our DSS business generated approximately 1%tokrenue in fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009 from
the provision of a hosted solution and relatedisesvfor clients in the direct selling industry. \&epect DSS to
continue to represent an immaterial portion oflouginess.
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Cost of Revenu

Cost of revenue consists primarily of media cgs¢ssonnel costs, amortization of acquisition-relateangible
assets, depreciation expense and amortizatiorterhial software development costs relating to reegoroducing
technologies. Media costs consist primarily of fpa&l to website publishers that are directly eglab a revenue-
generating event and pay-per-click, or PPC, adhases from Internet search companies. We pay theseet
search companies and website publishers on a rexs@rare, a cost-per-lead, or CPL, cost-per-clickGRC and
cost-per-thousand-impressions, or CPM basis. Pres@osts include salaries, stock-based compemnsatipense,
bonuses and employee benefit costs. Personnelamespsimarily related to individuals associatethwnaintaining
our servers and websites, our editorial staff ntllmanagement, creative team, compliance groupreetia
purchasing analysts.

Costs associated with software incurred in the ldgweent phase or obtained for internal use aretal@g®d an
amortized in cost of revenue over the softwaretsreged useful life.

We anticipate that our cost of revenue will inceeasabsolute dollars as we continue to increaseemenue
base and product offerings.

Operating Expenses

We classify our operating expenses into three categ; product development, sales and marketindjganers
and administrative. Our operating expenses copsistarily of personnel costs and, to a lesser @xf@ofessional
services fees, rent and allocated costs. Personstd for each category of operating expenses ginarclude
salaries, stock-based compensation expense, boandepmmissions and employee benefit costs.

Product Development.Product development expenses consist primarifyecsonnel costs and professional
services fees associated with the development aittemance of our technology platforms, developnagiit
launching of our websites, product-based qualisuemnce and testing. We believe that continuedsinvent in
technology is critical to attaining our strateghljexctives and, as a result, we expect product dpwebnt expenses
increase in absolute dollars in the future.

Sales and Marketing.Sales and marketing expenses consist primaripeofonnel costs and, to a lesser extent,
allocated overhead costs, professional services fesvel costs, advertising and marketing materidle expect
sales and marketing expenses to increase in abstdilars as we hire additional personnel in safesmarketing t
support our increasing revenue base and produstiogfs.

General and Administrative.General and administrative expenses consist pilinad personnel costs of our
executive, finance, legal, corporate and businessldpment, employee benefits and compliance, teahsupport
and other administrative personnel, as well aswattiiog and legal professional services fees andrathrporate
expenses. We expect general and administrativeneggédo increase in absolute dollars in futureoperas we
continue to invest in corporate infrastructure arwlir additional expenses associated with beingtdigpcompany,
including increased legal and accounting costddrignsurance premiums, investor relations cosiscampliance
costs associated with Section 404 of the Sarbamésy@.ct of 2002.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Interest and other income (expense), net, con@istarily of interest expense, other income andemse and
interest income. Interest expense is related temdit facility and promissory notes issued inreection with our
acquisitions and includes imputed interest. Borrmgiunder our credit facility and related inteeegtense could
increase as we continue to implement our acquisgtoategy. Interest income represents interesived on our
cash, cash equivalents and marketable securittéshwnay increase or decrease depending on matieeest rates
and the amounts invested.

Other income (expense), net, includes foreign cuyreexchange gains and losses and other non-apgrati
items.
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Income Tax Expensi

We are subject to tax in the United States as agetither tax jurisdictions or countries in which eeaduct
business. Earnings from our limited non-U.S. atiigiare subject to local country income tax ang besubject to
U.S. income tax.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our consolidatedestzent of operations for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Net revenue $403,02: 100.(% $334,83! 100.(% $260,52° 100.(%
Cost of revenue(1 291,99. 72.F 240,73(  71.¢ 181,59: 69.7
Gross profit 111,03( 27.t 94,10t 28.1 78,93¢ 30.:
Operating expenses:(

Product developmel 24,16: 6.C 19,72¢ 5.9 14,881 5.7

Sales and marketir 17,38: 4.3 16,69¢ 5.C 16,15« 6.2

General and administratiy 20,39¢ 5.C 18,46¢ 5.5 13,17: 5.1
Operating incomi 49,08¢ 12.2 39,217 11.7 34,72. 13.c
Interest incom: 16¢ 0.C 97 0.C 24% 0.1
Interest expens (4,219 (1.0 (3,970 (1.2 (3,549 (1.9
Other income (expense), r 56 0.C 1,52: 0.5 (239 (0.1
Income before income tax 45,10 11.z 36,86( 11.C 31,18: 12.C
Provision for taxe: (17,887 (4.9 (16,276 (4.9 (13,909 (5.9
Net income $ 27,214 6.8% $ 20,58¢ 6.1% $ 17,27 6.€%

(1) Cost of revenue and operating expenses includ&-based compensation expense as follc

Cost of revenu $4,50¢ 1.1% $3,111 0.¢% $1,916 0.7%
Product developmel 2,70¢ 0.7 2,17¢ 0.€ 669 0.3
Sales and marketir 3,747 0.¢ 3,46¢ 1.C 1,761 0.7
General and administrati 2,992 0.7 4,621 14 1,827 0.7
Net Revenue
Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2011- 201C 2010- 200¢
2011 2010 2009 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Net revenue $403,02: $334,83! $260,52° 20% 2%
Cost of revenu 291,99: 240,73( 181,59: 21% 33%
Gross profit $111,03( $ 94,10 §$ 78,93¢ 18% 19%

Net revenue increased $68.2 million, or 20%, indigyear 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010. Thertgjof
this increase was attributable to an increaseviemee from our financial services client verticatiato a lesser
extent, our education client vertical and otheemiverticals. Financial services client verti@alenue increased
$38.0 million, or 26%, as increases in click aratll@olume were partially offset by lower pricesuEation client
vertical revenue increased $23.2 million, or 15%yeh by higher prices, a shift in mix towards teglpriced
inquiries and an increase in inquiry volume. Oureotclient verticals’ revenue increased $7.0 millior 18%,
primarily due to the acquisition of Internet.comNovember 2009.
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Net revenue increased $74.3 million, or 29%, indigyear 2010 compared to fiscal year 2009, attaible to ar
increase in revenue from our financial servicesntlivertical and, to a lesser extent, our othentherticals.
Financial services client vertical revenue increlab®4.2 million, or 81%. The increase in finanaatvices client
vertical revenue was driven by lead and click vaduntreases at relatively steady prices. Our athent verticals’
revenue increased $9.3 million, or 31%. The in@eaour other client vertical revenue was prinyaaiffected by
growth in our B2B client vertical revenue resultiingm our acquisition of Internet.com in Novemb@&02 and, to a
lesser extent, due to growth in our medical chiemtical resulting from our acquisition of the wi#bdusiness of
ElderCareLink in April 2009. Our education clierdrtical revenue remained relatively flat, incregsh®.8 million,
or 1%. The slight increase was driven by growtimfr@ majority of our education clients, almost eatiroffset by
revenue decline from a single client.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue increased $51.3 million, or 21%iscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010adriby an
increase in media costs of $28.9 million due tdbigead and click volumes, increased personnés ads
$10.6 million and increased amortization of acdigsirelated intangible assets of $6.9 million tésg from
acquisitions in fiscal year 2011 and 2010. Thedase in personnel costs was attributable to a 84%ase in
average headcount, primarily resulting from acdjoiss. Gross margin, which is the difference betweet revenue
and cost of revenue as a percentage of net revesmajned flat at 28% in fiscal year 2011, as highargins from
publisher arrangements and a higher mix of trdfien owned and operated targeted media were dffséte
above-mentioned increase in headcount and relaexipnel costs, as well as higher amortization esge

Cost of revenue increased $59.1 million, or 33%iscal year 2010 compared to fiscal year 2009adriby a
$41.2 million increase in media costs due to leati@ick volume increases, increased personnet adst
$10.7 million and increased amortization of acdigeirelated intangible assets of $3.2 million tésg from
acquisitions in fiscal year 2009 and 2010. Thedaske in personnel costs was attributable to a h¢%éase in
average headcount, resulting from the acquisitidnternet.com in November 2009, as well as theaesjon of our
business. Gross margin declined from 30% in figear 2009 to 28% in fiscal year 2010, due to thevab
mentioned increase in headcount and related corapen®xpense, as well as due to a higher mixaffit¢rfrom
third parties.

Operating Expenses

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011- 201C 2010- 200¢
2011 2010 2009 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Product developmel $24,165 $19,72¢ $14,88: 22% 33%
Sales and marketir 17,38: 16,69¢ 16,15 4% 3%
General and administratiy 20,39¢ 18,46: 13,17: 10% 40%
Operating expenst $61,94. $54,88¢ $44,21: 13% 24%

Product Development Expenses

Product development expenses increased $4.4 midio22%, in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscalry2010.
primarily due to increased personnel costs. Theeame in personnel costs was due to increased cxiaom
expense of $3.1 million, increased stock-based emsgition expense of $0.5 million and various smallereases
in product development expenses. The increasenpensation expense and stdidsed compensation expense
due to a 24% increase in average headcount froftiad hiring in connection with development proie and
recent acquisitions.

Product development expenses increased $4.8 midiod3%, in fiscal year 2010 compared to fiscalry2009.
primarily due to increased personnel costs of $4ilRon and, to a lesser extent, increased profesgiservices fees
of $0.4 million. The increase in personnel costs afiributable to increased compensation expen$2.@fmillion
and increased stock-based compensation expendeSofrfilion. The increase in compensation
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expense was due to a 20% increase in average hedddtected by additional hiring in connectiontwit
development projects, as well as increased perfocehonus expense due to the achievement of sgfifiancial
metrics during fiscal year 2010 and an increagheémumber of individuals eligible for such bonBsofessional
services fees also increased due to these devetprgects.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses increased $0.7 mitliof2o, in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscalry2@10,
primarily due to increased compensation expen$d & million.

Sales and marketing expenses increased $0.5 mitliad3®o, in fiscal year 2010 compared to fiscalry2@09,
due to increased personnel costs of $1.0 milliatiglly offset by decreases in various smaller geifhe increase
personnel costs was due to increased stock-basegersation expense of $1.7 million, partially offsg a decline
in compensation expense of $0.7 million due toaekese of 18% in average headcount affected bghuatien in
workforce since the third quarter of fiscal yeab20while bonuses and commissions increased dileto
achievement of specified financial metrics durirsgdl year 2010.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increasedndilliOn, or 10%, in fiscal year 2011 compared techl year
2010, due to increased professional service fe&4 df million, higher insurance premiums of $0.3lion, state
franchise tax charges of $0.3 million and variomaker increases in general and administrative esge, partially
offset by decreased personnel costs of $0.2 milRvofessional service fees and insurance preminensased due
to our continued investment in corporate infradticee and related expenses associated with beingplecggompany
including increased compliance costs. The decriegsersonnel costs was driven by a decline in stmaded
compensation expense of $1.6 million primarily du¢he grant of fully-vested options to certain noems of the
board of directors in fiscal year 2010. The deadasstock-based compensation expense was paxidigt by
increased compensation expense of $1.4 millionamilpndue to higher salaries and performance bexpgnses
associated with the achievement of specified firmaetrics during fiscal year 2011.

General and administrative expenses increasedn$ili@n, or 40%, in fiscal year 2010 compared techl year
2009, due to increased personnel costs of $3.@milincreased professional services fees of $Ul®M increased
direct acquisition costs of $0.3 million and vasamaller increases in general and administratiperses, partiall
offset by a decline in legal fees of $0.6 millidme increase in personnel costs was due to inatedgek-based
compensation expense of $2.8 million and increasetbensation expense of $1.1 million. The incréastock-
based compensation expense was driven by the giréuity-vested options to certain members of ooatd of
directors in conjunction with an increase in thie ¥alue our common stock. The increase in compérsaxpense
was due to a 21% increase in average headcourtb dwe continued investment in corporate infradtie, as well
as increased performance bonus expense associgtetti@vachievement of specified financial metrieefessional
services fees increased due to our continued imesgtin corporate infrastructure and related experassociated
with being a public company, including increasedoamting and tax fees, higher insurance premiunvgsitor
relations and compliance costs. The decline inl leges was due to the settlement of an ongoind kegdter prior tc
the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 -201( 2010 -200¢

2011 2010 2009 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Interest incom $ 16 $ 97 $ 24t 74% (60)%
Interest expens (4,219 (3,977 (3,549 6% 12%
Other income (expense), r 56 1,52 (239) (96)% (737)%
Interest and other income (expense), $(3,98¢) $(2,357) $(3,53¢) 69% (339)%
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Interest and other income (expense), net decrdas®d.6 million, or 69%, in fiscal year 2011 comgxito
fiscal year 2010, due to a decrease in other inaof$d.5 million primarily from a gain of $1.2 niin in fiscal yea
2010 on the extinguishment of acquisition-relatezhgissory notes that we paid off at discounts pigomaturity.

Interest and other income (expense), net incredssgtimillion, or 33%, in fiscal year 2010 compatediscal
year 2009, due to an increase in other income (esgj)enet of $1.8 million, partially offset by artiease in intere:
expense of $0.4 million. Other income (expense)jm@eased due to a gain on the extinguishmeatq#isition-
related promissory notes of $1.2 million that wedpaf at discounts prior to maturity. The increasénterest
expense is attributable to the draw down on outitfacility, partially offset by lower non-cash puted interest on
acquisition-related promissory notes.

Provision for Taxes

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Provision for taxe: $17,887 $16,27¢  $13,90¢
Effective tax rate 39.7% 44.2% 44.¢%

The decrease in our effective tax rate in fiscalry@011 compared to fiscal year 2010, was primairiiyen by
lower state income tax expense.

Our effective tax rate remained largely unchangefiscal year 2010 compared to fiscal year 200Bigiser
non-deductible stock-based compensation expenséavgady offset by a tax benefit in foreign jurisdons and the
release of ASC 740-10 reserves.

As of June 30, 2011, we had net deferred tax as$&tE6.1 million. Our net deferred tax assets &ins
primarily of stock-based compensation expenseuateand reserves not currently deductible foiptaposes.

Selected Quarterly Financial Data

The following table sets forth our unaudited qudyteonsolidated statements of operations datéhfereight
quarters ended June 30, 2011. We have preparetitieenents of operations for each of these quarstetbe same
basis as the audited consolidated financial stat&recluded elsewhere in this report and, in thi@ion of the
management, each statement of operations incluidedjastments, consisting solely of normal reaugri
adjustments, necessary for the fair statementefahults of operations for these periods. Thigrinktion should b
read in conjunction with the audited consolidatiedricial statements and related notes included
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elsewhere in this report. These quarterly operatsglts are not necessarily indicative of our apeg results for
any future period.

Three Months Ended
June 30 Mar 31, Dec31 Sept30, June30 Mar31l, Dec31l Sept30
2011 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
(In thousands)

Net revenue $94,11¢ $107,70! $97,58: $103,61¢ $88,547 $90,77! $76,96: $ 78,55:
Costs of revenu 69,12: 78,57¢ 70,66. 73,62¢ 62,85¢ 66,26¢ 56,557 55,04:
Gross profit 24,99¢ 29,127 26,92( 29,987 25,68¢ 24,50f 20,40¢  23,50f
Operating expense

Product developmel 5,84: 6,83¢ 5,93¢ 5,551 5,192 5,32¢ 4,73¢ 4,47(

Sales and marketir 3,28% 4,687 4,66F 4,745 4,50¢ 4,57t 3,99( 3,62¢

General and administratiy 5,20¢ 5528 4,94 4,722 4,352 4,467 6,20 3,441
Operating incomi 10,66: 12,07¢ 11,37¢ 14,96¢ 11,63¢ 10,13¢ 547¢  11,96¢
Interest incom 30 25 47 67 64 1€ 8 9
Interest expens (1,109 (1,090 (1,02¢) (98€) (1,046 (1,302 (881) (74%)
Other income (expense), r (95) 66 (79) 164 1,302 (64) 165 12C
Income before income tax 9,492 11,07¢ 10,31¢ 14,217 11,95¢ 8,78¢ 4,76€  11,35(
Provision for taxe: (3,046 (4,740 (3,39) (6,71() (5,54f  (3,53f) (2,356 (4.,83)
Net income $ 6,44¢ $ 6,33¢ $692t $ 7501 $ 6411 $ 525( $ 241 $ 6,51
Net income per share:(

Basic $ 014 $ 014 $ 01f$ 017 $ 014 $ 01z $ 0.0t $ 0.1€

Diluted $ 01 $ 01 $ 014 $ O0.1€ $ 01 $ 011 $ 004 $ 0.1€
Other Financial Data:
Adjusted EBITDA $20,77¢ $ 23,21t $21,71¢ $ 24,59¢ $19,90! $18,33¢ $14,98¢ $ 18,15(

(1) Net income per share for the four quarters of daclal year may not sum to the total for the fispedr becaus
of the different number of shares outstanding dueach perioc

Adjusted EBITDA

Our use of Adjusted EBITDAWEe include Adjusted EBITDA in this report beca(geve seek to manage our
business to a consistent level of Adjusted EBITR/agercentage of net revenue, (ii) it is a keysbhgson which
our management assesses our operating perfornf@ndeis one of the primary metrics investorseuis evaluating
Internet marketing companies, (iv) it is a factothe evaluation of the performance of our managgine
determining compensation, and (v) it is an elenaégertain financial covenants under our debt ageygs. We
define Adjusted EBITDA as net income less providimntaxes, depreciation expense, amortization es@estock-
based compensation expense, interest and othen&expense), net.

We use Adjusted EBITDA as a key performance medsecause we believe it facilitates operating
performance comparisons from period to period lluekng potential differences caused by variationsapital
structures (affecting interest expense), tax pmsstisuch as the impact on periods or companieBasfges in
effective tax rates or fluctuations in permaneffedences or discrete quarterly items) and the cash impact of
depreciation, amortization and stock-based compiemsexpense. Because Adjusted EBITDA facilitateésiinal
comparisons of our historical operating performamee more consistent basis, we also use AdjusBé@EA for
business planning purposes, to incentivize and emisgte our management personnel and in evaluatgsition
opportunities.

In addition, we believe Adjusted EBITDA and simitaeasures are widely used by investors, securities
analysts, ratings agencies and other interestdig¢pam our industry as a measure of financialgrenfance and debt-
service capabilities. Our use of Adjusted EBITD/A tianitations as an analytical tool, and it showdd be
considered in isolation or as a substitute forysiglof our results as reported under GAAP. Sontbese
limitations are:

< Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect our cash exgiures for capital equipment or other contractual
commitments
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« although depreciation and amortization are-cash charges, the assets being depreciated antizadanay
have to be replaced in the future, and AdjustedTE does not reflect cash capital expenditure
requirements for such replacemel

» Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in, ohcaesjuirements for, our working capital nee

* Adjusted EBITDA does not consider the potdhtidilutive impact of issuing stock-based compdimato
our management team and employ:

« Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the signifitanterest expense or the cash requirements reeyess
service interest or principal payments on our ieébess

e Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect certain taayments that may represent a reduction in casheaieito
us; anc

« other companies, including companies in odusiry, may calculate Adjusted EBITDA measuresadéhntly,
which reduces their usefulness as a comparativeune,

Because of these limitations, Adjusted EBITDA sldoubt be considered as a measure of discretioreaty ¢
available to us to invest in the growth of our Imesis. When evaluating our performance, AdjustedrBBI should
be considered alongside other financial performaneasures, including various cash flow metricsjmsgme and
our other GAAP results.

The following table presents a reconciliation ofjidgled EBITDA to net income, the most comparableXBA
measure, for each of the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended
June 30 Mar 31, Dec 31 Sept30 June 30 Mar 31, Dec 31 Sept30
2011 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
(In thousands)

Net income $ 6,44¢ $ 6,33¢ $6,92¢ $ 7,501 $ 6,411 $ 525 $ 2,41C $ 6,51¢
Interest and other income (expense), $ 1,17C 1,00( 1,06( 75¢ (320)  1,35¢C 70€ 61¢
Provision for taxe: $ 3,04¢ 4,74( 3,391 6,71(C 5,54¢ 3,53¢ 2,35¢ 4,831
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 7,02 7,63 6,72 5,891 5,112 5,07t 4,651 3,952
Stocl-based compensation expel $ 3,097 3,501 3,61¢ 3,73( 3,152 3,12¢  4,86¢ 2,22¢

Adjusted EBITDA $20,77¢ $23,21¢ $21,71¢ $24,59¢ $19,907 $18,33¢ $14,98¢ $18,15(

Adjusted EBITDA quarterly trendsWe seek to manage our business to a consisteritdeAdjusted EBITDA
as a percentage of net revenue. We do so on & yisaabasis by varying our operations to balassemnue growth
and costs throughout the fiscal year. We do ndt seenanage our business to a consistent levedpisied
EBITDA on a quarterly basis and investors shoulpeet our Adjusted EBITDA margins to vary from qearto
quarter.

For quarterly periods ending from September 30920QJune 30, 2011, Adjusted EBITDA as a percentdge
revenue was 23%, 19%, 20%, 22% and 24%, 22%, 222205, respectively. In general, Adjusted EBITDAaas
percentage of revenue tends to be seasonally weattex quarter ending December 31, and strongquanters
ending March 31 and June 30.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary operating cash requirements includepthygnent of media costs, personnel costs, costs of
information technology systems and office facilitie

Our principal sources of liquidity as of June 3012, consisted of cash and cash equivalents of. $18#lion,
short-term marketable securities of $34.9 milliand our credit facility which had $123.4 millionalable for
borrowing. We believe that our existing cash arshaaguivalents, short-term marketable securities)able
borrowings under the credit facility and cash gatedt from operations will be sufficient to satisiyr currently
anticipated cash requirements through at leastéke12 months.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activiti $ 78,177 $ 38,50¢ $ 32,57(
Cash flows from investing activitie (134,769 (72,237 (27,326
Cash flows from financing activitie 33,07: 164,32: (5,012

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Our net cash provided by operating activities imprily the result of our net income adjusted fonfcash
expenses and changes in working capital componamdisis influenced by the timing of cash collectidrom our
clients and cash payments for purchases of mediatrer expenses.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fispaér 2011 was due to net income of $27.2 millmmn-cash
depreciation, amortization, stock-based compensaxpense and related tax benefits of $33.8 mjlkonincrease
in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $8ilon, a decrease in prepaid expenses and aissts of
$5.1 million and a decrease in accounts receivalt$3.9 million, partially offset by an increasedaferred taxes of
$3.3 million. The increase in accounts payableaawtued liabilities is due to timing of paymentsl amcreased co:
of revenue associated with increased revenue. @bedse in prepaid expenses and other assetmiariyidue to
timing of payments. The decrease in accounts rabéis attributable to timing of receipts. Therewse in deferre
taxes is due to larger temporary differences betviige financial statement carrying amount and aébebasis of
certain existing assets and liabilities.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fispaér 2010 was due to net income of $20.6 millmn-cash
depreciation, amortization, stock-based compensaxpense and related tax benefits of $30.3 mibiod an
increase in accounts payable and accrued liakilitfeb11.3 million, partially offset by an incredseaccounts
receivable of $14.4 million, an increase in defénaxes of $6.8 million, as well as a gain from ¢agly
extinguishment of debt of $1.2 million. The increas accounts payable and accrued liabilities estduiming of
payments and increased cost of sales associatednereased revenue. The increase in accounts/edgeiis
attributable to increased revenue, as well as gimiireceipts. The increase in deferred taxesiisaily due to
larger temporary differences between the finargtiatiement carrying amount and the tax basis oficegixisting
assets and liabilities.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fispaér 2009 was due to net income of $17.3 millmn-cash
depreciation, amortization, stotlased compensation expense and related tax beofe$igd.7 million and increas:
accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $5Monj partially offset by an increase in accourgseivable of
$9.0 million and increased deferred taxes of $4illiom. The increase in accounts payable and acthadilities is
due to timing of payments. The increase in accoreusivable is due to increased revenue, as welliago timing
of receipts. The increase in deferred taxes istdlgrger temporary differences between the firgrstatement
carrying amount and the tax basis of certain exgstissets and liabilities.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Our investing activities include acquisitions ofdieewebsites and businesses; purchases, salesaudti®es o
marketable securities; capital expenditures; apital&zed internal development costs.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal yeat P&vas primarily due to our acquisition of Carlreswe.com
for an initial cash payment of $49.7 million anduinance.com for an initial cash payment of $33.Mani Cash
used in investing activities was also impacted tcpases of the operations of 13 other online phlrlg businesst
for an aggregate of $9.2 million in cash paymentsich included $4.5 million of contingent considtwa related to
a prior period acquisition, as well as net investtaén marketable securities of $35.2 million. Gapexpenditures
and internal software development costs totaled Billion in fiscal year 2011.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal yeat@@as primarily due to our acquisitions of Intdroem,
Insure.com and HSH. We acquired the website busiokthe Internet.com division of WebMediaBrands.] a
New York-based Internet media company, for an initial q@esyment of $15.9 million. We acquired the website
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business of Insure.com from LifeQuotes, Inc., ndis-based online insurance quote service ankdregye
business, for an initial cash payment of $15.0iarill We acquired HSH, a New Jersey-based onlinepaom
providing comprehensive mortgage rate informatfonan initial cash payment of $6.0 million. Cased in
investing activities was also affected by purchaddbe operations of 30 other website publishingibesses for an
aggregate of $31.2 million in cash payments, wirickuded $4.5 million of contingent considerati@tated to the
acquisition of SureHits in fiscal year 2008. Calpitgpenditures and internal software developmestsctotaled
$4.1 million in fiscal year 2010.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal yead2Was affected by the acquisition of CardRatiragsah initial
cash payment of $10.4 million, as well as purcha$else operations of 33 other website publishingibesses for
an aggregate of $19.1 million in cash paymentsclviricluded $4.5 million of contingent consideratrelated to
the acquisition of SureHits in fiscal year 2008pita expenditures and internal software developroests totaled
$2.4 million in fiscal year 2009. Cash used in istirgg activities was partially offset by proceedsni sales and
maturities of marketable securities of $2.3 million

Net Cash Provided by or Used in Financing Activiie

Cash provided by financing activities in fiscal y2811 was primarily due to net proceeds from travedown
of our revolving credit line of $24.4 million, preeds from the exercise of stock options of $16/ianiand excess
tax benefits from stock-based compensation of $llton, partially offset by $15.4 million in prinpal payments
on acquisition-related promissory notes and oum tean.

Cash provided by financing activities in fiscal y2810 was primarily due to proceeds from our |R&, of
issuance costs, of $136.8 million, draw-down of cnadit facility, net of principal payments, of $20million,
proceeds from stock option exercises of $1.6 nmilkod excess tax benefits of $1.9 million, pasgtiaffset by
$15.5 million of principal payments on acquisiti®ated promissory notes.

Cash used in financing activities in fiscal yea®@2@vas due to principal payments on acquisitiontesl
promissory notes and our term loan of $13.1 milkowl stock repurchases of $1.3 million, partiaffget by
proceeds from a draw-down of our revolving creidi¢ lof $8.6 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the periods presented, we did not have alationships with unconsolidated entities or finahc
partnerships, such as entities often referred &irastured finance or special purpose entitieschvivould have
been established for the purpose of facilitatirfgbafance sheet arrangements or other contractoattpw or
limited purposes.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations relate primarily to tmwings under the credit facility, acquisition-ried
promissory notes, operating leases and purchaggatbhs.

The following table sets forth payments due underomntractual obligations as of June 30, 2011:

Payments Due by Period

Less Thar 1to 3to More Than
Total 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 5 Years
(In thousands)
Credit facility $ 96,747 $ 7,00 $89,74 $ — $ —
Notes payabli 10,961 3,591 6,76( 61C —
Operating lease obligat 19,46 1,881 597C 5,73¢ 5,87t

$127,17¢ $12,47¢ $102,47. $6,34¢ $ 5,87¢

The above table does not include approximately 8#li8on of long-term income tax liabilities for gertainty
in income taxes due to the fact that we are unableasonably estimate the timing of these potefutiare
payments.
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In connection with the acquisition of SureHits amahtingent upon the achievement of specified fir@nc
targets we may be required to make an earn-out gaaf $4.5 million in January of 2012.

Credit Facility

In January 2010, we replaced our existing creditifg with a credit facility totaling $175.0 mitin. The new
facility consisted of a $35.0 million four-year tefoan, with principal amortization of 10%, 15%98%nd 40%
annually, and a $140.0 million four-year revolviergdit line with an option to increase the revolygredit line by
$50.0 million. We exercised this option in Februa®i 1, thereby increasing the total capacity ofdteelit facility tc
$225.0 million.

Borrowings under the credit facility are collatézal by our assets and interest is payable atfsgonargins
above either LIBOR or the Prime Rate. The interatst varies dependent upon the ratio of funded webddjusted
EBITDA and ranges from LIBOR + 2.125% to 2.875%Poime + 1.00% to 1.50% for the revolving credieliand
from LIBOR + 2.50% to 3.25% or Prime + 1.00% to@&for the term loan. Adjusted EBITDA is definedrex
income less provision for taxes, depreciation espeamortization expense, stock-based compensatimnmse,
interest and other income (expense), net and atiquisosts for business combinations. The revajwiredit line
requires a facility fee of 0.375% of the revolviorgdit line capacity. The credit facility expiresJanuary 2014. Tt
credit facility agreement restricts our abilityrease additional debt financing and pay dividendsddition, we are
required to maintain financial ratios computed@®oivs:

1. Quick ratio: ratio of (i) the sum of unrestridteash and cash equivalents and trade receivasgsHan
90 days from invoice date to (ii) current liab#isi and face amount of any letters of credit lessthrent
portion of deferred revenue.

2. Fixed charge coverage: ratio of (i) trailing iveemonths of adjusted EBITDA to (ii) the sum opdal
expenditures, net cash interest expense, cash was#sdividends and trailing twelve months paymeit
indebtedness. Payment of unsecured indebtednessligled to the degree that sufficient unused révgl
credit line exists such that the relevant debt paytncould be made from the credit facility.

3. Funded debt to adjusted EBITDA: ratio of (i) $wen of all obligations owed to lending institutipnhe
face amount of any letters of credit, indebtedmssd in connection with acquisition-related noted a
indebtedness owed in connection with capital ledigations to (i) trailing twelve months of adfad
EBITDA.

Under the terms of the credit facility we must ntain a minimum quick ratio of 1.15:1.00, a minimdixed
charge coverage ratio of 1.15:1.00 and a maximurddd debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio of 2.50:1.00] #me term
also require us to comply with other non-financiavenants. We were in compliance with the covenasitsf
June 30, 2011 and 2010.

New Lease

As the previous lease for our corporate headqusaiteated at 1051 Hillsdale Boulevard, Foster Gitglifornia
expired in October 2010, we entered into a neweleagseement in February 2010 for approximately @8 &juare
feet of office space located at 950 Tower Lanetd¥dSity, California. The term of the lease begarNmvember 1,
2010 and expires on October 31, 2018. We have ptiorts to extend the term of the lease for onetatdil year
for each option following the expiration date oé tlease or renewal term, as applicable. The mohidse rent is
abated for the first 12 calendar months underehsd. Thereafter the base rent will be $118,0@udir the
24th calendar month of the term of the lease, aftech the monthly base rent will increase to $089,for the
subsequent 12 months.

In the following years the monthly base rent wiltiease approximately 3% after each 12-month arsave
during the term of the lease, including any extemsiunder our options to extend.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We have prepared our consolidated financial statésria conformity with accounting principles gerra
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)Xdmg so, we are required to make estimates asuhgstions
that affect the reported amounts of assets andlitie®, disclosure of contingent assets and liibg at the date of
the financial statements and reported amountsveimge and expenses during the reporting period.

Some of the estimates and assumptions we are eglfoimake relate to matters that are inherenttedain as
they pertain to future events. We base these etstinr@and assumptions on historical experience madpus other
factors that we believe to be reasonable and apptepunder the circumstances. On an ongoing basiseconside
and evaluate our estimates and assumptions. Aesialts may differ significantly from these estigmt

We believe that the critical accounting policiesddd below involve our more significant judgmesetgtimates
and assumptions and, therefore, could have theegtgaotential impact on our consolidated finanstatements. In
addition, we believe that a discussion of thes&@d is necessary to understand and evaluateotielidated
financial statements contained in this report.

For further information on our critical and othégrsficant accounting policies, see Note 2 of consolidated
financial statements included in this report.

Revenue Recognition

We derive our revenue from two sources: Direct Méirlg Services (“DMS”) and Direct Selling Services
(“DSS”).

DMS revenue is derived primarily from fees whick aarned through the delivery of qualified leadslioks
and, to a lesser extent, display advertisemenisymressions. We recognize revenue when persuasidence of a
arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, thésféred or determinable and collectability is reaably assured.
Delivery is deemed to have occurred at the timaadified lead or click is delivered to the cliembpided that no
significant obligations remain.

On July 1, 2010, as required under GAAP, we adofitecimended accounting guidance for multiple
deliverable revenue arrangements which providedaggie on whether multiple deliverables exist, hiogv t
deliverables in an arrangement should be separateidhow the consideration should be allocated.aoption of
this amended guidance did not have a significapairhon our revenue recognition for multiple delalde revenue
arrangements.

The guidance requires the allocation of revenusniarrangement using the estimated selling prie€®") of
deliverables if vendor-specific objective evidetft&SOE”) of selling price based on historical staaldne sales or
third-party evidence (“TPE”) of selling price dotrexist. Due to the unique nature of some of oulitipla
deliverable revenue arrangements, we may not leetaldstablish selling prices based on historizaddalone sale
or third party evidence, therefore we may use @st bstimate to establish selling prices for tlesgngements
under the new standard. We establish best estimétieian a range of selling prices considering npl#ifactors
including, but not limited to, factors such as sla§client, size of transaction, available medizntory, pricing
strategies and market conditions. We believe tleeofishe best estimate of selling price allows rexerecognition
in a manner consistent with the underlying econaroicthe transaction.

From time to time, we may agree to credit a clientertain leads or clicks if they fail to meegtbontractual
or other guidelines of a particular client. We haggblished a sales reserve based on historipatience. To date,
such credits have been immaterial and within opeetations.

For a portion of our revenue, we have agreementsproviders of online media or traffic (“Publisk&rused
in the generation of qualified leads or clicks. Yeeive a fee from our clients and pay a fee tdighars either on
revenue-share, cost-per-lead, cost- per-click st-per-thousand-impressions basis. We are the pyiotdigor in
the transaction. As a result, the fees paid byctients are recognized as revenue and the feesaig Publishers
are included in cost of revenue.

DSS revenue comprises (i) set-up and professi@maices fees and (ii) usage fees. Set-up and wiofes
service fees that do not provide stand-alone vilizeclient are recognized over the contractuah tef the
agreement or the expected client relationship dexdichever is longer, effective when the appi@ateaches the
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“go-live” date. We define the “go-live” date as ttiate when the application enters into a producatiorironment or
all essential functionalities have been delivetéshge fees are recognized on a monthly basis ascar

Deferred revenue is comprised of contractual lgliim excess of recognized revenue and paymerds/egkin
advance of revenue recognition.

Stock-Based Compensation

We measure and record the expense related to bamed transactions based on the fair values aitlaeds as
determined on the date of grant. For stock optiaesselected the Black-Scholes option pricing moadelstimate
the fair value. In applying the Black-Scholes optricing model, our determination of fair valueaféected by
assumptions regarding a number of highly compleksarbjective variables. These variables includéabel not
limited to, the expected stock price volatility owke term of the stock options and the employaegial and
projected stock option exercise and pre-vestingleynpent termination behaviors. The fair value dftrieted stock
units is determined based on the closing priceuoftommon stock on the date of grant.

We recognize stock-based compensation expensdlm/ezquisite service period using the straigte-lin
method, based on awards ultimately expected to Wastestimate future forfeitures at the date ohgeand revise
the estimates, if necessary, in subsequent pefiadtual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reportingt level on an annual basis and whenever everdbanges
in circumstances indicate the carrying value adorting unit exceeds its fair value. The applmabf the goodwill
impairment test requires judgment, including thenidfication of reporting units, the assignments$ets, liabilities
and goodwill to reporting units and the determimatof the fair value of each reporting unit. Sigraht judgments
required to estimate the fair value of reportingaiimclude estimating future cash flows and deteing appropriat
discount rates, growth rates and other assumpt@msnges in these estimates and assumptions ceiédiatly
affect the determination of fair value which cotrigger impairment. We performed our annual goobiwipairmen
test in our quarter ending June 30, 2011.

We concluded that DMS and DSS constitute two sépaegporting units. We determined the fair valueaf
DMS reporting unit by adjusting the fair value bétbusiness enterprise based on our market captiah for the
fair value of the DSS reporting unit. The fair valof our DSS reporting unit was estimated usingribeme
approach. Under the income approach, we calcutatethir value of our DSS reporting unit basedmpresent
value of estimated future cash flows. Our assessimditated that the estimated fair value of our ®kporting
unit was substantially in excess of its carryinfueawhile the estimated fair value of our DSS réipgrunit
approximated its carrying value. The carrying vadfieur DSS reporting unit includes allocated goibidoé
$1.2 million which represents less than 1% of otaltgoodwill balance. No impairment charges werded in
the periods presented.

The fair value of the reporting units and hencevlleation of goodwill could be affected if actuasults differ
substantially from our estimates. Circumstancesdbald affect the valuation of goodwill includemang other
things, a significant change in our market captlon, the business climate and buying habitsuoisabscriber
base, and with respect to the DSS reporting urt]dss of a significant customer.

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate long-lived assets, such as propertyegngpment and purchased intangible assets wiite fimes,
for impairment whenever events or changes in cigtantes indicate that the carrying value of antasag not be
recoverable. We apply judgment when estimatingdirevalue of the assets based on the undiscodntark cash
flows the assets are expected to generate andrigeogn impairment loss if estimated undiscountgdré cash
flows expected to result from the use of the askes net proceeds expected from disposition oa#set, if any, are
less than the carrying value of the asset. No impait charges were recorded in the periods presente
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Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using an asset anilitadipproach to record deferred taxes. Our defincome
tax assets represent temporary differences betthedinancial statement carrying amount and thebtesis of
existing assets and liabilities that will resuldeductible amounts in future years, includingaprating loss carry
forwards. Based on estimates, the carrying valumiohet deferred tax assets assumes that it is likety than not
that we will be able to generate sufficient futtarable income in certain tax jurisdictions. Outgment regarding
future profitability may change due to future mar&enditions, changes in U.S. or internationalleaxs and other
factors.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 to our consolidated financial statemfent;formation with respect to recent accounting
pronouncements and the impact of these pronoundsrorrour consolidated financial statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

We are exposed to market risks in the ordinarys®wf our business. These risks include primaaitgifyn
currency exchange and interest rate risks.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

To date, our international client agreements haentpredominately denominated in U.S. dollars, and
accordingly, we have limited exposure to foreigmrency exchange rate fluctuations related to clégmeements ai
do not currently engage in foreign currency hedgiagsactions. As the local accounts for some ofangign
operations are maintained in the local currencthefrespective country, we are subject to foreigmency exchang
rate fluctuations associated with the remeasuretoddtS. dollars. A hypothetical change of 10%adrefgn
currency exchange rates would not have a matdfedteon our consolidated financial condition osuts of
operations.

Interest Rate Risk

We invest our cash equivalents and short-term invests primarily in money market funds, US governme
securities and short-term deposits with originaturiies of less than twelve months. The investraamé held for
working capital purposes and acquisition financMi do not enter into investments for trading acgpative
purposes. We believe that we do not have matersire to changes in the fair value as a resudhahges in
interest rates due to the short-term nature ofrougstments. Declines in interest rates may refluicee investment
income. However, a hypothetical decline of 1% ia itterest rate on our investments would not hawaterial
effect on our consolidated financial condition esults of operations.

Our credit facility had a borrowing capacity of $2@ million. Interest on borrowings under the ctédcility is
based at specified margins above either LIBOR @Rtfime Rate. Our exposure to interest rate rislkeuthe credit
facility will depend on the extent to which we i#éd such facility. As of June 30, 2011, we had $96illion
outstanding under our credit facility. A hypothetincrease of 1% in the LIBOR or Prime Rate-baatztest rate
on our credit facility would result in an increaseour interest expense of $1.0 million per yeasuming constant
borrowing levels.

50




Table of Contents

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

QUINSTREET, INC.
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independegisiered Public Accounting Fir 52
Consolidated Balance She: 53
Consolidated Statements of Operati 54
Consolidated Statements of Convertible PreferrediSiStockholder Equity and Comprehensive Incot 55
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl¢ 56
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 57

51




Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of QuinStreet, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the index appearing under Item 15{g)(&sent
fairly, in all material respects, the financial fim of QuinStreet, Inc. and its subsidiarieswate) 30, 2011 and
2010, and the results of their operations and ttash flows for each of the three years in theggeended June 30,
2011 in conformity with accounting principles gealr accepted in the United States of America.dditon, in out
opinion, the financial statement schedule listethanindex appearing under Item 15(a)(2) presexitly fin all
material respects, the information set forth threveihen read in conjunction with the related cortsikd financial
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maietd, in all material respects, effective interoahtrol over
financial reporting as of June 30, 2011, basedritaria established in Internal Control — Integhfeamework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s
management is responsible for these financialrstés and financial statement schedule, for maiimgieffective
internal control over financial reporting and ftg assessment of the effectiveness of internatalomter financial
reporting, included in Management’s Report on im&&iControl Over Financial Reporting appearing uritham 9A.
Our responsibility is to express opinions on th@sencial statements, on the financial statemehéduale, and on
the Company’s internal control over financial reépay based on our audits (which was an integratefit & 2011).
We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighaiBlo
(United States). Those standards require that e ghd perform the audits to obtain reasonablea@ssa about
whether the financial statements are free of maltaerisstatement and whether effective internal mver
financial reporting was maintained in all materggpects. Our audits of the financial statememisiited examining
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amouadtslianlosures in the financial statements, assg$s@éaccounting
principles used and significant estimates made dgagement, and evaluating the overall financiaéstant
presentation. Our audit of internal control oveaficial reporting included obtaining an understagdif internal
control over financial reporting, assessing thk tiimt a material weakness exists, and testingeaalliating the
design and operating effectiveness of internalrocbibased on the assessed risk. Our audits aladiedt performing
such other procedures as we considered necessidugy dircumstances. We believe that our auditsigeoa
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassu
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipieee A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (Papeto the maintenance of records that, in redslerdetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disgositions of the assets of the company; (iiyvule reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as nactsgarmit preparation of financial statementsdcordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréipts and expenditures of the company are breadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management anedtdirs of the company; and (iii) provide reasoeassurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitexd acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegsts.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California

August 29, 2011
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QUINSTREET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, June 30,
2011 2010
(In thousands, excep

share and per share data

ASSETS
Current assetl
Cash and cash equivale $132,29(  $155,77(
Marketable securitie 34,927 —
Accounts receivable, n 48,22°¢ 51,46¢
Deferred tax asse 10,25: 8,52¢
Prepaid expenses and other as 5,77: 3,12:
Total current asse 231,46¢ 218,88"
Property and equipment, r 8,87t 5,41¢
Goodwill 211,85¢ 158,58:
Other intangible assets, r 65,84 47,15¢
Deferred tax assets, noncurr 5,86¢ 3,97
Other assets, noncurre 1,012 614
Total asset $524,92:  $434,63(

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payabl $ 23,30C $ 16,77¢
Accrued liabilities 33,23¢ 30,14+
Deferred revenu 2,531 1,241
Debt 10,03¢ 15,56:
Total current liabilities 69,107 63,72
Deferred revenue, noncurre 58 30¢&
Debt, noncurren 96,01( 78,04¢
Other liabilities, noncurrer 4,36( 2,53¢
Total liabilities 169,53! 144,60¢

Commitments and contingencies (See Note

Stockholder' equity

Common stock: $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 shard®rized; 49,564,877 and
47,247,147 shares issued, and 47,387,425 and 469%Shares outstanding at June 30,

2011 and 2010, respective 50 47
Additional paic-in capital 255,68t 217,58
Treasury stock, at cost (2,177,452 shares at Jon203.1 and 201( (7,779 (7,779
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 51 9
Retained earning 107,37¢ 80,16¢

Total stockholder' equity 355,38t 290,02:
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $524,92:  $434,63(

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands, except per share date

Net revenue $403,02: $334,83! $260,52
Cost of revenue(1 291,99; 240,73( 181,59:
Gross profit 111,03( 94,10¢ 78,93¢
Operating expenses:(

Product developmel 24,162 19,72¢ 14,88

Sales and marketir 17,38: 16,69¢ 16,15¢

General and administratiy 20,39¢ 18,46¢ 13,172
Operating incom: 49,08¢ 39,21 34,721
Interest incom 16¢ 97 24F
Interest expens (4,219 (3,977 (3,544
Other income (expense), r 56 1,52: (239)
Income before income tax 45,101 36,86( 31,18¢
Provision for taxe: (17,887 (16,276) (13,909
Net income $ 27,21+ $ 20,58 $ 17,27
Net income attributable to common stockhold

Basic $ 27,21« $12,78. $ 5,39¢

Diluted $ 27,21« $ 13,201 $ 5,79¢
Net income per share attributable to common stdclns:

Basic $ 05¢ $ 05C $ 041

Diluted $ 05t $ 046 $ 0.3¢
Weighted average shares used in computing net ing@mnshare attributable

to common stockholder

Basic 46,22 25,61¢ 13,29

Diluted 49,13( 28,42¢ 14,97

(1) Cost of revenue and operating expenses includ&-based compensation expense as follc

Cost of revenu $4,50¢ $3,111 $1,91¢
Product developmel 2,70¢ 2,17¢ 66¢
Sales and marketir 3,74 3,467 1,761
General and administrati 2,992 4,621 1,827

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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QUINSTREET, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED ST OCK, STOCKHOLDERS’

EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulated

Convertible Additional Other Total
Preferred Stock Common Stock Treasury Stock Paid-in  Comprehensive Retained Shareholders Comprehensive
Shares  Amount Shares  Amount _Shares  Amount _Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Equity Income
(In thousands, except share dats
Balance at June 30, 2008 21,176,53 $ 43,40 | 15,243,28 $ 15 (1,934,37)$ (5,727)$ 13,68' $ 34 $ 42,30t $ 50,31
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
stock options — — 169,71¢ — — — 304 — — 304
Stocl-based compensatic — — — — — — 6,17¢ — — 6,17
Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensatiol — — — — — — 474 — — 474
Repurchase of common sto — — — — (163,279 (1,33)) — — — (1,337)
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — — — — — — 17,27¢ 17,27¢ $ 17,27¢
Unrealized gain on investmer — — — — — — — (10 — (100 $ (10
Currency translation adjustmetr — — — — — — — 3) — (©)] ®)
Comprehensive incomnr — — — — — — — — — — $ 17,26°
Balance at June 30, 200 21,176,53 $43,40¢ | 15,413,00 $ 15 (2,097,65)% (7,06)$ 20,63¢ $ 21 $ 59,58( $ 73,18¢
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
stock options — — 657,61« 1 — — 1,63¢ — — 1,64(
Issuance of common stock in connection
with initial public offering, net of issuanc
costs of $13,21 — 10,000,000 10 — — 136,77! — — 136,78¢
Conversion of preferred stock to common
stock in connection with initial public
offering (21,176,53) (43,407 | 21,176,53 21 — — 43,38: — — 43,40:
Stocl-based compensatic — — — — — — 13,37: — — 13,37:
Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensatiol — — — — — — 1,78( — — 1,78(C
Repurchase of common sto — — — — (79,800 (715) — — — (715)
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — — — — — — 20,58¢ 20,58¢ $ 20,58¢
Currency translation adjustmet — — — — — — — (12) — 12) 12
Comprehensive inconr — — — — — — — — — — $ 20,572
Balance at June 30, 2010 — $ — | 47,247,14 $ 47 (2,177,45)$ (7,779 $ 217,58. $ 9 $ 80,16¢ $ 290,02:
Issuance of common stock upon exercise
stock options — — 2,317,731 3 — — 16,967 — — 16,97C
Payment of initial public offering issuance
costs — — — — — — (101) — — (101)
Stoclk-based compensatic — — — — — — 13,95( — — 13,95(
Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensatiol — — — — — — 7,292 — — 7,292
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — — — — — — 27,21« 27,21« $ 27,21«
Unrealized gain on investmer — — — — — — — 2 — 2 2
Currency translation adjustmer — — — — — — — 40 — 40 40
Comprehensive inconr — — — — — — — — — — $ 27,25¢
Balance at June 30, 2011 — $ — | 49,564,87 $ 50 (2,177,45)$ (7,779 $ 255,68¢ $ 51 $ 107,37¢ $ 355,38¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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QUINSTREET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income $ 27,21« $ 20,58 $17,27¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 27,27: 18,79 15,97¢
Provision for sales returns and doubtful accouatgivable (35) (757) 1,47:
Stocl-based compensatic 13,95( 13,37: 6,17
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic (7,459 (1,859 (4749
Other noi-cash adjustments, n 99 (1,6272) 563
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effetecquisitions
Accounts receivabl 3,88¢ (14,409 (9,042
Prepaid expenses and other as 4,947 29 48E
Other assets, noncurre 12C 11 (710
Deferred taxe: (3,2572) (6,777) (4,087)
Accounts payabl 6,37¢ 3,36: 3,35¢
Accrued liabilities 2,552 7,90( 2,491
Deferred revenu 1,04: (112 (720
Other liabilities, noncurrer 1,45¢ (22) (199
Net cash provided by operating activit 78,171 38,50¢ 32,57(
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Capital expenditure (5,369 (2,710 (1,347
Business acquisitions, net of notes payable an @eguirec (91,839  (68,17¢) (27,93
Internal software development co (1,847 (1,419 (1,060
Purchases of marketable securi (54,43)) — —
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketalolerisies 19,227 — 2,302
Other investing activitie (51%) 67 711
Net cash used in investing activit| (134,76 (72,23  (27,32¢)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common s (10€) 136,79( —
Proceeds from exercise of common stock opt 16,71( 1,64( 304
Proceeds from bank de 24,42¢ 43,30( 8,607
Principal payments on bank de (3,967) (3,200 (3,500
Principal payments on acquisit-related notes payab (11,457 (15,450 (9,560
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic 7,45¢ 1,85¢ 474
Repurchases of common stc (715) (1,337
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 33,07: 164,32 (5,0172)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvadnts 40 (12 ©)]
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (23,48() 130,58t 22¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 155,77( 25,18 24,95
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $132,29( $155,77( $25,18:
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informatior
Cash paid for intere: 4,12¢ 3,86( 2,26¢
Cash paid for taxe 16,88t 22,10¢ 20,35¢
Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Investing and i&ncing Activities
Notes payable issued in connection with busineggisitions 3,311 14,50: 8,151
Conversion of preferred stock to common st — 43,40: —

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

1. The Company

QuinStreet, Inc. (the “Company”) is an online veatimarketing and media company. The Company was
incorporated in California on April 16, 1999 anéharporated in Delaware on December 31, 2009.dtmpany
provides vertically oriented customer acquisitisagrams for its clients. The Company also providested
solutions for direct selling companies. The corpwteeadquarters are located in Foster City, Caliéomwith offices
in Arkansas, Florida, Massachusetts, Nevada, NeseyeNew York, North Carolina, Oklahoma, Oregaria and
the United Kingdom.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tumants of the Company and its subsidiaries. Intamany
balances and transactions have been eliminateshsotidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America (“GAAP”) requires managette make estimates and assumptions that affect th
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, discl®ef contingent assets and liabilities at the ddithe financial
statements and reported amounts of revenue ansigapeduring the reporting period. These estimagebased on
information available as of the date of the finahstatements; therefore, actual results coulédffbm those
estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenue from two sourceagcbMarketing Services (“DMS”) and Direct Selling
Services (“DSS”). DMS revenue, which constitutedenthan 99% in fiscal year 2011 and 99% of netmeedn
both fiscal year 2010 and 2009 is derived from febih are earned through the delivery of qualifesds, clicks
and, to a lesser extent, display advertisementspféssions”). The Company recognizes revenue wheupsive
evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery hasroed, the fee is fixed or determinable and cadibiity is
reasonably assured. Delivery is deemed to haveraatat the time a qualified lead, click or impiesss delivered
to the client provided that no significant obligets remain.

On July 1, 2010, as required under GAAP, the Compalopted the amended accounting standard for plaulti
deliverable revenue arrangements which providedaggie on whether multiple deliverables exist, hiogv t
deliverables in an arrangement should be separaedhow the consideration should be allocated.abiogtion of
this amended standard did not have a significapaizhon the Company’s revenue recognition for rpldti
deliverable revenue arrangements.

The guidance requires an entity to allocate revémag arrangement using the estimated sellinge{fEESP”)
of deliverables if it does not have vendor-speafijective evidence (“VSOE") of selling price basadhistorical
stand-alone sales or third-party evidence (“TPEalling price. Due to the unique nature of sorhiégsomultiple
deliverable revenue arrangements, the Company wialyenable to establish selling prices based aoiiisl stand-
alone sales or third party evidence, thereforaQbmpany may use its best estimate to establisinggltices for
these arrangements under the new standard. Theadynegtablishes best estimates within a rangellofgerices
considering multiple factors including, but not lied to, class of client, size of transaction, talde media
inventory, pricing strategies and market conditidrfse Company believes the use of the best estiofatelling
price allows revenue recognition in a manner caestsvith the underlying economics of the trangacti
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From time to time, the Company may agree to cr@ditent for certain leads, clicks or impressidrihey fail
to meet the contractual or other guidelines ofréi@dar client. The Company has established assalserve based
on historical experience. To date, such creditehmen immaterial and within management’s expectsti

For a portion of its revenue, the Company has agea¢s with providers of online media or traffic
(“Publishers”) used in the generation of leads eiaks. The Company receives a fee from its cliemd pays a fee
to Publishers as a portion of revenue generatexh @r cost per lead, cost per click or cost perghnd impressions
basis. The Company is the primary obligor in tlasaction. As a result, the fees paid by the Copipatients are
recognized as revenue and the fees paid to itsdhebs are included in cost of revenue.

DSS revenue, which constituted less than 1% irafigear 2011 and 1% of net revenue in both fisear 010
and 2009, comprises (i) set-up and professionalcs fees and (i) usage fees. Set-up and praofesksservice fees
that do not provide stand-alone value to a clieatracognized over the contractual term of theemgent or the
expected client relationship period, whicheveoisger, effective when the application reaches tjeelive” date.
The Company defines the “go-live” date as the ddten the application enters into a production emrnent or all
essential functionalities have been delivered. Bdags are recognized on a monthly basis as earned.

Deferred revenue is comprised of contractual lghiim excess of recognized revenue and paymerds/egkin
advance of revenue recognition.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mmpany to significant concentrations of credik @ensist
principally of cash and cash equivalents, marketabturities and accounts receivable. The Compamyéstment
portfolio consists of liquid high-quality fixed inme US government or municipal securities, cestfis of deposit
with financial institutions and money market fun@ssh and certificates of deposit are depositek fiviancial
institutions that management believes are credttwoiTo date, the Company has not experienced@ases on its
investment portfolio.

The Company’s accounts receivable are derived friients located principally in the United StatekeT
Company performs ongoing credit evaluation of lisnts, does not require collateral, and maintailfmvances for
potential credit losses on client accounts whemdeknecessary. To date, such losses have been withi
management’s expectations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist priatipof cash equivalents, accounts receivable, @uso
payable, acquisition-related promissory notesrma tean and a revolving credit line. The fair vabfahe
Companys cash equivalents is determined based on quoiaespn active markets for identical assets. Tloenee(
values of the Company’s accounts receivable anduants payable approximate their current fair valhas to the
relatively short-term nature of these accounts. falrevalue of acquisition-related promissory nadgproximates
their recorded amounts as the interest rates aifasifimancing arrangements available to the Comy#njune 30,
2011 approximates the interest rates implied whesd acquisition-related promissory notes werdraily issued
and recorded. The Company believes that the fhilegzof the term loan and revolving credit line mpgmate their
recorded amounts at June 30, 2011 as the intetest on these instruments are variable and basedhket interes
rates and after consideration of default and créskt

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with maturities ofrse months or less at the date of purchase arsfidasas cas
equivalents. Cash equivalents consist primarilgnohey market funds, municipal securities and detiés of
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deposit with original maturities of three monthdess. Cash equivalents amounted to $59,398 ans&33 at
June 30, 2011 and 2010.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost lessradated depreciation and amortization, and areetggied
on a straight-line basis over the estimated udises of the assets, as follows:

Computer equipmet 3 years

Software 3 years

Furniture and fixture 3 to 5 year:

Leasehold improvements the shorter of the lease term or the estimatedilbegs

of the improvement

Internal Software Development Costs

The Company incurs costs to develop software fiarimal use. The Company expenses all costs tlsere
the planning and post-implementation phases ofldpweent as product development expense. Costsrattur the
development phase are capitalized and amortizedtbegroducs estimated useful life if the product is expedte
have a useful life beyond six months. Costs astatiaith repair or maintenance of existing sitether
developments of website content are included i @bsevenue in the accompanying statements ofatjpss. The
Company’s policy is to amortize capitalized intdrsaftware development costs on a product-by-prolasis usins
the straight-line method over the estimated econdifei of the application, which is generally twears. The
Company capitalized $1,841, $1,414 and $1,06Gsiafiyears 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Aration of
internal software development costs is reflectecbist of revenue.

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reportungt level on an annual basis and whenever everdianges
in circumstances indicate the carrying value oasset may not be recoverable. Application of thedgall
impairment test requires judgment, including thenitfication of reporting units, assigning assetd kabilities to
reporting units, assigning goodwill to reportingtanand determining the fair value of each repgrtinit.
Significant judgments required to estimate the ¥alue of reporting units include estimating futeesh flows and
determining appropriate discount rates, growthsrated other assumptions. Changes in these estiarades
assumptions could materially affect the determaratf fair value for each reporting unit which adatigger
impairment.

The Company has determined that DMS and DSS cotestitvo separate reporting units. The Company
performs its annual goodwill impairment review agrits fourth fiscal quarter and concluded thatdyeit was not
impaired. No impairment charges were recordedérperiods presented.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates long-lived assets, suchogefy and equipment and purchased intangible sasgtt
finite lives, for impairment whenever events or s in circumstances indicate that the carryiigevaf an asset
may not be recoverable. The Company applies judgmiean assessing the fair value of the assets lmsdue
undiscounted future cash flows the assets are &ghém generate and recognizes an impairmentfiestimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to resnithfthe use of the asset plus net proceeds expiotad
disposition of the asset, if any, are less tharctreying value of the asset. When the Companytifiiesnan
impairment, it reduces the carrying amount of tegetito its estimated fair value based on a digedurash flow
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approach or, when available and appropriate, topawable market values. No impairment charges warerded in
the periods presented.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as theganged. Advertising expenses for fiscal years2@0D10
and 2009 were $190, $139 and $185, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using arn asddiability approach to record deferred taxdse
Company’s deferred income tax assets represenotamypdifferences between the financial statemarnyng
amount and the tax basis of existing assets ahilities that will result in deductible amountsfirture years. Based
on estimates, the carrying value of the Compangtdeferred tax assets assumes that it is morg tiken not that
the Company will be able to generate sufficientifattaxable income in the respective tax jurisditdi The
Company’s judgments regarding future profitabilitgy change due to future market conditions, chamgesS. or
international tax laws and other factors.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s foreign operations are subject thvamge rate fluctuations. The majority of the Conyan
sales and expenses are denominated in U.S. ddllaesfunctional currency for the majority of ther@gany’s
foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar. For theglsidiaries, assets and liabilities denominatddrigign currency
are remeasured into U.S. dollars at current exahaatgs for monetary assets and liabilities anihésl exchange
rates for nonmonetary assets and liabilities. Re¢nue, cost of revenue and expenses are geneng@gasured at
average exchange rates in effect during each peBaths and losses from foreign currency remeaseméare
included in other income (expense), net. Certaiaifm subsidiaries designate the local currenaheis functional
currency. For those subsidiaries, the assets ahiliies are translated into U.S. dollars at exgjearates in effect at
the balance sheet date. Income and expense itenmisaslated at average exchange rates for thedodrihe foreign
currency translation adjustments are included cuaulated other comprehensive income (loss) apa ate
component of stockholders’ equity. Foreign curremapsaction gains or losses are recorded in atieeme
(expense), net and were not material for any pggiedented.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of two componentsnoeme and other comprehensive income (loss)eiOth
comprehensive income (loss) refers to revenue,resgse gains, and losses that under GAAP are ratasian
element of stockholders’ equity but are excludednfinet income. The Compasytomprehensive income (loss) i
accumulative other comprehensive income (loss)istanef foreign currency translation adjustmentsrfrthose
subsidiaries not using the U.S. dollar as theicfiomal currency and unrealized gains and lossasanketable
securities categorized as available-for-sale. Tatalmulated other comprehensive income (lossEayed as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity.

Loss Contingencies

The Company is subject to the possibility of vasidass contingencies arising in the ordinary coofse
business. Management considers the likelihoodss & impairment of an asset or the incurrenceliabdity, as
well as its ability to reasonably estimate the antaf loss, in determining loss contingencies. Atireated loss
contingency is accrued when it is probable thasset has been impaired or a liability has beeauriad and the
amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Thep@oyregularly evaluates current information avddao its
management to determine whether such accrualsabhewdjusted and whether new accruals are required
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From time to time, the Company is involved in dig®, litigation and other legal actions. The Conypaatord:
a charge equal to at least the minimum estimagduilitly for a loss contingency only when both o flollowing
conditions are met: (i) information available priorissuance of the financial statements indicttasit is probable
that an asset had been impaired or a liabilitytheseh incurred at the date of the financial statespamd (ii) the
range of loss can be reasonably estimated. Thaldizhility in any such matters may be materiaifferent from
the Company’s estimates, which could result inrtéed to adjust the liability and record additioegbenses.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures and records the expensalreagtock-based transactions based on the faiegsalf
stock-based payment awards, as determined on teeflgrant. To estimate the fair value of stockans, the
Company selected the Black-Scholes option priciogleh In applying the Black-Scholes option pricmgdel, the
Company’s determination of the fair value of thecktoption is affected by assumptions regardingralver of
highly complex and subjective variables. Thesealdés include, but are not limited to, the Comparexpected
stock price volatility over the term of the stogitions and the employeesttual and projected stock option exer
and prevesting employment termination behaviors. TheValue of restricted stock units is determined basethe
closing price of the Company’s common stock ondate of grant.

For awards with graded vesting the Company recegrstock-based compensation expense over theitequis
service period using the straight-line method, daseawards ultimately expected to vest. The Compatimates
future forfeitures at the date of grant and revibesestimates, if necessary, in subsequent peifiadtual forfeiture
differ from those estimates.

See Note 11 for further information.

401(k) Savings Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribyilan covering all U.S. employees. Contributions enbay
the Company are determined annually by the Boamirgfctors. There were no employer contributiondeurrthis
plan for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Stand&dard (“FASB”) amended the accounting guidance for
revenue recognition to remove tangible productsainimg software components and non-software coreptathat
function together to deliver the product’s esséifitiactionality from the scope of industry-specifioftware revenue
recognition guidance. In October 2009, the FASB alsiended the accounting guidance for multiplevdedible
revenue arrangements to

« provide updated guidance on whether multigliverables exist, how the deliverables in an agemment
should be separated, and how the consideratioridshetallocated

e require an entity to allocate revenue in aarsgement using the estimated selling price (“ES®”")
deliverables if a vendor does not have vendor-§ipamtjective evidence (“VSOE") of selling price third-
party evidence" TPE") of selling price;

< and eliminate the use of the residual method agdire an entity to allocate revenue using the ingdatelling
price method

Both sets of guidance became effective for the Gomn July 1, 2010. The adoption of the new guidatid
not have a material effect on the Company’s codatd#id financial statements.
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In December 2010, the FASB issued an update tadbeunting guidance for business combinations. The
revised guidance clarifies how to present pro fommi@amation and mandates that all business contibimathat
occurred during the current reporting period shdaddeported as though the business combinatiombt@adred as
of the beginning of the comparative prior reportpegiod. The amendment is effective for annual répg periods
beginning on or after December 15, 2010, with eadgption permitted. The Company adopted the gaglan
effective in the second quarter of fiscal year 200He adoption of the amended guidance did not havaterial
effect on the Company’s consolidated financialestants.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an update that regjain entity to present the total of compreherisiseme,
the components of net income, and the componerathef comprehensive income either in a singleicantis
statement of comprehensive income or in two sepdmait consecutive statements. The guidance eligsrthe
option to present the components of other compigtherncome as part of the statement of equitig. éfffective for
the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2@hd should be applied retrospectively. The Commourrently
evaluating the impact of the adoption of the newdance on its consolidated financial statements.

3. Net Income Attributable to Common Stockholders and\et Income per Share

Basic and diluted net income per share attribute@mmmon stockholders is presented in conformit the
“two-class method” required for participating seties. In February 2010, all of the Company’s carntsting
convertible preferred stock converted into commioieksin connection with the IPO. Prior to the corsien, holder
of Series A, Series B and Series C convertiblegpredl stock were each entitled to receive 8% peu@mnon-
cumulative dividends, payable prior and in prefeesto any dividends on any other shares of the @Goyip capital
stock. No such dividends were paid.

For periods prior to the conversion of the conbéetpreferred stock, net income per share inforonat
computed using the two-class method. Under thedlass method, basic net income per share attriteutab
common stockholders is computed by dividing theimedme attributable to common stockholders byweehted
average number of shares of common stock outstgrtliring the period. Net income attributable to aoon
stockholders is computed by subtracting from nedine the portion of period-to-date earnings thatdteferred
stockholders would have been entitled to receiveyant to their dividend rights had this portiomef income bee
distributed. Diluted net income per share attribleao common stockholders is computed by usingubighted-
average number of shares of common stock outstgnidiciuding potential dilutive shares of commooct
assuming the dilutive effect of outstanding stopkians and restricted stock units using the trgastock method.
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The following table presents the calculation ofibasd diluted net income per share attributableotmmon
stockholders:

Years Ended June 30
2011 2010(2) 2009(2)
(In thousands, except per share dat:

Numerator:
Basic:
Net income $27,21¢ $20,58: $17,27¢
8% nor-cumulative dividends on convertible preferred st — (2,019 (3,27¢)
Undistributed earnings allocated to convertiblefgmmed stock — (5,789 (8,599
Net income attributable to common stockholc— basic $27,21¢ $12,78. $ 5,39¢
Diluted:
Net income attributable to common stockholc— basic $27,21«  $12,78. $ 5,39¢
Undistributed earnings -allocated to common stor — 41¢ 39¢
Net income attributable to common stockholc— diluted $27,21« $13,20. $ 5,79¢
Denominator
Basic:
Weighted average shares of common stock used ipwiimg basic net
income per shar 46,22: 25,61¢ 13,29¢
Diluted:
Weighted average shares of common stock used ipwiimg basic net
income per shar 46,22: 25,61¢ 13,29¢
Weighted average effect of dilutive securiti
Stock options 2,84¢ 2,81z 1,677
Restricted stock unit 63 — —
Weighted average shares of common stock used ipuwiimg diluted net
income per shar 49,13( 28,42¢ 14,97
Net income per share attributable to common stdclns:
Basic $ 05 $ 05C $ 041
Diluted $ 05t $ 04€ $ 0.3¢
Securities excluded from weighted average shamd inscomputing diluted net
income per share because the effect would have da«-dilutive:(1) 2,68¢ 2,91¢ 4,74(

(1) These weighted shares relate to anti-dilutive styations and restricted stock units as calculassdguthe
treasury stock method and could be dilutive infthere.

(2) Earnings per share for the fiscal years ended 30n2010 and 2009 include the effects of the cdibler
preferred stock under the t-class method before its conversion in connectidh thie IPO.
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4. Marketable Securities and Fair Value Measurement:
Marketable Securities

All liquid investments with maturities of three ntbe or less at the date of purchase are classifierash
equivalents. Investments with maturities greatantthree months at the date of purchase are d¢tabai$
marketable securities. The Company’s investmenis baen classified and accounted for as
available-for-sale. Management determines the ggijate classification of its investments at theetiof purchase
and reevaluates the available-for-sale designatsonf each balance sheet date. Available-for-salergies are
carried at fair value, with unrealized gains argsés, net of tax, reported as a component of stdadis’ equity.
The cost of securities sold is based upon the pééntification method.

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Company did olok $ecurities that had maturity dates greater tran
year.

The following table summarizes unrealized gainslasdes related to available-for-sale securitiéd hg the
Company as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

As of June 30, 201:

Gross Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
US municipal securitie $2362F $ 12 $ — $23,63]
Certificates of depos 19,04¢ — 10 19,03¢
Money market fund 51,654 — — 51,65¢

$94328 $ 12 $ 10 $94,32

As of June 30, 2010

Gross Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Money market fund $133,12¢ $ — 3 —  $133,12¢
$133,12¢ $ —  $ —  $133,12¢

The Company did not realize any gains or losses Bales of its investments in fiscal years 2011026r
20009.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would leeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitgitfi.e., the
“exit price”) in an orderly transaction between ketrparticipants at the measurement date. A hikyaiar inputs
used in measuring fair value has been defined hinniie the use of unobservable inputs by requitheguse of
observable market data when available. Observapléts$ are inputs that market participants wouldingicing the
asset or liability based on active market data.ddeovable inputs are inputs that reflect the Comgaassumptions
about the assumptions market participants wouldrupeicing the asset or liability based on thetlhe®rmation
available in the circumstances.

The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputsittiree broad levels:
Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices fivamarkets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs are quoted prices for similar &ssmd liabilities in active markets or inputs theg
observable for the asset or liability, either dilgor indirectly through market corroboration, feubstantially
the full term of the financial instrument.
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Level 3 — Inputs are unobservable inputs basetherCompany’s assumptions.

The financial instruments held by the Company a®uoke 30, 2011 and 2010 were categorized as foilowe

fair value hierarchy:

US municipal securitie
Certificates of depos
Money market fund

Money market fund

5. Balance Sheet Component

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable, net are comprised of the fahg:

Accounts receivabl
Less: Allowance for doubtful accour
Less: Allowance for sales retur
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Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2011 Usi

Quoted Prices in Significant Other
Active Markets Observable
for Identical Assets Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2)
$23,637 % — 3 23,631
19,03¢ — 19,03¢
51,65¢ 51,65¢ —
$94,327 $ 51,65¢ $ 42,67

Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2010 Usii
Quoted Prices in Significant Other

Active Markets Observable
for Identical Assets Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2)
$133,12¢ $ 133,12¢ $ —
$133,12¢ $ 133,12¢ $ —
June 30,
2011 2010

$50,04¢  $54,22:
(276) (324)
(2,447 (2,439
$48,22¢  $51,46¢
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Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net is comprised of thieviehg:

June 30,

2011 2010
Computer equipmet $11,44¢ $ 11,50¢
Software 6,34 5,94¢
Furniture and fixture 2,40¢ 1,97¢
Leasehold improvemen 1,86: 917
Internal software development co 16,71 14,87(

38,77( 35,21t
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (29,895 (29,796

$ 887t $ 54i¢

Depreciation expense was $3,629, $2,227 and $2¢r4iacal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Amortization expense related to internal softwageadopment costs was $1,478, $1,275 and $1,5006a years
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Accrued liabilities

Accrued liabilities are comprised of the following:

June 30,
2011 2010
Accrued media cos $17,51¢  $15,76(
Accrued compensation and related expe 12,40: 11,87:
Accrued taxes payab 517 642
Accrued professional service and other businessresqs 2,80z 1,87(
Total accrued liabilitie: $33,23¢  $30,14«

6. Acquisitions
Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2011
Acquisition of Carlnsurance.com

On November 5, 2010, the Company acquired 100%eobtitstanding shares of Car Insurance.com, Inc., 0
Carlnsurance.com, a Florida-based online insurbos@ess, and certain of its affiliated compariesxchange for
$49,655 in cash paid upon closing of the acquisitithe results of Carlnsurance.com’s operationg teen
included in the consolidated financial statemeintsesthe acquisition date. The Company acquired
Carlnsurance.com for its capacity to generate enlisitors in the financial services market. Th@ltpurchase pric
recorded was as follows:

Amount
Cash $49,65¢
$49,65¢
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The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedssscombination. The Company allocated the pseha
price to tangible assets acquired, liabilities assth and identifiable intangible assets acquireédbas their
estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase pver the aggregate fair value was recordegbadwill. The
goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. The follog/table summarizes the preliminary allocatiorhef purchase
price and the estimated useful lives of the idatilé intangible assets acquired as of the datieeohcquisition:

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquir $ 661
Liabilities assumei (807)
Advertiser relationship 26C 6-7 year:
Content 16,13( 7 year
Website/trade/domain nam 4,35( 10 year
Acquired technology and othe 3,00¢ 2-4 year:
Noncompete agreemer 40 4 year.
Goodwill 26,02: Indefinite
$ 49,65¢

Acquisition of Insurance.com

On July 26, 2010, the Company acquired the websisiness of Insurance.com, from Insurance.com Group
Inc., an Ohio-based online insurance businessgghange for $33,000 in cash paid upon closing efatquisition
and the issuance of a $2,640 non-interest-beauimggcured promissory note payable in one instalimerthe
second anniversary of the acquisition date. Theltseef Insurance.com’s operations have been irclud the
consolidated financial statements since the adtprisilate. The Company acquired Insurance.contgarapacity to
generate online visitors in the financial servioeket. The total purchase price recorded was|ks\v&

Amount.
Cash $33,00(
Fair value of debt (net of $157 of imputed intey: 2,487
$35,48:

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedssscombination. The Company allocated the pseha
price to tangible assets and identifiable intargédsets acquired based on their estimated faiesal he excess of
the purchase price over the aggregate fair valigeraegorded as goodwill. The goodwill is deductitoletax
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purposes. The following table summarizes the atlonaf the purchase price and the estimated usigéd of the
identifiable intangible assets acquired as of the @f the acquisition:

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquir $ 1,20¢
Advertiser relationship 2,12( 7 year
Content 4,29( 4 year.
Website/trade/domain nam 2,94( 10 year
Acquired technology and othe 5,53( 2-4 year:
Noncompete agreemer 60 5 year:
Goodwill 19,33¢ Indefinite
$ 35,48

Other Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2011

During fiscal year 2011, in addition to the acquisis of Carlnsurance.com and Insurance.com, thepg2oy
acquired operations from 13 other online publistinginesses in exchange for $4,722 in cash paid clpsing of
the acquisitions and $864 in non-interest-beatimgecured promissory notes payable over a peritichefranging
from one to three years. The Company also recdbdesDO0 in earreut payments related to a prior period acquis
as addition to goodwill. The aggregate purchaseemecorded was as follows:

_Amount.
Cash $ 9,22
Fair value of debt (net of $36 of imputed inter 82¢
$10,05(

The acquisitions were accounted for as purchasedmsscombinations. In each of the acquisitiorss, th
Company allocated the purchase price to identdiafifangible assets acquired based on their estihfair values.
The excess of the purchase price over the aggrégjatealue was recorded as goodwill. Goodwill detihle for tax
purposes is $7,914. The following table summarikesreliminary allocation of the purchase pricethese other

acquisitions and the estimated useful lives ofideatifiable intangible assets acquired as of #spective dates of
these acquisitions:

Estimated Estimated

Fair Value Useful Life

Customer/publisher relationshi $ 23¢ 3-5 year:

Content 1,274 3-5 year

Website/trade/domain nam 541 4-5 year.

Noncompete agreemer 88 1-3 year

Goodwill 7,914 Indefinite
$ 10,05(

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2010

In fiscal year 2010, the Company acquired the wielimisiness of Internet.com, a division of WebMBdands
Inc., a New York-based Internet media company rt@atden its media access and client base
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in the business-to-business market, the websitedss Insure.com, from Life Quotes, Inc., an lligbased online
marketing company for its capacity to generateraniisitors in the financial services market, 100Rthe
outstanding shares of Payler Corp. D/B/A HSH Assias Financial Publishers (“HSH”), a New Jerbaged onlin
marketing business, for its capacity to generatmenwisitors in the financial services marketvasl as 30 other
online publishing businesses. The Company alsadedd$4,500 in earn-out payments related to a peadod
acquisition as addition to goodwiill.

The total purchase prices recorded were as follows:

Internet.com Insure.com HSH Other Total
Cash $ 1594! $ 15,00C $6,00C $29,88: $66,82¢
Fair value of debt (net of imputed intere 1,65¢ 97€ 3,75¢ 8,117 14,50:

$ 17,597 $ 1597¢ $9,75¢ $37,99: $81,32¢

The acquisitions were accounted for as a purchasi@éss combinations. The Company allocated thehpge
price to tangible assets acquired, liabilities assth and identifiable intangible assets acquiregdbas their
estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase pver the aggregate fair value was recordegbadwill. The
goodwill deductible for tax purposes is $50,893e Tdllowing table summarizes the allocation of pvechase price
and the estimated useful lives of the identifidhtangible assets acquired as of the date of thaisitions:

Estimated
Internet.com  Insure.com HSH Other Total Useful Life
Tangible assets acquir $ 313¢ $ — $ 50 $ 45 §$ 3,231
Liabilities assumei (509 — (1,695 — (2,199¢)
Customer/publisher/advertiser relationst 1,30(C 90C 1,10C 1,15(C 4,45C 1-7 year
Content 2,40( 3,90( 1,40( 8,38« 16,08«  1-8 year
Website/trade/domain nam 2,50( 1,25( 80C 2,74¢ 7,29¢  5-8 year
Acquired technolog — — — 19¢ 19¢ 3 year
Noncompete agreemer 20C — — 224 424  2-3 year
Goodwill 8,56¢ 9,92¢ 8,10¢ 25,24« 51,83t Indefinite

$ 17597 $ 1597¢ $9,75¢ $37,99: $81,32¢

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2009

In fiscal year 2009, the Company acquired 100%nefdutstanding shares of CardRatings, an Arkarnasseb
online marketing company for its capacity to geteemline visitors in the financial services marlket well as 33
other online publishing businesses. The Companyraisorded $4,500 in eaout payments related to a prior per
acquisition as addition to goodwiill.
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The total purchase prices recorded were as follows:

CardRatings Other Total
Cash $ 10,37. $19,10¢ $29,47¢
Fair value of debt (net of imputed intere 4,27¢ 3,87: 8,151
Acquisition related cost 20 134 154

$ 14,67( $23,11: $37,78:

The acquisitions were accounted for as a purchasi@déss combinations. The Company allocated thehpse
price to tangible assets acquired, liabilities assth and identifiable intangible assets acquiregdbas their
estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase pver the aggregate fair value was recordegbadwill. The
goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. The follog/table summarizes the allocation of the purchpEe and the
estimated useful lives of the identifiable intarigibssets acquired as of the date of the acquisitio

Estimated
CardRatings Other Total Useful Life
Tangible assets acquir: $ 834 $ — $ 834
Liabilities assumei (20€) (22 (228)
Customer/publisher/advertiser relationsk 2,32t 1,952 4,271 1-7 year:
Content 14C 2,53¢ 2,67¢ 1-6 year
Website/trade/domain nam 77€ 2,41¢ 3,194 5 year
Acquired technolog — 392 392 3 year
Noncompete agreemer 124 23€ 36C 2-3 year:
Goodwill 10,67 15,59¢ 26,27¢ Indefinite

$ 14,67C $23,111 $37,78¢

Pro Forma Financial Information (unaudited)

The unaudited pro forma financial information ie tlable below summarizes the combined results efatipn:
for the Company and other companies that were emjgince the beginning of fiscal year 2010. Thefprma
financial information includes the business combaraaccounting effects resulting from these adtjaiss
including amortization charges from acquired inthfegassets and the related tax effects as thcgh t
aforementioned companies were acquired as of thmmieg of fiscal year 2010. The unaudited pro farfimancial
information as presented below is for informatiopatposes only and is not indicative of the resofltsperations
that would have been achieved if the acquisitiats taken place at the beginning of fiscal year 2010

Fiscal Year Ended June 3(

2011 2010
Net revenue $404,77 $348,79:
Net income 27,98! 13,80«
Basic net income per she $ 061 $ 0.2t
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.57 $ 0.2
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7. Intangibles Assets, Net and Goodwil
Intangible assets, net consisted of the following:

June 30, 2011 June 30, 201(
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated  Carrying Carrying Accumulated  Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

Customer/publisher/advertiser relations| $ 29,26¢ $ (16,897 $12,377 $26,65¢ $ (11,455 $15,20:

Content 56,66 (25,147 31,52:  34,96¢ (16,4549 18,51f
Website/trade/domain nam 23,53 (8,569 14,96¢ 15,70 (5,19¢) 10,50:
Acquired technology and othe 20,19( (13,205 6,98t 1147, (8,540 2,931

$129,65' $ (63,809 $65,847 $88,80: $ (41,647 $47,15¢

Amortization of intangible assets was $22,165, $388,and $11,736 for fiscal years 2011, 2010 an®200
respectively.

Amortization expense for the Company’s acquisitielated intangible assets as of June 30, 201 lafthr ef the
next five years and thereafter is as follows:

Year Ending June 30

2012 $20,92:
2013 15,33t
2014 10,64
2015 6,73¢
2016 4,74F
Thereaftel 7,467

$65,84"

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillffecal years 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

DMS DSS Total
Balance at June 30, 20 $105,51¢ $1,231 $106,74-
Additions 51,83¢ — 51,83¢
Balance at June 30, 20 $157,35: $1,231 $158,58:
Additions 53,27¢ — 53,27¢
Balance at June 30, 20 $210,62¢ $1,231 $211,85¢

The additions to goodwill relate to the Companycgusitions as described in Note 6, and primaelject the
value of the synergies expected to be generated ¢dmmbining the Company’s technology and know-hatt the
acquired businesses’ access to online visitors.
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8. Income Taxes

The components of income before income taxes ai@las/s:

us
Foreign

The components of the provision for taxes are bews:

Current
Federal
State

Foreign

Deferred
Federal
State
Foreign

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009
$44,27(  $35,987 $30,80¢
831 878 371

$45,10.  $36,86( $31,18¢

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2011 2010 2009

$18,58. $17,55; $14,01¢
2,741 5827  3,80¢
18€ (88) 164

21,50¢ 23,29¢ 17,99(

$(3,260 $(6,005 $(4,109)
(324) (981) 94
(37) (32) (66)
(3,62) (7,019  (4,08])
$17,887 $16,27¢ $13,90¢

The reconciliation between the statutory federabme tax and the Company'’s effective tax rates as a

percentage of income before income taxes is asvsl|

Federal tax rat

States taxes, net of federal ben
Stocl-based compensation expel
Other

Effective income tax rat
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009
35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
3.2% 8.1% 8.2%
2.&% 4.4% 2.8%

139%  (3.9%  (1.49%

39.1% 44.2% 44.€%
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The components of the current and long-term deddar assets, net are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2011 2010
Current:
Reserves and accru $ 6,42¢ $ 4,78(C
Stock options 1,954 1,54t
Deferred revenu 95¢ 19C
Other 91€ 1,88¢
Net operating los — 12¢
Total current deferred tax ass $10,25: $ 8,52¢
Noncurrenti
Stock options $ 5,861 $ 4,634
Intangible assetl 1,15¢ (462)
Net operating los — 16¢
Fixed asset (1,167 (217)
Foreign 10 11
Total noncurrent deferred tax ass 5,86¢ 4,141
Valuation allowanct — (169
Noncurrent deferred tax assets, $ 5,86¢ $ 3,972
Total deferred tax assets, | $16,11¢ $12,50(

Management periodically evaluates the realizabilftjhe deferred tax assets and recognizes thieeiaefit only
as reassessment demonstrates that they are réalidabuch time, if it is determined that it is redikely than not
that the deferred tax assets are realizable, thtian allowance will be adjusted. As of June 3011 the Compar
determined that no valuation allowance is requaed believes it is more likely than not to real@l its deferred
tax assets in the foreseeable future.

As of June 30, 2011, the Company had no operatisg darryforwards for federal or state income tappses.
The California net operating loss of $2,494 asumie]30, 2010 was utilized in fiscal year 2011.

United States federal income taxes have not bemnded for the $1,565 of cumulative undistributedréngs
of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries as of June28Q1. The Company’s present intention is thahsuc
undistributed earnings be permanently reinvestéshofe, with the exception of the undistributednézgs of its
Canadian subsidiary. The Company would be subjeatitiitional United States taxes if these earnings
repatriated. The amount of the unrecognized deféneome tax liability related to these earningaas material to
the consolidated financial statements.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amsusftunrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Fiscal Year
2011 2010 2009
Balance at the beginning of the yt $2,01¢  $2,617 $2,24¢
Gross increase— current period tax positior 492 21¢ 86¢
Gross decreas+— current period tax positior — (299
Reductions as a result of lapsed statute of limita (195) (99 (20€)
Gross decreas+— settlements with tax authoritit — (729 —
Balance at the end of the ye $2,312  $2,01¢ $2,61%

The Company’s policy is to include interest andgiges related to unrecognized tax benefits within
Company’s provision for income taxes. As of JungZ8l 1, the Company has accrued $572 for interast a
penalties related to the unrecognized tax bendfits.balance of unrecognized tax benefits andelated interest
and penalties is recorded as a noncurrent lialolitghe Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

As of June 30, 2011, unrecognized tax benefit2@®, if recognized, would affect the Companyeeive
tax rate. The Company does not anticipate thaamheunt of existing unrecognized tax benefits wihsficantly
increase or decrease within the next 12 months.

With few exceptions, the Company is no longer scittje U.S. federal, state and local, or non-Ur&pme tax
examinations by tax authorities for years befor@72@he California Franchise Tax Board (“FTB”) isaeining the
Company’s California income tax return for its isgears ended June 30, 2007 and 2008. The awditriently in
progress with no estimated completion date. The 2o files income tax returns in the United Stavasious
U.S. states and certain foreign jurisdictions. Agume 30, 2011, the tax years 2008 through 20m@ireopen in th
U.S., the tax years 2006 through 2010 remain opéine various state jurisdictions, and the tax y@806 through
2010 remain open in various foreign jurisdictions.

9. Debt
Promissory Notes

During fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Comjssued total promissory notes for the acquisitbn
businesses of $3,311, $14,501 and $8,151, resphgtiet of imputed interest amounts of $193, $84@ $1,117,
respectively. All of the promissory notes are noteiiest-bearing. For these notes, interest wastedmuch that the
notes carry an interest rate commensurate withatveitable to the Company in the market for similabt
instruments. Accretion of promissory notes of $52B,188 and $1,461 was recorded as interest expemnsey
fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectivelytaireof the promissory notes are secured by thetasequired
with respect to which the notes were issued.

Credit Facility

In September 2008, the Company replaced its egiséxolving credit facility of $60,000 with a credacility
totaling $100,000. The new facility consisted &39,000 five-year term loan and a $70,000 revoldreglit line.

In November 2009, the Company entered into an amentof its existing credit facility pursuant to isth the
Company’s lenders agreed to increase the maximuauanavailable under the Company’s revolving crédé
from $70,000 to $100,000.

In January 2010, the Company replaced its exigtindit facility with a new credit facility with tat borrowing
capacity of $175,000. The new credit facility catsiof a $35,000 four-year term loan, with printipa
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amortization of 10%, 15%, 35% and 40% annually, @a8$d40,000 four-year revolving credit line with @ptional
increase of $50,000. In February 2011, the Comaeycised this option, thereby increasing the waahcity of
the credit facility to $225,000.

Borrowings under the credit facility are collatézatl by the Company’s assets and interest is payabl
specified margins above either LIBOR or the Prina¢eRThe interest rate varies dependent upon tieeafafunded
debt to adjusted EBITDA and ranges from LIBOR +28% to 2.875% or Prime + 1.00% to 1.50% for theoheing
credit line and from LIBOR + 2.50% to 3.25% or Peim 1.00% to 1.50% for the term loan. Adjusted HBATis
defined as net income less provision for taxesret2ation expense, amortization expense, stockebase
compensation expense, interest and other inconpeee), net and acquisition costs for business @tibns. The
revolving credit line requires a facility fee o8805% of the revolving credit line capacity. Theditdacility expires
in January 2014. The credit facility agreementrietstthe Company’s ability to raise additional d&bancing and
pay dividends. In addition, the Company is requiechaintain financial ratios computed as follows:

1. Quick ratio: ratio of (i) the sum of unrestridteash and cash equivalents and trade receivadgsHan
90 days from invoice date to (ii) current liab#éisi and face amount of any letters of credit lescthrent
portion of deferred revenue.

2. Fixed charge coverage: ratio of (i) trailing iveemonths of adjusted EBITDA to (ii) the sum opdal
expenditures, net cash interest expense, cash was#sdividends and trailing twelve months paymeit
indebtedness. Payment of unsecured indebtednesslisled to the degree that sufficient unused révgl
credit line exists such that the relevant debt paytncould be made from the credit facility.

3. Funded debt to adjusted EBITDA.: ratio of (i) $wen of all obligations owed to lending institutipnhe
face amount of any letters of credit, indebtedmessd in connection with acquisition-related noted a
indebtedness owed in connection with capital ledsigations to (i) trailing twelve months of adjad
EBITDA.

Under the terms of the credit facility the Compamyst maintain a minimum quick ratio of 1.15:1.00, a
minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.15:1.06 amaximum funded debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio of
2.50:1.00, and the terms also require the Compaopmply with other nonfinancial covenants. The @any was
in compliance with the covenants as of June 301201 2010.

Upfront arrangement fees incurred in connectiomwie credit facility are deferred and amortizedrahe
remaining term of the arrangement. As of June 8Q12and 2010, $30,188 and $34,150, respectively, wa
outstanding under the term loan. Under the revgleiredit line $66,553 and $41,753 was outstandinof dune 30,
2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Debt Maturities
The maturities of debt as of June 30, 2011 wefelksvs:

Promissory Credit
Year Ending June 30 Notes Facility
2012 $ 3597 $ 7,00C
2013 4,95¢ 12,68¢
2014 1,802 77,05¢
2015 56C
2016 50 —
10,96" 96,74
Less: imputed interest and unamortized disco (422) (1,239
Less: current portio (3,526 (6,512
Noncurrent portion of del $ 7,01¢ $88,99:

Letters of Credit

The Company has a $350 letter of credit agreem#htaxfinancial institution that is used as coltatdor
fidelity bonds placed with an insurance company @a$%00 letter of credit agreement with a finantiatitution tha
is used as collateral for the Company’s corporatlquarters’ operating lease. The letters of ceeddmatically
renew annually without amendment unless canceletthé financial institutions within 30 days of thenual
expiration date.

10. Commitments and Contingencie

Leases

The Company leases office space and equipment motlecancelable operating leases with various akpit
dates through fiscal year 2018. Rent expensedoafiyears 2011, 2010 and 2009, was $3,259, $2008%2,550,
respectively. The Company recognizes rent expensestraight-line basis over the lease period aocuas for rent
expense incurred but not paid.

Future annual minimum lease payments under allanmmelable operating leases as of June 30, 2011asere

follows:

Operating
Year Ending June 30 Leases
2012 $ 1,881
2013 2,934
2014 3,03¢
2015 2,89¢
2016 2,831
Thereafte 5,87¢

$19,46:
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The lease for the Company'’s previous corporate dugsatiers located at 1051 Hillsdale Boulevard, FdStty,
California expired in October 2010.

In February 2010, the Company entered into a nesel@greement for office space located at 950 Thaee,
Foster City, California. The term of the lease lmega November 1, 2010 and expires on October 318.Z0he
Company has the option to extend the term of thsdawice by one additional year. The monthly baseis abate:
for the first year of the lease, then will be $118he second year and $182 in the third year efé¢hse term. In the
following years the monthly base rent will increagproximately 3% annually.

Guarantor Arrangements

The Company has agreements whereby it indemntBesfficers and directors for certain events oruonces
while the officer or director is, or was servingitlle Company’s request in such capacity. The t#rthe
indemnification period is for the officer or directs lifetime. The maximum potential amount of futpayments th
Company could be required to make under these indeation agreements is unlimited; however, therany
has a director and officer insurance policy thaits its exposure and enables the Company to ree@opertion of
any future amounts paid. As a result of its insaegpolicy coverage, the Company believes the estirfair value
of these indemnification agreements is minimal. &xdingly, the Company had no liabilities recordedthese
agreements as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, resggctive

In the ordinary course of its business, the Compantgrs into standard indemnification provisiongsn
agreements with its clients. Pursuant to theseigions, the Company indemnifies its clients forskes suffered or
incurred in connection with third-party claims tlea€ompany product infringed upon any United Stpsdent,
copyright or other intellectual property rights. ¥/l applicable, the Company generally limits suftiigement
indemnities to those claims directed solely tgitsducts and not in combination with other softwar@roducts.
With respect to its DSS products, the Company gésterally reserves the right to resolve such cldyndesigning
non-infringing alternative or by obtaining a licensn reasonable terms, and failing that, to tertaiita relationship
with the client. Subject to these limitations, them of such indemnity provisions is generally cati@ous with the
corresponding agreements.

The potential amount of future payments to defemeslits or settle indemnified claims under these
indemnification provisions is unlimited; howevdretCompany believes the estimated fair value cfetiedemnity
provisions is minimal, and accordingly, the Compaag no liabilities recorded for these agreemesitsfdune 30,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

During fiscal year 2009, the Company settled aeinity obligation with respect to one litigation thea. See
discussion below for further details.

Litigation

In 2005, the Company was notified by one of its B8§ment clients that epicRealm Licensing, LLC
(“epicRealm LLC"), had filed a lawsuit in federadurt in Texas against such client alleging thataitemweb-based
services provided by the Company and others to slieht infringed certain epicRealm LLC patents2D06, the
Company filed suit against epicRealm Licensing tdpicRealm LP”) in federal court in Delaware segkin
invalidate certain epicRealm LP patents. In 20@icRealm LP filed counterclaims against the Compaligging
patent infringement. Parallel Networks, LLC wa®fagubstituted for epicRealm LP as the patent haldd
party-in-interest. In April 2009, the Company estkinto a settlement and license agreement (“Agee¢hhwith
Parallel Networks pertaining to the patents in ¢tjoag"“Licensed Patents”). Under the terms of trggdement,
Parallel Networks granted the Company a perpetaglty-free, non-sublicensable and generally rrangferable,
worldwide right and license under the Licensed Ratdi) to use any product technology or servioeeced by or
which embodies any one or more claims of the LiedriRatents (as defined in the Agreement); antb(ii)
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practice any method covered by any one or morenslaf the Licensed Patents in connection with thizvities in
clause (i). Additionally, Parallel Networks covetathnot to sue the Company. The Company paid eaNditwork:
a one-time, nomefundable fee of $850. The Company recognizeahtamgible asset of $226 related to the estirr
fair value of the license and recorded the remgigi24 as a settlement expense.

In September 2010, a patent infringement lawsug filad against the Company by LendingTree, LLC
(“LendingTree”) in the United States District Cofot the Western District of North Carolina, seekajudgment
that the Company has infringed a certain patemt bglLendingTree, an injunctive order against tiegad
infringing activities and an award for damages.s®guently, LendingTree filed a first amended compladding a
additional defendant. If an injunction is grantiaould force the Company to stop or alter cert#iits business
activities, such as its lead generation in certlient verticals. While the Company intends to vimesly defend its
position, neither the outcome of the litigation tloe amount and range of potential damages or exp@ssociated
with the litigation can be assessed with certainty.

11. Stock Benefit Plans
Stock-Based Compensation

In fiscal years 2011, 20010 and 2009, the Compaogrded stock-based compensation expense of $13,950
$13,371 and $6,173, respectively, resulting inrfomgnition of related excess tax benefits of $2,84,780 and
$474, respectively. The Company included as pacash flows from financing activities a gross bérefftax
deductions of $7,458, $1,859 and $474 in fiscaty@811, 2010 and 2009, respectively, relateddcksbased
compensation.

Stock Incentive Plans

In November 2009, the Company’s board of directmtspted the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2010
Incentive Plan”) and the Company’s stockholdersaygd the 2010 Incentive Plan in January 2010. 2010
Incentive Plan became effective upon the complaticthe IPO of the Company’s common stock in Fetyr2®10.
Awards granted after January 2008 but before tloptimh of the 2010 Incentive Plan continue to beegned by th
terms of the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2@0&n”). All outstanding stock awards granted before Jan@afg
continue to be governed by the terms of the Compamyended and restated 1999 Equity Incentive @hen“1999
Plan”).

The 2010 Incentive Plan provides for the grannhegéntive stock options (*ISOs”), nonstatutory stogitions
(“NQSOs"), restricted stock, restricted stock un#®ck appreciation rights, performance-basecksaa@rds and
other forms of equity compensation, as well agHergrant of performance cash awards. The Compayyissue
ISOs only to its employees. NQSOs and all otherrdsvenay be granted to employees, including officers
nonemployee directors and consultants.

To date, the Company has issued only 1ISOs, NQS@seatricted stock units under the 2010 Incentilaa P
ISOs and NQSOs are generally granted to employ@éhsaw exercise price equal to the market pricthef
Company’s common stock at the date of grant. Stptions granted to employees generally have a @ctotal term
of seven years and vest over four years of contisservice, with 25 percent of the stock optiorstiag on the one-
year anniversary of the date of grant and the neimgi75 percent vesting in equal monthly installtsesver the
three year period thereafter. Restricted stoclsugrignted to employees generally vest over fivesyeficontinuous
service, with 15 percent of the restricted stocitswesting on the one-year anniversary of the dagrant, 60
percent vesting in equal quarterly installmentsrdkie following three years and the remaining 2&@et vesting in
equal quarterly installments over the last yeahefvesting period.

An aggregate of 2,535,761 shares of the Compamytsron stock were reserved for issuance under thé 20
Incentive Plan as of June 30, 2011, and this amwilinbe increased by any outstanding stock awénds expire or
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terminate for any reason prior to their exercissaitiement. The number of shares of the Compamytamon stock
reserved for issuance may be increased annuatiyghrJuly 1, 2019 by up to five percent of theltotanber of
shares of the Company’s common stock outstandinpetast day of the preceding fiscal year. Theimam
number of shares that may be issued under the [2@&ative Plan is 30,000,000. As of June 30, 2011,
2,237,845 shares were available for issuance uhde2010 Incentive Plan.

In November 2009, the Company’s board of directmtgpted the 2010 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Alvar
Plan (the “Directors’ Plan”) and the stockholdepprved the Directors’ Plan in January 2010. Thee@ors’ Plan
became effective upon the completion of the Comjza8O. The DirectorsPlan provides for the automatic gran
NQSOs to no-employee directors and also provides for the dismnary grant of restricted stock units. Stock
options granted to new non-employee directors imestjual monthly installments over four years; admrants to
existing directors vest in equal monthly installiiseover one year.

An aggregate of 500,000 shares of the Company’sraamstock were reserved for issuance under the
Directors’ Plan as of June 30, 2011. This amount bwincreased annually, by the sum of 200,000esha@nd the
aggregate number of shares of the Company’s constozk subject to awards granted under the DirecRbas
during the immediately preceding fiscal year. Adwafhe 30, 2011, 380,000 shares were availablssaance under
the Directors’ Plan.

In July 2011, the Company increased the numbeharfes of common stock reserved for issuance uhder t
2010 Incentive Plan and the Directors’ Plan by 9,381 shares and 320,000 shares, respectively.

Valuation Assumptions

The Company estimates the fair value of stock opdiwards at the date of grant using the Black-%shol
option-pricing model. Options are granted with aareise price equal to the fair value of the comrstmtk as of
the date of grant. The Company calculates the weilyaverage expected life of options using the Kiieg method
pursuant to the accounting guidance for share-bpawaients as it does not have sufficient histoesaircise
experience. Since the Company’s does not have sixtetrading history, the Company estimates theetqul
volatility of its common stock based on the histativolatility of comparable public companies otlee stock
option’s expected term. The Company has no hisiogxpectation of paying cash dividends on its camistock.
The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.8aJury yield for a term consistent with the expgtéem of the
stock options.

The weighted average Black-Scholes model assungptiod the weighted average grant date fair value of
employee stock options in fiscal years 2011, 201D 2009 were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009

Expected term (in year 4.6 4.€ 4.€
Expected volatility 54% 67% 62%
Expected dividend yiel 0.0% 0.C% 0.C%
Risk-free interest rat 1.7% 2.4% 2.8%
Grant date fair valu $7.81 $9.4z  $5.2¢

The fair value of restricted stock units is detered based on the closing price of the Compaogimmon stoc
on the grant date.

Compensation expense is amortized net of estinfatégltures on a straighine basis over the requisite serv
period of the stock-based compensation awards.
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Stock Option Award Activity

The following table summarizes the stock option gctivity under the Plans for fiscal year 2011

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Life Intrinsic
Shares Price (in Years) Value
Outstanding at June 30, 20 11,796,06 $ 9.7¢
Granted 691,60( 16.9:
Exercisec (2,317,73)) 7.32
Forfeited (790,98¢) 12.0¢
Expired (30,41) 14.71
Outstanding at June 30, 20 9,348,563 $ 10.7: 4.51 $31,56¢
Vested anexpecte-to-vestat June 30, 2011(: 8,731,14. $ 10.5¢ 4.4¢ $30,27(
Vested and exercisable at June 30, Z 6,541,61. $ 9.51 4.1¢  $26,35]

(1) The expected-to-vest options are the result ofyappithe pre-vesting forfeiture assumption to tataistanding
options.

The following table summarizes the total intringadue, the cash received and the actual tax bevfedit
options exercised during fiscal years 2011, 20102009, respectively:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009
Intrinsic value $25,79¢ $8,001 $1,36¢
Cash receive 16,967 1,64( 304
Tax benefil 9,612 2,12¢ 544

As of June 30, 2011, there was $27,861 of totadcmgnized compensation expense related to unvsttekl
options which is expected to be recognized oveeighted average period of 2.2 years.

Restricted Stock Unit Activity

The following table summarizes the restricted st activity under the Plans for fiscal year 2011

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Grant Date Contractual Life Intrinsic
Shares Fair Value (in Years) Value
Outstanding at June 30, 20 —  $ —
Granted 453,62( 14.3:
Vested — —
Forfeited (48,860 14.6:
Outstanding at June 30, 20 404,76( $ 14.2¢ 21 $ 5,25¢
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As of June 30, 2011, there was $5,769 of totaleogrized compensation expense related to restrittet
units which is expected to be recognized over gked average period of 4.2 years.

12. Stockholders Equity
Initial Public Offering of Common Stock

In February 2010, the Company completed its infigblic offering (“IPO”), whereby it sold 10,000,0@hares
of common stock at a price of $15.00 per share.ddmpany received $136,684 net of offering cost$1&,316. In
conjunction with the closing of the IPO, all of tBempany’s outstanding shares of convertible prefestock
automatically converted on a one-for-one basis 21td 76,533 shares of common stock.

Stock Repurchases

The Company repurchased 79,800 and 163,275 shiaiteatstanding common stock at a total cost &%
and $1,337 and an average cost of $8.96 and $&rishare in fiscal year 2010 and 2009, respectividigse shares
have been accounted for as treasury stock.

13. Related Party Transactions

Katrina Boydon serves as the Company’s Vice PresidContent and Compliance and is the sister of
Bronwyn Syiek, the Company’s President and Chiedi@png Officer. In fiscal years 2011, 2010 and200
Ms. Boydon received a base salary of $203, $193548d per year, respectively, and a bonus payod69f $67
and $51, respectively. In fiscal years 2010 and260s. Boydon was granted options to purchase greagte of
45,000 and 30,000 shares of the Company’s comnoaik,stespectively. Ms. Boydon'’s fiscal year 2012daalary
is $214 per year, and she has a fiscal year 2@g&ttaonus of $75.

Rian Valenti serves as a client strategy and deweémt manager and is the son of Doug Valenti, the
Company'’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman. Rian Valenti joined the Company in fiscal year 20
fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, Mr. Rian Valesteived a base salary of $62, $54 and $52 per gedra
commission payout of $32, $23 and $2, respectivalfiscal year 2011 and 2009, Mr. Rian Valenti waanted 75!
restricted stock units and options to purchaseggnegyate of 1,500 shares of the Company’s comnuomk st
respectively. Mr. Rian Valenti's fiscal year 2012sk salary is $75 per year, and he has a fiscagd2
commission opportunity of $55.

The Company had a preferred publisher agreemehtR@milon, an online publishing entity, one of whos
primary owners is the brother-in-law of one of @@mpany’s Executive Vice Presidents. Under theguretl
publisher agreement, the Company paid commissmmgufalified leads generated from links on Remisonebsite.
In fiscal years 2010 and 2009, the Company paidnaissions to Remilon of $2,226 and $4,204, respelgtivi he
publisher agreement expired in October 2009. Thvemre no amounts payable at June 30, 2010 or 2011.

14. Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as componentsaitarprise about which separate financial infororais
available that is evaluated regularly by the cbigérating decision maker, or decision making graupleciding
how to allocate resources and in assessing perfaend he Company’s chief operating decision makésichief
executive officer. The Company’s chief executivioaef reviews financial information presented ocomsolidated
basis, accompanied by information about operatiggrents, including net sales and operating incosfieré®
depreciation, amortization and stock-based compiemsexpense.
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The Company determined its operating segments M8, which derives revenue from fees earned thoug
the delivery of qualified leads, clicks and, taeader extent, impressions, and DSS, which derexgenue from the
sale of direct selling services through a hostddgtiem. The Company’s reportable operating segmeoutsist of
DMS and DSS. The accounting policies of the twarggble operating segments are the same as thesglal in
Note 2.

The Company evaluates the performance of its opgraegments based on net sales and operating éxcom
before depreciation, amortization and stock-basedpensation expense.

The Company does not allocate all of its assetis @epreciation and amortization expense, staded
compensation expense, interest income, interegrnsepand income tax expense by segment. Accordlitigly
Company does not report such information.

Summarized information by segment was as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009
Net revenue by segmel
DMS $401,707 $333,09( $257,42(
DSS 1,31¢ 1,74¢ 3,107
Total net revenu 403,02: 334,83! 260,52
Segment operating income before depreciation, amatidn, and stock-base
compensation expens
DMS 89,59( 70,42 55,251
DSS 721 95€ 1,621
Total segment operating income before depreciatiomrtization, and stock-
based compensation expel 90,311 71,37¢ 56,87:
Depreciation and amortizatic (27,277) (18,79) (15,979
Stocl-based compensation expel (13,950) (13,377 (6,173
Total operating incom $ 49,08¢ $ 39,217 $ 34,72]

The following tables set forth net revenue and liwgd assets by geographic area:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009
Net revenue
United State! $401,67. $334,13: $259,96!
Internationa 1,34¢ 704 562
Total net revenu $403,02: $334,83* $260,52°
June 30 June 30,
2011 2010
Long-lived assets
United State: $ 8641 $ 5,19¢
Internationa 234 22¢
Total lon¢-lived asset: $ 887t §$ 5,41¢
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15. Subsequent Event:
Acquisition of NarrowCast Group, LLC (IT Businessdge or “ITBE")

On August 25, 2011, the Company acquired 100%ebtlistanding equity interests of ITBE, in exchafuye
$23,961 in cash paid upon closing of the acquisifithe results of ITBE'’s operations will be inclade the
consolidated financial statements following thelwasitjon date. The Company acquired ITBE to broaittemedia
access in the business-to-business market.

The Company is currently evaluating the purchagm@mllocation following the consummation of the
transaction. It is not possible to disclose thdimiaary purchase price allocation or unaudited famrona combined
financial information given the short period of &rbetween the acquisition date and the filing datéis report.
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants orcAanting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Cligécutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure otsaind procedures as of June 30, 2011. The teisulédure
controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules Ea)land 15d-15(a)nder the Securities Exchange Act of 193¢
amended (the “Exchange Act”), means controls ahdrgtrocedures of a company that are designedsirethat
information required to be disclosed by a comparthe reports that it files or submits under theltange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported nvithitime periods specified in the SEC'’s rules fanahs.
Disclosure controls and procedures include, withioitation, controls and procedures designed suenthat
information required to be disclosed by a comparthe reports that it files or submits under theliange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the company’s neaneigt, including its principal executive and prpadi
financial officers, as appropriate to allow timelgcisions regarding required disclosure. Managemseagnizes
that any controls and procedures, no matter howdesigned and operated, can provide only reasersgsurance
of achieving their objectives and management nec#gsipplies its judgment in evaluating the cost4fit
relationship of possible controls and proceduresddl on the evaluation of our disclosure contnetspocedures
of June 30, 2011, our Chief Executive Officer aride€ Financial Officer concluded that, as of suelted our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectitkeareasonable assurance level.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahcia
reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)1%{der the Exchange Act. Our internal controlrofiigancial
reporting is designed to provide reasonable assarayarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the
preparation of consolidated financial statement&kternal purposes in accordance with generaltgpted
accounting principles. Our internal control overafincial reporting includes those policies and pdaces that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records thatgasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet th
transactions and dispositions of its assets,

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactiomsecorded as necessary to permit preparation of
consolidated financial statements in accordancle génerally accepted accounting principles, antdrdweipts
and expenditures are being made only in accordaitheauthorizations of our management and directansl

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding priwemr timely detection of any unauthorized acdigs,
use or disposition of our assets that could havaierial effect on the consolidated financial stedats.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibimternal control effectiveness to future peri@ds subject to tt
risk that controls may become inadequate becauskasfges in conditions, or that the degree of canpé with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management has assessed the effectivenessiof¢mal control over financial reporting as ohé 30,
2011. In making this assessment, our managemedttnseriteria set forth by the Committee of Spoimsp
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COS@")nternal Control — Integrated Framework. Basedhis
evaluation, our management has concluded thaintemial control over financial reporting was effeetas of
June 30, 2011.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fioi@l reporting as of June 30, 2011 has been albite
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent regisgarblic accounting firm, as stated in their répdrich
appears in this annual report on Form 10-K.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in our internal control owearftial reporting identified in connection with tinealuation
required by Rule 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) of theHaxge Act that occurred during the three montheeéddine 30,
2011 that has materially affected, or is reasonbibdyy to materially affect, our internal contraVer financial
reporting.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente

The information required by this item concerningedtors is incorporated herein by reference froenstbction
entitled “Election of Class Il Directorsh our definitive proxy statement to be filed witie Securities and Exchar
Commission in connection with our 2011 annual nmeetf stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”). Thexyro
Statement is expected to be filed no later thande3@ after the end of our fiscal year ended JOn@@11.

Information regarding executive officers requirgditem 401 of Regulation S-K is furnished in a sepa
disclosure in Part | of this report, under the maptExecutive Officers of the Registrant,” becausge will not
furnish such information in our definitive proxyagtment prepared in accordance with Schedule 14A.

The information required by this item with resp&ckection 16(a) of the Exchange Act is incorpataterein
by reference from the section entitled “Sectiona)@eneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” i uoxy
Statement.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics fpdiea to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Fingalc
Officer, Corporate Controller and all others pemfiorg similar functions. The Code of Conduct andi&ts
available on the investor relations section of@lmenpany’s website at http://investor.quinstreet.com

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item will be setth in the sections entitled “Report of the Congagion
Committee”, “Board of Directors” and “Executive Cpensation” in our Proxy Statement and is incorpatdterein
by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners afhbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

The information required by this item will be setth in the sections entitled “Equity Compensatiian
Information” and “Stock Ownership of Certain Beél Owners and Management” in our Proxy Stateraedtis
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independenci

The information required by this item will be setth in the section entitled “Ratification of thel&ction of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our Independent fegfisPublic Accounting Firm” in our Proxy Staternand is
incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information required by this item will be setth in the sections entitled “Report of the Congagion
Committee”, “Board of Directors” and “Executive Cpensation” in our Proxy Statement and is incorpatdterein
by reference.

PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

(a) We have filed the following documents are pédithis Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1. Consolidated Financial Statements

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm 52
Consolidated Balance She: 53
Consolidated Statements of Operati 54
Consolidated Statements of Convertible PreferrediSiStockholder Equity and Comprehensive Incot 55
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc 56
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 57
2. Financial Statement Schedules
The following financial statement schedule is filegla part of this report:
Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivables anésa¢turns
Charged ta
Balance at the Expenses, Write -offs Balance a
Beginning of Against the Net of the End of
the Year Revenue Receivable the Year
Fiscal year 200 $ 2,161 $ 1,46 $ (115 $ 3,50¢
Fiscal year 201 $ 3,50¢ $ 26 $ (1,01H $ 2,75¢
Fiscal year 201 $ 275¢ $ 1,5¢ $ (1,19) $ 2,72¢

Note: Additions to the allowance for doubtful acntaiare charged to expense. Additions to the alowdor
sales credits are charged against revenue.

All other schedules are omitted because they dresqaired or the required information is shownha
financial statements or notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit

No. Description of Exhibit

2.1(11 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated November 5, 2¢1énd among QuinStreet, Inc., Car
Insurance.com, Inc., Car Insurance Agency, Inct,I@surance Holdings, Inc., Carlnsurance.com,
Inc., Lloyd Register IV, Lloyd Register Ill, Davigitzgerald, Timothy Register, Randy Horowitz and
Erick Pace

3.1(6) Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporat

3.2(7) Amended and Restated Bylav

86




Table of Contents

Exhibit
No.

4.1(3)
4.2(1)

10.1(1)+
10.2(1)+

10.3(1)+
10.4(1)+
10.5(2)+
10.6(2)+
10.7(2)+

10.8(2)+
10.9(2)+

10.10(2)+
10.11%+
10.12(3)+
10.13(3)
10.13.1(8)

10.13.2(9)

Description of Exhibit

Form of QuinStreet, In’'s Common Stock Certificat

Second Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agmetieimg and between QuinStreet, Inc.,
Douglas Valenti and the investors listed on Scheduhereto, dated May 28, 20t
QuinStreet, Inc. 2008 Equity Incentive PI.

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for
nor-executiveofficer employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan

(for executive officers)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for
nor-employeedirectors).

QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive PI.

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan

(for nor-executiveofficer employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (for
executive officers)

QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 N-Employee Directol’ Stock Award Plan

Form of Option Agreement and Option Grant Noticelfitial Grants under the 2010 Non-
Employee Director Stock Award Plan

Form of Option Agreement and Option Grant NoticeAanual Grants under the 2010
Non-EmployeeDirectors Stock Award Plan

Form of Incremental Bonus Ple

Annual Incentive Plar

Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term lAggeement, by and among QuinStreet,
Inc., the lenders thereto and Comerica Bank as Aiinative Agent, dated as of January 14, 2!
New Lender Addendum by U.S. Bank National Associgtdated February 2, 2011, to
Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term lAggeement dated January 14, 20

New Lender Addendum by Bank of the West, dated traatyr2, 2011, to the Amended and Rest
Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement dated danti4, 201!

10.13.3(10 Revised Schedule 1.2, dated February 2, 2011 etdihended and Restated Revolving Credit and

10.14(3)
10.15(3)#
10.16(3)#
10.17(3)#
10.18(3)#
10.19(4)+
10.20(5)
21.1*
23.1*
24.1*

31.1*

Term Loan Agreement dated January 14, 2!

Security Agreement, by and among QuinStreet, bestain subsidiaries of QuinStreet, Inc. and
Comerica Bank as Administrative Agent, dated aSegtember 29, 200

QuinStreet Merchant Agreement, dated as of Oct8p2001, by and between QuinStreet, Inc. and
DeVry, Inc.

Letter Agreement, dated as of December 2, 2003ndybetween QuinStreet, Inc. and DeVry,
Letter Agreement by and between QuinStreet, Ind.2&Vry, Inc.

Letter Agreement, dated as of October 5, 2007 nolyleetween QuinStreet, Inc. and DeVry, |

Form of Indemnification Agreement made by and betw®uinStreet, Inc. and each of its directors
and executive officer:

Office Lease Metro Center, dated as of Februar2040, between the registrant and CA-Metro
Center Limited Partnershi

List of subsidiaries

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Power of Attorney (incorporated by reference toglgmature page of this Annual Report on

Form 1(-K).

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Qi8treet, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act.
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
31.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Qutreet, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act.
32.1**  Section 1350 Certifications of Chief Executive ©i and Chief Financial Office

* Filed herewith
** Furnished herewitt
+ Indicates management contract or compensatory
# Confidential treatment has been granted for ceitdormation contained in this document. Such infation
has been omitted and filed separately with the @#siand Exchange Commissic

(1) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Registration Statement on
Form &1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on November 19, 200

(2) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxbiQuinStreet, Inc.’'s Amendment No. 1 to Ragitbn
Statement olForm $-1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on December 22, 200

(3) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’'s Amendment No. 2 to Remgitbn
Statement olForm -1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on January 14, 201

(4) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxbiQuinStreet, Inc.’'s Amendment No. 3 to Remgitbn
Statement olForm -1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on January 26, 201

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q
(SEC FileNo. 001-34628)filed on May 12, 201C

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to QuieStr Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statenoa
Form &1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on December 22, 200

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to QuieStr Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statenoa
Form &1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on December 22, 200

(8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC File
No. 002-34628)filed on February 2, 201:

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC File
No. 002-34628)filed on February 2, 201:

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Quia8&t, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC File
No. 002-34628)filed on February 2, 201:

(11) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Current Report on ForrK 8SEC
File No.001-34628)filed on November 8, 201.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas
duly caused this report to be signed on its bedhathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, ogust 29, 2011.

QuinStreet, Inc.

By: /s/ Douglas Valen

Douglas Valenti
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Douglas Valenti and Kdnhigthn, and each of them, as his true and lawfotradys-in-
fact and agents, with full power of substitutiordag-substitution, for him in any and all capadii® sign any and
all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 103 ® file the same, with all exhibits thereto, atider
documents in connection therewith, with the Semgiand Exchange Commission hereby ratifying amficoing
that each of said attorneys-in-fact and agenthjsosubstitute or substitutes, may lawfully do anse to be done by
virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpithe
following persons on behalf of the Registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Douglas Valenti Chairman of the Board and Chief Execu August 29,
Douglas Valent Officer (Principal Executive Officer) 2011
/sl Kenneth Hahn Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financi August 29,
Kenneth Hahr Officer and Principal Accounting Officer) 2011
/sl Bronwyn Syiek President, Chief Operating Officer and August 29,
/sl William Bradley Director August 29,
William Bradley 2011
/sl John G. McDonald Director August 29,
John G. McDonal 2011
/sl Gregory Sands Director August 29,
Gregory Sand 2011
/sl James Simons Director August 29,
James Simon 2011
/sl Glenn Solomon Director August 29,
Glenn Solomor 2011
/s/ Dana Stalder Director August 29,
Dana Stalde 2011
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Exhibit
No.

2.1(11)

3.1(6)
3.2(7)
4.1(3)
4.2(1)

10.1(1)+
10.2(1)+

10.3(1)+
10.4(1)+
10.5(2)+
10.6(2)+
10.7(2)+

10.8(2)+
10.9(2)+

10.10(2)+
10.11%+
10.12(3)+
10.13(3)
10.13.1(8)

10.13.2(9)

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Exhibit

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated November 5, 2@1&ndb among QuinStreet, Inc., Car
Insurance.com, Inc., Car Insurance Agency, Inct,I@surance Holdings, Inc., Carlnsurance.com,
Inc., Lloyd Register IV, Lloyd Register Ill, Davigitzgerald, Timothy Register, Randy Horowitz
and Erick Pace

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporal

Amended and Restated Bylav

Form of QuinStreet, In's Common Stock Certificat

Second Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agmeieimg and between QuinStreet, Inc.,
Douglas Valenti and the investors listed on Scheduhereto, dated May 28, 20t

QuinStreet, Inc. 2008 Equity Incentive Pl

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for
nor-executiveofficer employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan

(for executive officers)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for
nor-employeedirectors).

QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Pl

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan

(for nor-executiveofficer employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (for
executive officers)

QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 N-Employee Directo’’ Stock Award Plan

Form of Option Agreement and Option Grant Noticelfdtial Grants under the 2010 Non-
Employee Director Stock Award Plan

Form of Option Agreement and Option Grant NoticeAanual Grants under the 2010
Non-EmployeeDirectors Stock Award Plan

Form of Incremental Bonus Ple

Annual Incentive Plar

Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term lAggeement, by and among QuinStreet,
Inc., the lenders thereto and Comerica Bank as Adinative Agent, dated as of January 14, 2!
New Lender Addendum by U.S. Bank National Associatdated February 2, 2011, to
Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term lAggreement dated January 14, 20

New Lender Addendum by Bank of the West, dated traatyr2, 2011, to the Amended and Rest
Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement dated danti4, 201!

10.13.3(10 Revised Schedule 1.2, dated February 2, 2011 etdihmended and Restated Revolving Credit and

10.14(3)

10.15(3)#
10.16(3)#
10.17(3)#
10.18(3)#
10.19(4)+

10.20(5)

Term Loan Agreement dated January 14, 2!

Security Agreement, by and among QuinStreet, rertain subsidiaries of QuinStreet, Inc. and
Comerica Bank as Administrative Agent, dated aSegftember 29, 200

QuinStreet Merchant Agreement, dated as of Oct8p2001, by and between QuinStreet, Inc. and
DeVry, Inc.

Letter Agreement, dated as of December 2, 2003anioybetween QuinStreet, Inc. and DeVry,
Letter Agreement by and between QuinStreet, Ind.2&Vry, Inc.

Letter Agreement, dated as of October 5, 2007 nolyleetween QuinStreet, Inc. and DeVry, |

Form of Indemnification Agreement made by and betw®uinStreet, Inc. and each of its directors
and executive officer:

Office Lease Metro Center, dated as of Februar®040, between the registrant and CA-Metro
Center Limited Partnershi
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Exhibit

No. Description of Exhibit

21.1* List of subsidiaries

23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

24.1* Power of Attorney (incorporated by reference toglgmature page of this Annual Report on
Form 1(-K).

31.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Qi8treet, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act.

31.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Quitreet, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act.

32.1**  Section 1350 Certifications of Chief Executive ©ii and Chief Financial Office

* Filed herewith
** Furnished herewitt
+ Indicates management contract or compensatory
# Confidential treatment has been granted for ceftdormation contained in this document. Such infation
has been omitted and filed separately with the @#siand Exchange Commissic

(1) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Registration Statement on
Form &1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on November 19, 200

(2) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxbdiQuinStreet, Inc.’'s Amendment No. 1 to Remgitbn
Statement olForm $-1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on December 22, 200

(3) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxbiQuinStreet, Inc.'s Amendment No. 2 to Remgitbn
Statement olForm -1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on January 14, 201

(4) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’'s Amendment No. 3 to Remgitbn
Statement olForm -1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on January 26, 201

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q
(SEC FileNo. 00:-34628)filed on May 12, 201C

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to QuieStr Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statenoa
Form &1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on December 22, 200

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to QuieStyInc.’'s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statenoa
Form &1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on December 22, 200

(8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC File
No. 002-34628)filed on February 2, 201:

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Quia8t, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC File
No. 002-34628)filed on February 2, 201:

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC File
No. 002-34628)filed on February 2, 201

(11) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Current Report on ForrK 8SEC
File No.001-34628)filed on November 8, 201.
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Exhibit 10.11

INCREMENTAL BONUS PLAN

FROM: Doug Valenti DATE:
TO:
RE: QuinStreet Incremental Bonus Plan

The Compensation Committee of the Board has onam agproved an incremental bonus plan for set#f fr fiscal year[ ]. The
purpose of incremental bonuses is to provide ineer@nd cash compensation for performance thagystid budget or expected growth
targets AND that is consistent with the stratedifeotives and interests of the Company. The incrdatdonus is in addition to the potential
discretionary bonus component of your annual corsgion. In fiscal year [ ], the incrementahbe pool will accrue when Company
EBITDA exceeds that represented by 20% Revenuetgrover the prior fiscal year results and a 20%HBA margin (“Target EBITDA”).

Your specific incremental bonus rate is shown beldle general terms of the incremental plan are @lglined below. Once you have
reviewed, understand and agree to the plan andtgrease sign on the line provided, and retumeo

Your Incremental Bonus as % of FY[ ]
Company EBITDA > Target EBITDA
[ 1%

Incremental bonus plan terms

» Company EBITDA is as reported in the Comg’s final unaudited annual Income Statement for tiieable fiscal yeal

* The amount and payment of incremental bonuseatdne complete and sole discretion of the CE@,raay not be paid in part or in full,
even if financial targets are achieved. This iprmtect the Company from unforeseen changes imbssicircumstances and unintended
consequences, and to make adjustments if actiorgniza personal bonuses but otherwise (even uriioteally) damage Company or
shareholder interests by, for example: increasasgscor limit growth elsewhere or in the futureaoting in ways counter to Company
strategy and/or best long-term business potentipbsitioning. Important considerations, among mthiclude: margins; growth; client
concentration; development of proprietary medieht®logies and other capabilities deemed necessadgfensibility and sustainabilit
specific performance of individual, group or veatic

« Incremental bonuses will be paid one time ongyally but not necessarily about 30 days followpoglication of approved full-year
results. You must be a full-time employee in gotashding at the time of payment to receive any imaetal bonus payment at all. There
are no exceptions and no other payments or obdigaidf any kind under this Ple

e The CEO must have your signed (acknowledged grekd) Incremental Bonus Plan memo (this form)ilerfér you to be included in
the Plan and receive a bonus paym

Acknowledged and agree
Date



SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Exhibit 21.1

Name Jurisdiction
QuinStreet Insurance Agency, It Florida
QuinStreet Europe Ltd. (f/k/a MWR Systems, Li U.K.
QuinStreet Software India Private Limit India
QuinStreet Cayman Islands L C.L
QuinStreet Brasil Online Marketing E Media LTDA-2-2011) Brazil
QuinStreet Media, Inc CA
QuinStreet Properties, In CA
3041486 Nova Scotia Compa Nova Scoti
WorldWide Learn, Inc Alberta
QuinStreet LLC lllinois

HQ Publications LLC

lllinois



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No-B38272) of QuinStreet, Inc. of our
report dated August 29, 2011 relating to the fin@nstatements, financial statement schedule amétfectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, which appears in this FormKLO-

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
August 29, 2011



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Douglas Valenti, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on F&0¥K of QuinStreet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statetsy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andtffierperiods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer drare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls andgahoes, or caused such disclosure controls an@guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over finaheporting, or caused such internal control direancial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeatepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the comfsadigclosure controls and procedures and preseémtinis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change indbmpany’s internal control over financial repogtithat occurred during the company’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the company’s interrwntrol over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer drtthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlitmittee of the company’s board of directors (@nspns performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and matenedaknesses in the design or operation of interoratrol over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the compamygity to record, process, summarize and repparfcial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdélves management or other employees who hawgnéisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 29, 2011

/sl Douglas Valenti

Douglas Valent

Chairman and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Kenneth Hahn, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on F&0¥K of QuinStreet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statetsy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andtffierperiods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer drare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls andgahoes, or caused such disclosure controls an@guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over finaheporting, or caused such internal control direancial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeatepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the comfsadigclosure controls and procedures and preseémtinis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change indbmpany’s internal control over financial repogtithat occurred during the company’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the company’s interrwntrol over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer drtthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlitmittee of the company’s board of directors (@nspns performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and matenedaknesses in the design or operation of interoratrol over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the compamygity to record, process, summarize and repparfcial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdélves management or other employees who hawgnéisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 29, 2011

/s/ Kenneth Hah

Kenneth Hahr

Chief Financial Officel
(Principal Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The certification set forth below is being sitted in connection with the report on Form 10#QuinStreet, Inc. (the “Report”) for the
purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rulel113(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (thechange Act”) and Section 1350
of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code

Douglas Valenti, the Chief Executive Officeidakenneth Hahn, the Chief Financial Officer of @tireet, Inc., each certifies that, to the
best of his knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with the requiramts of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange actl

2. the information contained in the Reportlyapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of
QuinStreet, Inc..

Date: August 29, 2011

/sl Douglas Valenti

Name: Douglas Valen
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

/s/ Kenneth Hahn

Name: Kenneth Hah
Chief Financial Officel




